2025



Alaşehir SPP Sub-Project

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PLAN ALAŞEHIR MUNICIPALITY

Table of Contents

| Та | able of Contents | 2 |
|----|--|----|
| | List of Abbreviations | 5 |
| E | cecutive Summary | 6 |
| 1. | Sub-Project Description | 8 |
| | Project Land Use Rights | 9 |
| | Land Acquisition Principles | 11 |
| 2. | Environmental and Social Screening | 13 |
| | | |
| 3. | Legal Framework | 14 |
| | National Legal Framework | 14 |
| | International Legal Framework | 15 |
| 4. | Baseline Data | 17 |
| | Environmental Baseline | 17 |
| | Location and Topography | |
| | Geography | |
| | Climate | |
| | Flora Earthquake Risks | |
| | Hydrology and Flood Risks | |
| | | |
| | Social Baseline Demography | |
| | Cultural Heritage | |
| | Economic Sectors and Facilities | |
| 5. | Environmental and Social Management Plan | 27 |
| | Mitigation Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction and Operation Phases of the Project | 27 |
| | Monitoring Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction and Operation Phases of the Project | 33 |
| | Measures for Institutional Arrangements, Capacity Development, and Training | 42 |
| | Implementation of ESMP Disclosure | 44 |
| | Environmental and Social Monitoring Report | 45 |
| 6. | Stakeholder Engagement | 47 |
| | Stakeholder Identification and Analysis | 47 |
| | Stakeholder Engagement Plan | 49 |
| | Grievance Mechanism | 49 |
| | Monitoring and Reporting | 52 |
| | Public Consultation Meeting | |

| 7. | Annexes | 54 |
|----|---|-----|
| | Annex 1: SPP Project Area Title Deed | 54 |
| | Annex 2: Alaşehir District SPP Area 1/1000 Scale Zoning Plan | 55 |
| | Annex 3: Official Decision of Manisa Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization for EIA Exempted | 56 |
| | Annex 4: Ground Survey Report | 57 |
| | Annex 5: Letter of General Directorate of State Hydraulic Work | 60 |
| | Annex 6: Letter of GDZ Electricity Distribution Services | 62 |
| | Annex 7: Connection Consent Letter from Akt Energy Inc | 64 |
| | Annex 8:Energy Transmission Line Consent Letter (101 Block 40 Parcel) | 67 |
| | Annex 9:Minutes of Public Participation Meeting | 68 |
| | Annex 10:Consultation Form | |
| | Annex 11:Grievance Form | 77 |
| | Annex 12:Grievance Closure Form | |
| | Annex 13:Roles and Responsibilities of Main Actors of SPP Subproject | 79 |
| | Annex 14: Environmental and Social Screening Checklist | 85 |
| | Integrating Basic Principles to Strengthen Social and Environmental Sustainability | 85 |
| | Identifying and Managing Social and Environmental Risks | 86 |
| | Environmental Screening Checklist | 95 |
| Re | eferences | 100 |

Figure List

| Figure 1: Location of Alaşehir District Center and SPP Subproject Area | 8 |
|--|------|
| Figure 2: SPP Sub-Project Area | 9 |
| Figure 3:Energy Transmission Line | 10 |
| Figure 4: Energy Transmission Line Route Plan | 10 |
| Figure 5: Geographical location of Manisa Province and Sub-Project Area | 17 |
| Figure 6: Alaşehir District Topography Map | 17 |
| Figure 7: Slope Map of Manisa Province and SPP Sub-project Area | 19 |
| Figure 8: Manisa Province Solar Atlas and Project Area | 20 |
| Figure 9: Faults in Alaşehir and its Region, General Directorate of Mineral Research and Exploration | tion |
| (MTA) | 22 |
| Figure 10:Earthquake Hazard Map of Sub-Project Area and Surroundings, Türkiye Earthquake Haz | zard |
| Maps Interactive Web Application, 2024, (https://tdth.afad.gov.tr) | 22 |
| Figure 11:National Water Information System (USBS) Alaşehir Hydrology Analysis Map | 23 |
| Figure 12: Cultural Assets in Alaşehir District Center and SPP Sub-project Area (Culture Invent | ory, |
| 2019) | 26 |

Graphic List

| Graphic 1: a) Alaşehir District Radiation Values b) Alaşehir District sunshine Times c) Alaşehir PV type | -ć |
|--|----|
| Area-Energy That Can Be Produced2 | 0 |
| Graphic 2: Alaşehir District Population by Years (TÜİK, 2024)2 | 5 |

Table List

| Table 1: Planned SPP Technical Details | 9 |
|--|----|
| Table 2: Planned SPP Land Information | 10 |
| Table 3: Alaşehir Population by Years ((TÜİK, 2024)) | 24 |
| Table 4: Mitigation Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction Phase of the Project | 28 |
| Table 5: Mitigation Plan for the Operational Phase | 31 |
| Table 6:Monitoring Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction Phases of the Project | 33 |
| Table 7: Monitoring Plan for the Operational Phase | 38 |
| Table 8: Roles and Responsibilities for the Implementation of ESMP | 43 |
| Table 9: Comprehensive List of the Stakeholder Identified for the Project | 47 |
| Table 10: The Potential Impacts of Project Activities on Social Components | 48 |
| Table 11: Potential Vulnerable/Disadvantaged Groups and their needs | 49 |
| Table 12: Grievance Mechanism Flowchart | 51 |
| Table 13: Grievance Mechanism Monitoring Framework | 52 |

Annexes

| Annex 1: SPP Project Area Title Deed | 54 |
|---|-----------------|
| Annex 2: Alaşehir District SPP Area 1/1000 Scale Zoning Plan | 55 |
| Annex 3: Official Decision of Manisa Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbani | ization for EIA |
| Exempted | 56 |
| Annex 4: Ground Survey Report | 57 |
| Annex 5: Letter of General Directorate of State Hydraulic Work | 60 |
| Annex 6: Letter of GDZ Electricity Distribution Services | 62 |
| Annex 7: Connection Consent Letter from Akt Energy Inc | 64 |
| Annex 9: Energy Transmission Line Consent Letter (101 Block 40 Parcel) | 67 |
| Annex 10: Minutes of Public Participation Meeting | 68 |
| Annex 11:Consultation Form | 76 |
| Annex 12:Grievance Form | 77 |
| Annex 13:Grievance Closure Form | 78 |
| Annex 14:Roles and Responsibilities of Main Actors of SPP Subproject | 79 |
| Annex 15: Environmental and Social Screening Checklist | 85 |
| | |

List of Abbreviations

| AF AFAD | Additional Financing Disaster and Emergency Management Authority |
|------------|--|
| CLO | Community Liaison Officers |
| E&S | Environment and Social |
| EHS | Environment Health and Safety |
| EHSMP | |
| EIA | Environment Health Safety Management Plan Environmental Impact Assessment |
| EMRA | |
| ESF | Energy Market Regulatory Authority |
| ESIA | Environmental and Social Framework |
| | Environmental and Social Impact Assessment |
| ESMF | Environmental and Social Management Framework |
| ESMP | Environmental and Social Management Plan |
| ESMR | Environmental and Social Monitoring Report |
| ESP | Environmental and Social Policy |
| ESS | Environmental and Social Standards |
| EU | European Union |
| GIS | Geographic Information System |
| GM | Grievance Mechanism |
| GPN | Good Practice Note |
| İLBANK | Bank of Provinces |
| IRAP | the Provincial Disaster Risk Reduction Plan |
| MEP | Ministry of Environment, Urbanization, and Climate Change |
| MTA | Maden Tetkik ve Arama |
| NECRRM | Noise Evaluation and Control Regulation |
| OHS | Occupational Health and Safety |
| ОР | Operation Policy |
| PIU | Project Implementation Unit |
| РМ | Particulate Matter |
| РҮВ | Project Management Unit |
| SCP | Sustainable Cities Project |
| SDG | Sustainable Development Goals |
| SEA | Sexual Exploitation and Abuse |
| SESA | Strategic Environmental and Social Assessment |
| SH | Sexual Harassment |
| SPP | Solar Power Plant |
| UN | United Nations |
| | National Weten Information Contain |
| USBS | National Water Information System |

Executive Summary

ILBANK (The Bank of Provinces in Türkiye) and the World Bank (WB) have collaboratively devised the Sustainable Cities Projects, which constitute a series of initiatives (SCP I and II are presently underway). This Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF) is specifically crafted for the Additional Financing (AF) of SCP II, intending to establish an augmented support mechanism. This Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) will be prepared as defined in the Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) will be prepared as defined in the Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF) (İLBANK, 2019). This augmentation is in response to the escalating demand from Municipalities seeking investments in sustainable urban development within the ongoing framework of the Sustainable Cities Program. The overarching goal of this program is to assist municipalities in enhancing urban planning, infrastructure development, capital investment planning, and fortifying municipal financial capacities, including creditworthiness.

All investments implemented through this Project will strictly adhere to both the Environmental Regulations of the Republic of Türkiye and the Safeguard Policies of the World Bank. To ensure compliance, ILBANK will serve as the financial intermediary, overseeing the adherence to WB policies and procedures. Additionally, ILBANK will ensure that all requisite Turkish environmental approvals, licenses, and permits are obtained.

With financial support from the World Bank for renewable energy projects belong to municipalities, a solar power plant project located in Alaşehir, a district within Türkiye's Manisa province, has been initiated by Alaşehir Municipality. This project aims to increase the share of renewable energy sources in the country's energy mix and reduce greenhouse gas emissions and reliance on fossil fuels and to meet the electric energy need of Alaşehir.

The installed capacity of the plant is 3150,4 kWp which is exempted from EIA regulation (Annex 3) and it is expected to generate 5.557.305,6 kWh of electricity annually. The project site is located on Lot 1 and block 101 of İsmetiye neighborhood of Alaşehir District and the land owned by Alaşehir Municipality (Annex 1). The solar panels used in the project are of high quality and have a lifespan of 30 years. The project was designed and constructed by a team of experienced engineers and technicians. The project developer has prepared and ensured the project in compliance with international quality and safety standards.

The project has been financed by the World Bank through a loan agreement with Alaşehir Municipality. The loan has been provided on favorable terms, with a low interest rate and a long repayment period. The loan has been used to finance the construction of the solar power plant, including the procurement of equipment and the construction of the power plant. The solar power plant project is expected to have a significant impact on the local economy and the environment. The project will create job opportunities during the construction phase and the operation phase. The project will also contribute to the development of the local infrastructure, including the construction of the substation and the transmission line. The project will also have a positive impact on the environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The solar power plant will generate clean energy, which will replace the energy generated from fossil fuels. The project will also contribute to the development of renewable energy sources in Türkiye. The project in Alaşehir is a significant step towards the development of renewable energy sources in Türkiye.

The Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) for this solar energy plant project plays a crucial role in the project's execution. The ESMP acts as a comprehensive guide to monitoring, assessing, and mitigating adverse environmental and social impacts throughout the project's lifecycle. This ensures that the project delivers a positive influence on the environment and the community. The ESMP guarantees compliance with local legal regulations and international standards. It ensures that the project operates in accordance with legal requirements.

This project's provision of clean energy aligns with SDG 7, which targets Clean Energy. Additionally, it positively contributes to Good Jobs and Economic Growth (SDG 8). By reducing reliance on fossil fuels

and limiting greenhouse gas emissions, this solar energy plant project supports Türkiye's efforts in combatting climate change. It aligns with Türkiyey's climate action plans and commitments. In conclusion, the ESMP for this solar energy plant project is a critical document, emphasizing the project's potential for both environmental and societal benefits. It ensures that the necessary steps are taken to monitor and mitigate environmental and social impacts with a focus on the project's unique aspects. Furthermore, it makes a valuable contribution to sustainable development goals and aligns with Türkiye's climate action plans.

1. Sub-Project Description

Within the scope of this report, the SPP sub-project details planned by Alaşehir Municipality was examined to prepare ESMP for the sub-project. Alaşehir district is located in the Manisa province.

This sub-project has been prepared for the establishment of an unlicensed solar power plant project with an installed power of 2640,0 kWe belonging to Alaşehir district of Manisa province. The project implementation capacity is 3150,4 kWp and is exempt from the local environmental impact assessment regulation and all environmental requirements.

According to the connection power given in Table 1, Alaşehir Municipality will establish a solar power plant in İsmetiye Neighborhood, which is approximately 20 km away from Alaşehir District Central settlement, and 3,5 km away from İsmetiye Neighborhood and located to the northwest of the district center (Figure 1).

The 10 meter wide vehicle road to the project area is connected to the project area by leaving the Gülpınar-Kemaliye road route (Annex 2).



Figure 1: Location of Alaşehir District Center and SPP Subproject Area

Figure 2: SPP Sub-Project Area



This study is prepared within the scope of 30th clause and Article 1 of the "Regulation on Unlicensed Electricity Generation in the Electricity Market" the electricity consumption of the relevant institutions netting with the electricity generation of the power plants to be made over the electricity unit price determined according to the subscription type of the institutions in the Electricity Tariff published by EMRA.

Planned Solar Power Plant has **3150,4 kWp DC Capacity, 2640,0 kWe AC Capacity**. Equipped with 395 Wp MonoPerc Half-Cut modules with **30° tilt, 25° azimuth angle**.

When the economic life of the plant expires at 30 years, it will be decommissioned.

| Technical Information | |
|------------------------------------|--------------------------|
| FV Panel Type | Monocrystalline MONOPERC |
| FV Panel Power Output | 550 Wp |
| FV Panel Count | 5728 |
| Annual Degradation | %0,5 |
| Inverter Power Output | 100 kW |
| Inverter Count | 26 |
| Total DC Power | 3150,4 kWp |
| Total AC Power | 2640,0 kWe |
| Estimated Annual Energy Production | 5.557.305,6 kWh |
| Annual Energy Consumption | 5.557.305,6 kWh |
| Production/Consumption | %100 |

Table 1: Planned SPP Technical Details

Project Land Use Rights

The project site sole owner is Alaşehir Municipality. The project area is located on lot 1 of block 101 of the İsmetiye neighborhood (Annex 1). The total lot size is 55,964.50 square meters.

The Solar Power Plant (SPP) with an installed capacity of 2,640 kW will be connected to the grid through transformers of appropriate capacity and number. The letter of GDZ Electricity Distribution

Services is given in Annex 6.The electricity generated by the solar panels will be fed into the system via a connection to Pole No. 21 of the Berna Tarım Özel Transmission Line.¹ This line is part of the energy infrastructure located in Gülpınar Neighborhood, Alaşehir District, Manisa Province, as specified in the connection consent granted by AKT Energy Inc.

The necessary consent for grid connection was obtained through a notarized letter of approval issued by AKT Energy Inc. on May 21, 2025, and certified by İzmir 27th Notary Office. The consent covers the use of the energy transmission infrastructure for the benefit of the Alaşehir Municipality's solar power project, and the notarized documents are included in the Annex 7.

The solar power plant will transfer energy to the TEİAŞ grid via a dedicated substation. The Energy Transmission Line (ETL) crosses one private parcel—101 Block, Parcel 40. A right-of-way consent letter has been obtained from the landowner which is represented in Annex 8. The owner of the parcel was interviewed and the real estate market price of the pole area carrying the ETL for the easement right to be paid to the person was reported. The owner of the parcel stated that he did not want to receive the determined price. However, Alaşehir Municipality keeps this price in the bank account on behalf of the owner.

| Land Information | | | |
|---------------------------|----------------------------|--|--|
| Туре | Main Property | | |
| Province, District, Nbhd. | Manisa, Alaşehir, İsmetiye | | |
| Block, Lot | 101/1 | | |
| Total Area | 108.465,39 m ² | | |
| Right to Property Use | Alaşehir Municipality | | |
| EIA Status | There is no EIA required. | | |

Table 2: Planned SPP Land Information

Figure 3: The Energy Transmission Line



Figure 4: The Energy Transmission Line Route Plan

¹ The full transfer of all assets and liabilities of Berna Tarım Products Industry and Trade Inc. to AKT Energy Inc. was carried out through a simplified merger procedure in accordance with Articles 136 and subsequent articles of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102. This merger was officially announced in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette dated March 27, 2025, Issue No. 11033.



Photograph 1: SPP Sub-project Site Plan



Land Acquisition Principles

OP 4.12 (ILBANK, 2019) covers only the direct impacts of land acquisition and restrictions of access to legally designated parks and protected areas. "Direct impact" means any consequence immediately related to the taking of a parcel of land or to restrictions in the use of legally designated parks or protected areas. People directly affected by land acquisition may lose their home, farmland, property, business, or other means of livelihood. In other words, they lose their ownership, occupancy, or use rights, because of land acquisition or restriction of access. The key factor is that the state has taken some or all of the land that people owned, used, or occupied; or, in legally designated parks and protected areas, the state has limited people's use rights.

The simplest way to minimize resettlement is to design projects that minimize land acquisition, and the number of people affected by loss of land, by physical relocation, or by disruption of incomegenerating activities. All things being equal, facilities and transportation corridors, for example, are obviously better sited in or through areas with little or no population, to minimize the number of people affected. Of course, a host of economic, technical, and other factors must also be considered, so land acquisition and resettlement are often impossible to avoid altogether.

In this subproject, in line with the recommendations of the World Bank, an area that was unpopulated and owned by the municipality was selected. Therefore, there is no need for land acquisition and resettlement plans.

2. Environmental and Social Screening

The sub-project was prepared by adopting universal human rights and the accompanying concerns were resolved. Following loan approval, Alaşehir Municipality will initiate periodically monitored stakeholder participation processes and complaint procedures, taking into account this concern. The main purpose of the project is to meet the electricity needs of the district by utilizing clean energy, reduce input costs and provide economic contribution to various sectors.

There is no direct and negative impact on any social group from the project, which is located in a nonresidential area. With the Solar Power Plant (SPP) project, the electrical energy need will be met within the framework of social justice, without creating an unfair and discriminatory impact on the disadvantaged groups in the environment. Using renewable energy for electricity generation ensures efficient use of municipal resources, positively impacts the entire regional population and promotes inclusion.

During the project preparation phase, no concerns were expressed by women's associations/organizations regarding gender equality. The project is not expected to have a negative impact on gender equality, no restrictions are foreseen on women's abilities and it is ensured that there is no discriminatory impact based on gender. Activities do not pose a risk of degradation or depletion of natural resources in communities dependent on these resources.

The project promotes sustainability by harnessing solar energy, reducing dependence on nonrenewable fossil fuels and contributing to a more sustainable energy mix. Solar energy projects with lower environmental impact reduce air and water pollution, reduce carbon emissions and minimize their ecological footprint. Energy resilience and flexibility contribute to reducing volatility in energy prices by providing a stable energy source and contributing to stability in urban and rural areas. Incorporating solar energy into the urban energy mix provides diversity, increases energy security and resilience.

Utilizing renewable solar energy, the project aims to increase economic sustainability by reducing the municipality's electricity expenses. Renewable energy investments strengthen communities, promote employment opportunities, skills development and income diversification. Training activities for stakeholders during the construction and operation phases contribute to long-term sustainability by raising awareness and encouraging environmentally friendly behavior.

The project strengthens accountability through transparent decision-making, active participation, accessible information, responsive complaint mechanisms, regular reporting and open communication. Stakeholders participate in decision-making processes, provide collective input, and regular participation strengthens the sense of ownership and accountability. The project will establish a dedicated grievance mechanism (GM) which will be available through a toll-free hotline, email, and a GM within the municipality. This GM will be monitored regularly, and all grievances will be logged, reviewed, and addressed within a specified timeframe. A strong complaints mechanism addresses concerns and regular reporting and audits keep stakeholders informed. Also, public participation meetings will be held where local residents will be informed about the project and their opinions on the project will be gathered. The participation of the public will be ensured, and they will be informed about how to access grievance mechanisms in case of any issues. Measurable performance indicators increase transparency and accountability by allowing stakeholders to evaluate the project's success against criteria. Involving stakeholders in decision-making processes ensures inclusiveness and a sense of shared responsibility.

All details related to environmental and social screening are given in Annex 14.

3. Legal Framework

National Legal Framework

The WB's environmental and social safeguards policies require that the borrower country is expected to prepare an Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF), integrated with the Regulation on Environmental Impact Assessment (henceforth "EIA Regulation") (Official Gazette No. *31907*, July 29, 2022) (T.C. Cumhurbaşkanlığı Mevzuat Bilgi Sistemi, 2022) and WB's Operational Policies (İLBANK, 2019). Although the Turkish EIA Regulation does not entirely meet the requirements of international standards in terms of social impacts, there are some legal arrangements for managing several social impacts. In this respect, the following are identified to be a non-exhaustive list of social legal framework applicable for this project:

- Labor Law (No. 4857), published in the Official Gazette no. 25134 dated 10 June 2003
- Law on Occupational Health and Safety (No. 6331), published in the Official Gazette no. 28339 dated 30 June 2012
- Regulation on Contractors and Sub-contractors, published in the Official Gazette no. 27010 dated 27 September 2008

In terms of involuntary resettlement, the relevant legal arrangements of Türkiye are summarized below:

• Law No. 6203Expropriation Law, published in the Official Gazette no. 18215 dated 8 November 1983

Potential impact of the project on known cultural values in Turkish laws, as listed below:

- Law No. 2863 dated 21.07.1983 on the Protection of Cultural and Natural Assets (revised through the amendment issued on 27.07.2004 dated Official Gazette)
- The Regulation on Researches, Drillings and Excavations in Relation to the Cultural and Natural Assets, which was published in the Official Gazette No. 18485 dated 10.08.1994

Labor and Working Conditions:

- Human Resource Policy (dated January 4, 2013 in the Official Gazette numbered 28518) published by ILBANK
- Eligibility Criteria: The Law on Regulating Public Finance and Debt Management (Law No. 4749) restricts borrowing by any institution/municipality if it has overdue payments to Treasury.

In terms of stakeholder analysis:

- The Law on the Right to Information, Law no. 4982 dated November 25, 2014)
- The Law on the use of the Right to Petition, Law no. 3071 dated November 1, 1984
- The Law on the Protection of Personal, Law no. 6698 dated 24 March, 2016

Moreover, the project is the subject of the 30th clause of the "Regulation on Unlicensed Electricity Generation in the Electricity Market", published by the Energy Market Regulatory Authority no. 30772 on May 12, 2019 and amendment published on Official Gazette No: 31479 dated May 09, 2021, updated on Official Gazette No: 31920 dated August 11,2022, final update on Official Gazette No: 32120 dated March 02,2023. Article 1st Paragraph: " In order to meet the electricity needs of the consumption facilities, not exceeding the contractual power of the relevant consumption facilities in the connection agreement; Within the scope of subparagraph (h) of the first paragraph of Article 5, a production facility based on renewable energy sources may be established. Within the scope of this article, a production facility based on renewable energy sources may be established by public institutions and organizations within the scope of subparagraph (c) of the first paragraph of Article 5." Section 26 of the same regulation. In paragraph 30-(3) under the heading "Applications for consumption needs", referring to the article, it reads: "In the production facilities established within

the scope of this article, transactions are established within the scope of the fourth paragraph of Article 26 for surplus energy supplied to the grid during each billing period.

It is possible to explain offsetting as comparing the energy consumed monthly and the energy produced by the power plant and if there is excess production, selling this excess energy to the grid. The energy supplied to the network is sold at the unit price at which the subscriber receives the electricity, without considering the distribution price, also this sale is subject to tax.

Since the power plant to be established meets a small part of the municipality's consumption, no sales will take place. The municipality will continue to invest in this regard."

According to the regulation that entered into force on 11.08.2022, if the new power plants to be established in 2019 and after having made additional production at a value above the total amount of energy they consumed last year, this additional production will be given to the grid, free of charge. For example, if the consumer consumed 1 MWh of electricity last year and the solar power plant generates more than 1 MWh of excess energy (which means the energy after the consumption of consumer), up to 1 MWh the energy can be sold to the grid and if the produced energy exceeds 2 MWh (1 MWh for consumption and 1 MWh for sale), excess energy will be given to the grid free of charge.

Indirect and direct government incentives for solar power plants include:

- Article 24 of the Regulation on Unlicensed Electricity Generation in the Electricity Market (official newspaper no. 30772 dated May 12, 2019). It is stated that the surplus productions of Solar Power Plant will be purchased for 10 years at the price determined by the supply company by applying within the scope of 5c of the same regulation with the regulation in the article. The regulation's linking this purchase to a certain period is also considered an indirect incentive of the state.
- In addition, the fact that SPP applications based on self-consumption can be obtained in the same regulation is considered as an indirect incentive.

Laws, decrees and related legislations on which SPP installation and the feasibility are based;

- Law:
 - o Electricity Market, Law no. 6446 dated 14 March, 2013
 - o Environmental Law, Law No: 2872; Date of Ratification: 1983
- Decree:
 - President's Decision, Number of Decision 1044 (10.05.2019/30770)
- Regulation:
 - Regulation on Unlicensed Electricity Generation in the Electricity Market dated 12/5/2019 and numbered 30772 amendment published on Official Gazette No: 31479 dated May 09, 2021, updated on Official Gazette No: 31920 dated August 11,2022, final update on Official Gazette No: 32120 dated March 02,2023

International Legal Framework

The Environmental, Health, and Safety (EHS) Guidelines are technical reference documents of World Bank. When one or more members of the World Bank Group are involved in a project, these EHS Guidelines are applied as required by their respective policies and standards. These General EHS Guidelines are designed to be used together with the relevant Industry Sector EHS Guidelines which provide guidance to users on EHS issues in specific industry sectors. The EHS Guidelines contain the performance levels and measures that are generally considered to be achievable in new facilities by existing technology at reasonable costs. Application of the EHS Guidelines to existing facilities may involve the establishment of site-specific targets, with an appropriate timetable for achieving them. It is mandatory to comply with the EHS Guidelines in the ESMP prepared for this subproject, which is planned to be realized with World Bank financing. Besides, other mandatory international legal framework listed as:

- Operational Policies of World Bank (OP 4.01)
- 2010 Policy on Access to Information (for stakeholder analysis)
- Good Practice Note (GPN) on Addressing Sexual Exploitation and Abuse and Sexual Harassment (SEA/SH) (for stakeholder analysis)
- European Union Environment Policy
- ILO conventions

4. Baseline Data

Environmental Baseline

Location and Topography

Manisa province is located in the Aegean Region and is geographically located between 27 08' and 29 05' east longitudes and 38 04' and 39 58' north latitudes. It is surrounded by Uşak and Kütahya from the east, İzmir from the west, Balıkesir from the north, Aydın from the south and Denizli from the southeast. Its surface area is 13.810 km2. The elevation varies between 50 meters and 850 meters. The elevation increases as one goes east from the city center.

Alaşehir district is located in the northeast part of the Manisa province, and it is approximately 110 km away from Manisa province. It is surrounded by Salihli and Kula from the north, Sarıgöl from the southeast, and Kiraz district of İzmir from southwest.

According to conncetion power given in Table 1, Alaşehir Municipality will establish a solar power plant in İsmetiye Neighborhood, which is approximately 20 km away from Alaşehir District Central settlement and located to the northwest of the district center.



Figure 5: Geographical location of Manisa Province and Sub-Project Area

Figure 6: Alaşehir District Topography Map



Geography

Most of the provincial territory is located within the Gediz Basin and a small part is located in the Aegean (Bakır Çay) Basin in the northwest. The altitude of the city center is 71 m. The highest point in the center is Spil Mountain 1513 m high, the highest point in the province is Salihli Bozdağlar Kumpınar hill 2070 m high, and the highest district center is 850 m in Demirci District.

Manisa province covers 73% of the Gediz Basin. In Manisa province, all forms of landforms are encountered. Mountains cover 54% of the provincial area. This is followed by plateaus with 27.8% and plains with 17.9%. The average slope value between the mountains along the Gediz graben is between 0-5% and the average slope values in the northern and southern parts of the province are between 10-20%.

Alaşehir is located in the Aegean Region on three hills in the north-facing direction of Bozdağ Mountains. It is a district of Manisa province with a surface area of 977 km². Alaşehir district consists of a graben through which the Alaşehir River flows and the high plateaus and mountains bordering it from the south and north. There are four important geomorphologic units within the geographical area of the district. These geomorphologic units are the Bozdağlar mass in the south, the Uysal Mountains mass in the north, the Alaşehir plain between these two mountain masses, and the rugged Uluderbent stream valley in the southeast.





Climate

Manisa has a Mediterranean climate and the continental climate characteristics of Central Anatolia. While the plains and the valleys surrounding the plains have a continental Mediterranean climate, the high mountainous regions and plateaus and the mountains and plateaus in the north and northeast have the effects of the continental climate of Central Anatolia.

The location of Alaşehir is a transition from Mediterranean to continental climate. In Alaşehir, which generally has a mild climate, the summer months are quite hot and dry. In summer, the temperature in the region reaches up to 40 degrees. The average annual rainfall of the district is 274 mm, the average annual temperature is 16.8 degrees. The highest temperature is 44 degrees, the lowest temperature is -8.8 degrees, and the average relative humidity is 54%.

In Manica province, precipitation is usually seen in the winter months, while summers are hot and dry. The average annual rainfall is 82 days, the most precipitation falls in December and the least precipitation falls in August, and the average rainfall is 408 mm.

According to the Solar Energy Potential Atlas, Türkiye's average annual total sunshine duration is 2,737 hours, daily total is 7.5 hours, and annual total incoming solar energy is 1,527 kWh/m2/year. It is seen that Alaşehir's average solar radiation throughout the year is in the range of 1550-1600 KWh/m2/year (Figure 8). Global radiation values are over 6.00 KW/m2/day in June, July, and over 5.00 KWh/m2/day in a total of 5 months from April to the end of August (Graphic 1).

In Alaşehir, the month with the longest sunshine duration (11.80 hours) is July, and the shortest sunshine duration (4.06 hours) is December. Generally, the duration of sunshine is above 7 hours in seven months (from April to October) throughout the year in most seasons. Since the district's sunshine duration is similar to Türkiye average, it turns out that project area in Alaşehir is an important investment area for solar energy.





Graphic 1: a) Alaşehir District Radiation Values b) Alaşehir District sunshine Times c) Alaşehir PV type-Area-Energy That Can Be Produced



Flora

46% of Manisa province's territory is covered with forests and maquis, there are many tree species, the majority of which are larch. 39.1% of the provincial territory consists of cultivated and planted land, 6.6% of it consists of meadows and pastures, and 8% of it consists of areas unsuitable for agriculture. In recent years, olive grafting, menengice pistachio grafting, walnut, chestnut, and pistachio pine cultivation have become widespread to positively affect the natural vegetation in high areas and to provide economic benefits. Spil Mountain is one of the regions that differ in terms of vegetation in Manisa. Around 600 plant species have been identified in the National Park on the mountain. There are around 4.3 million olive trees and nearly 56 thousand hectares of vineyards in Manisa (Manisa Metropolitan Municipality, 2024)

There are 29.285 hectares of forest area in Alaşehir. Other land consists of meadow pastures, vineyard gardens, field crops, and unused areas. The vegetation adapts to the climate. The main products

grown due to the fertile soils of the plain are seedless grapes, cotton, tobacco, cereals, vegetables, and fruits. It is one of the most fertile plains of Türkiye, where all kinds of crops are grown.

To the north of the parcel 101/1, which is the facility area, Salihli-Mevlütlü Cadastral border, there are empty non-agricultural lands and planted agricultural land (newly planted olive garden), olive planted field to the east, empty non-agricultural lands to the south and west, and olive planted field to the east.



Photograph 2: SPP Project Area

Photograph 3: Surrounding of the SPP Project Area



Earthquake Risks

There are important active faults in Manisa. Manisa Fault, located on the Gediz Graben (GG), is 40 km long and passes through Yunusemre and Şehzadeler districts and Turgutlu district in the city center.

Gediz Graben Fault System is 140 km long. Gediz Graben Fault System extends from Manisa to Sarıgöl. The following segment is reported to continue until Denizli, totaling approximately 200 km. The fault system extends along the southern margin of the Gediz graben. It has a dominant normal fault character. Alaşehir earthquake on March 28, 1969, with magnitude M=6.9 and Kütahya-Gediz earthquake on March 28, 1970 with magnitude M:7.2 (AFAD, 2021).

When the seismicity map of Manisa Province, which includes 74,000 earthquakes for the last 30 years covering the period after 1990, is analyzed, it is seen that the majority of the earthquakes are clustered in the first 25 km of the earth's crust and are mainly concentrated in the NW part of the province, especially between Soma and Gölmarmara. Most of the earthquakes of magnitude 5 and above occur on this line (AFAD, 2021)

The SPP Sub-project area is located in the Alaşehir district, İsmetiye Neighborhood. There are active fault lines in the district center and around the project area. Alaşehir district is in the 1st degree earthquake risk area. According to the Türkiye Earthquake Hazard Map, Alaşehir District is located between 0.4-0.5 in terms of seismicity. When the sub-project area is examined based on the "Türkiye Earthquake Hazard Map" that came into effect with the Cabinet's decision dated 22.01.2018 and numbered 2018/11275, it is observed that the largest ground acceleration value is approximately around 0.463 PG (Figure 10).

Figure 9: Faults in Alaşehir and its Region, General Directorate of Mineral Research and Exploration (MTA)



Figure 10:Earthquake Hazard Map of Sub-Project Area and Surroundings, Türkiye Earthquake Hazard Maps Interactive Web Application, 2024, (https://tdth.afad.gov.tr)²

² Hazard map showing the PGA value created for a 10% probability of exceedance in 50 years (475 years of recurrence)



*Türkiye Earthquake Zones Map, which came into force with the decision of the Council of Ministers dated 18.4.1996 and numbered 96/8109, was abolished on 01.01.2019. The New Türkiye Earthquake Hazard Map and Building Earthquake Regulation was published in the Official Gazette No. 30364 on 18 March 2018 and entered into force on 01.01.2019.

Hydrology and Flood Risks

Manisa is located within the borders of the Gediz Basin and the North Aegean basin. The Gediz Basin is located in the west of Anatolia, between 26°42' - 29°45' east longitude and 38°04' - 39°13' north latitude and constitutes 2.2% of Türkiye's surface area. The Gediz Basin covers an area of 17 145 km2. The circumference of the basin is 1 281 km, and the length of the basin is 250 km. The average annual precipitation of the Gediz Basin is calculated as 555.0 mm.

The district consists of a graben through which the Alaşehir River flows and very high plateaus and mountains bordering it from the south and north. Although Alaşehir Stream has no significant streams flowing from north to south, it has streams flowing from south to north such as Alaşehir Derbendi, Buldan Derbendi, Sarıkızçayı, Zeytin Stream, Avra Stream, Şahyar Stream, Alkan Stream, Kurudere, Değirmendere and Göbekli Stream.

The project area is outside the irrigation basin of SHW. According to Ground Survey Report, there is a dry stream in the project area (Photograph 1). In order to prevent the parcel from being affected by stream flooding, a 6-meter-wide road should be reserved on the parcel side with a hydrologically sufficient strip-like area that can pass the flood flow from both sides of the passing stream. Flood control and protection measures should be taken in the stream bed.

Figure 11:National Water Information System (USBS) Alaşehir Hydrology Analysis Map



Social Baseline

Demography

Manisa province has a total of 17 districts. Manisa has a surface area of 13.269 km² and 109 people per square kilometer. Manisa population density is 109/km². The surface area of Alaşehir district is 977 km². The population of the district, which was 33.010 thousand in 1927, increased 3 times in 2000 and reached 93 thousand. The population of the district increased continuously until 1997 and the average annual population growth rate was 2.9%. It is also observed that the population growth in the rural areas almost stopped after 1985.

Since villages became neighborhoods due to the metropolitan law, rural population has not been included in the table since 2013. Alaşehir is the 7th largest district of Manisa province with a population of 105.397 people. There are 87 neighborhoods connected to the district. Ismetiye neighborhood has a population of 240 people in 2023.

| Year | Urban | Rural | Total | Year | Urban | Rural | Total |
|------|-------|-------|-------|------|--------|-------|--------|
| 1927 | 7183 | 25827 | 33010 | 2009 | 47942 | 51909 | 99851 |
| 1935 | 8375 | 31788 | 40163 | 2010 | 54082 | 51562 | 105644 |
| 1940 | 8198 | 33768 | 41966 | 2011 | 47722 | 51388 | 99110 |
| 1945 | 8883 | 36909 | 45792 | 2012 | 48147 | 50998 | 99145 |
| 1950 | 10719 | 42333 | 53062 | 2013 | 99504 | | 99504 |
| 1955 | 11393 | 48041 | 59434 | 2014 | 99962 | | 99962 |
| 1960 | 13924 | 34756 | 48680 | 2015 | 100254 | | 100254 |
| 1965 | 16012 | 41001 | 57013 | 2016 | 101313 | | 101313 |
| 1970 | 20075 | 44760 | 64835 | 2017 | 102731 | | 102731 |
| 1975 | 23243 | 46695 | 69938 | 2018 | 104507 | | 104507 |
| 1980 | 25611 | 49332 | 74943 | 2019 | 104622 | | 104622 |
| 1985 | 29484 | 53109 | 82593 | 2020 | 105145 | | 105145 |
| 1990 | 36649 | 54713 | 91362 | 2021 | 105380 | | 105380 |
| 2000 | 39590 | 54170 | 93760 | 2022 | 104717 | | 104717 |
| 2007 | 45971 | 51570 | 97541 | 2023 | 105397 | | 105397 |
| 2008 | 46544 | 51999 | 98543 | | | | |

| | Table 3: Alaşehir | Population | by Years | ((TÜİK, 2024)) |
|--|-------------------|------------|----------|-----------------|
|--|-------------------|------------|----------|-----------------|





Cultural Heritage

Alaşehir district and its surroundings have been home to important settlements throughout history. Among the historical artifacts that have survived from Alaşehir are the Church of St. John of Philadelfiya (also known as "Philadephia St. Jean Church" for tourism), the remains of the Byzantine city walls, Yıldırım Bayezid Mosque, Sheikh Sinan Mosque and Tomb, Güdük Minare Mosque, Yağhane Mosque, Kadı Sheikh Mosque and Tomb, Rahmanlı Dede (in Tepeköy neighborhood).

In the İsmetiye neighborhood, there is İsmetiye Tumulus which is approximately 3 km away from SPP project area. There are no cultural assets in the SPP sub-project area.



Figure 12: Cultural Assets in Alaşehir District Center and SPP Sub-project Area (Culture Inventory, 2019)

Economic Sectors and Facilities

The economy of the district is based on agriculture, animal husbandry and industry. The main agricultural products grown are grapes, tobacco, cotton, cereals, pears and olives. Cattle and sheep are raised in animal husbandry. There are also 150 grape export companies, 80 grape enterprises, Tariş Grape Integrated Facilities, Suma Factory and Sarıkız Mineral Water Factory.

Alaşehir's economy is entirely based on agriculture and almost half of the agricultural areas are vineyards. Although it varies from year to year, an average of 55-60 tons of seedless raisins and 60000 tons of table sultanas are grown in Alaşehir and its region. In addition to viticulture, cereals, tobacco, fruit growing (chestnuts, walnuts, cherries, pomegranates, apples) and a small number of small cattle breeding and beekeeping play an active role in Alaşehir's economy (Alaşehir Municipality, 2024). Industry does not occupy a large place in Alaşehir economy. The most important industrial sector: Tariş Grape Integrated Grape Facility, which employs 530 people in a total area of 44.250 m2 with a closed area of 23.900 m2. It has a capacity of 65000 tons of raisins. Fresh vegetable and fruit processing centers established during the crop season are a good economic source for Alaşehir. Tile factories and chicken farms are small industrialists. Greenhouse cultivation, which will make a great contribution to the economy of Alaşehir, has become widespread in recent years.

5. Environmental and Social Management Plan

Mitigation Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction and Operation Phases of the Project

| Phase Impact and Likelihood (1-5) | Risk Description | Mitigation Measures | Responsibility | Key Performance Indicators | Cost |
|--|--|--|--|---|-----------------------------------|
| Land Preparation Phase I = 4 L = 2 | Risk 1: Stripping of the Vegetative Topsoil Layer and Soil Compaction | Implement re-vegetation plans using native species. Application of organic soil conditioners to restore soil fertility. Adjust construction equipment to minimize soil compaction. Implement proper construction techniques and compaction control. Creation of protection zone around the project site | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Land Preparation Phase I = 2 L=2 | Risk 2: The possibility of discovering artifacts or other cultural and historical items of value. | Discontinuing all works. Contact responsible authorities. Organizing all necessary measures to protect the location. No works to proceed until official notification is received. Chance Finds Procedures will be prepared prior to construction works. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant Manisa Museum | Visual observations | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 3: Leakage of Contaminants into the Soil and Waste and Chemical Storage | Develop spill response and cleanup procedures. Provide spill containment kits at refueling areas. Implement proper storage practices for waste and chemicals. Install secondary containment systems. Develop and implement an emergency response plan outlining the steps to be taken in the event of a leak or spill | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 4: Noise Resulting from Temporary Traffic Load Noise Caused by Construction Vehicles and Equipment · Vibration Effects | Implement traffic management plans to reduce congestion and optimize routes; use noise barriers, if necessary, to reduce noise propagation Schedule noisy construction activities during the daytime; Equip vehicles and machinery with noise-reduction technologies. Set vibration limits for construction activities. Notify and compensate affected property owners for any damage | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Traffic Grievance Records Visual observations (such as traffic signs and warnings are placed at appropriate locations) ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | • Risk 5: Dust and Exhaust Emissions from Soil Excavation, Vehicle Traffic and Equipment | Implement dust control measures, such as watering construction areas. Use dust screens or barriers to prevent dust dispersion. . Promote the use of eco-friendly construction equipment. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Traffic Grievance Records Visual observations (such as traffic | Included in the subproject budget |

Table 4: Mitigation Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction Phase of the Project

| Phase Impact and Likelihood | Risk Description | Mitigation Measures | Responsibility | Key Performance Indicators | Cost |
|--|---|--|---|--|--------------------------------------|
| (1-5) | | | | | |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 6: Temporary Blockage of Transportation Roads between Settlements Traffic Vehicles Cause Destruction on Roads and Buildings | Pave or stabilize dirt roads to reduce dust emissions. Enforce speed limits to minimize dust generation. Maintain vehicles to reduce emissions. Use low-emission or electric vehicles whenever possible. Encourage the adoption of clean fuel options. Develop an emissions control and reporting program. Plan construction schedules to minimize road closures. Provide alternative routes for affected communities. Communicate road closures in advance to residents. Employ regular road maintenance and repair. Ensure construction vehicle operators follow road safety guidelines. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | signs and warnings are placed at appropriate locations) ESMR Findings Traffic Grievance Records Visual observations (such as traffic signs and warnings are placed at appropriate locations) ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase | Risk 7: Community | Fence the subproject area, approach areas, and storage areas to | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU | Visual | Included in the |
| l = 2 L = 2 | health and safety during the execution | prevent unauthorized access. | Contractor and/or subcontractor | observations ESMR Findings | subproject budget |
| L – Z | of works | Provide clear signage to warn the public of construction activities. Implement dust control measures to minimize air quality impact. | Supervision Consultant | ESIVIR FILIULIIS | |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 8: • Chemical Spills and Leaks • Improper Storage and Disposal of Materials • Inadequate Stormwater Management • Inadequate Hazardous Material Handling | Establish safe delivery/storage/handling procedures in accordance with material safety data sheets (MSDSs) Immediately contain and clean-up any spilled material. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Construction Phase I = 4 L=2 | · Risk 9: Earthquake Risk | Parameters suitable for 1st degree earthquake zones should be taken into consideration in construction. During construction, current earthquake safety standards and regulations must be followed. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor | Visual observations Records | Included in the subproject budget |

| Phase Risk Description Impact and Likelihood (1-5) | | Mitigation Measures | Responsibility | Key Performance Indicators | Cost |
|--|--|--|---|--|-----------------------------------|
| | | • The design of the solar power plant should be made considering the earthquake resistance in accordance with the earthquake risk of the region. | Supervision Consultant | | |
| Construction Phase I = 2 L=2 | • Risk 10: Possibility of floods due to excessive rainfall | In order to prevent soil erosion at the construction site, precautions such as temporary coatings, sedimentation ponds and erosion control barriers should be taken. A water management plan should be created to regulate water management at the construction site and control flood waters. Construction materials and equipment should be stored safely, considering the flood risk. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase I = 1 L=1 | • Risk 11: Reflection and Glare Effect | • Establish criteria or thresholds that, when exceeded, trigger the need for mitigation measures. For example, if glare affects specific areas or receptor points significantly, mitigation measures should be initiated. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Constructional Phase I = 4 L=1 | • Risk 12: Effects on Workforce and OHS | Shaping early detection mechanisms based on results of monitoring measures, Legal and regular training, Utilization of occupational health and safety equipment, Regular worker health checks, OHS Site management Plan, Risk Assessment, Emergency Plan Control of working hours and work permits, Regular safety inspections. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Sub-contractor Agreements Grievance Records ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |

| Phase Impact and Likelihood (1-5) | Risk Description | Mitigation Measures | Responsibility | Key Performance Indicators | Cost |
|---|---|--|---|---|-----------------------------------|
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | • Risk 3: Leakage of Contaminants into the Soil and Waste and Chemical Storage | Wastes generated should only be temporarily stored on site in the temporary storage area that is maintained/equipped with appropriate precautions according to the type of wastes, when needed, and wastes should be transported to licensed disposal facilities with licensed transport vehicles appropriate to the type of waste. Information related to the operations in this context should be recorded and records should be kept. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | • Risk 5: Dust and Exhaust Emissions, Vehicle Traffic and Equipment | . Vehicles and equipment used during the operation phase will undergo regular maintenance, with maintenance records being kept. Whenever possible, electric-powered vehicles and equipment will be used instead of those powered by fossil fuels | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Traffic Grievance Records Visual observations (such as traffic signs and warnings are placed at appropriate locations) ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | Risk 8: • Chemical Spills and Leaks • Improper Storage and Disposal of Materials • Inadequate Hazardous Material Handling • Inadequate handling of waste PV modules | Wastes generated should only be temporarily stored on site in the temporary storage area that is maintained/equipped with appropriate precautions according to the type of wastes, when needed, and wastes should be transported to licensed disposal facilities with licensed transport vehicles appropriate to the type of waste. Information related to the operations in this context should be recorded and records should be kept. Develop Disposal of Waste PV Modules Management Plan Develop Recycling of Project Equipment/Materials Management Plan | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I=1 L=3 | · Risk 9: Earthquake Risk | Backup plans should be created for the devices and systems used in the solar power plant. Power supplies must be provided for emergencies. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations Records | Included in the subproject budget |

Table 5: Mitigation Plan for the Operational Phase

| Phase Impact and Likelihood (1-5) | Risk Description | Mitigation Measures | Responsibility | Key Performance Indicators | Cost |
|---|--|---|---|--|-----------------------------------|
| Operational Phase I=1 L=1 | • Risk 10: Possibility of floods due to excessive rainfall | Flood risk should be reduced by establishing an effective water management and drainage system during the operation phase of the solar power plant. If necessary, facilities such as regulators for flood control should be constructed in the operation area. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I=3 L=3 | • Risk 11: Reflection and Glare Effect | Develop a detailed procedure for monitoring glare and reflection, including responsibilities, schedules, and data collection methods and regularly report the findings and progress of glare and reflection control measures. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Visual observations ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I = 3 L=1 | • Risk 12: Effects on Workforce and OHS | For sub-projects that may have labor influx issues, camp sites should be arranged to properly accommodate workers and meet their needs within the camp site. Workers must be provided with relevant trainings as needed. Workers will sign and receive a training on the Code of Conduct. Nearby communities will be consulted regarding the locations of the work camp. Develop Labor Management Plan | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Sub-contractor Agreements Grievance Records ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |
| Operational Phase I = 2 L=2 | • Risk 13: Storage of Damaged or End of Lifecycle Panels | Develop a procedure for temporary storage of damaged or end- of-lifecycle panels on site in secured areas. Ensure proper delivery to specified recycling areas. | Alaşehir Municipality/PIU Contractor and/or subcontractor Supervision Consultant | Sub-contractor Agreements Grievance Records ESMR Findings | Included in the subproject budget |

Monitoring Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction and Operation Phases of the Project

| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|--|---|--|---|---|---|---|--|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| Land Preparation Phase I = 4 L = 2 | Risk 1: Stripping of the Vegetative Topsoil Layer and Soil Compaction | Analysis organic matter content and compaction levels of soil in the project site regularly. | Soil Organic Matter Content Soil compaction levels | Sampling and laboratory analysis Soil compaction tests | Project site Areas with construction and traffic intensity | Before and after topsoil stripping Periodic checks during and after construction | Any significant decrease in soil organic matter content Soil compaction beyond allowable limits |
| Land Preparation Phase I = 2 L=2 | Risk 2: The possibility of discovering artifacts or other cultural and historical items of value. | · Coordinate with relevant regulatory authorities and heritage preservation agencies to ensure compliance with cultural heritage protection regulations | · Chance findings | Coordination with the Museum affiliated to the Ministry. | · Project Site | | Once a chance finding discovered |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 3: Leakage of Contaminants into the Soil and Waste and Chemical Storage | • Analysis contaminants and waste in the soil of the project site regularly. | • Presence of oil, lubricants, or fuels in soil. | Visual inspection, soil sampling, and soil analysis if necessary. . | Areas near equipment refueling stations and vehicle storage. Near waste and chemical storage areas | Regular checks during refueling and maintenance | · Presence of contaminants |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 4: Noise Resulting from Temporary Traffic Load Noise Caused by Construction Vehicles and Equipment | Conduct periodic sound level measurements at key locations in areas with traffic during construction. Regularly measure noise levels during equipment operation in areas with equipment activities. | Noise levels generated by traffic. Noise levels generated by traffic. Structural and superficial damage from vibrations | Sound level measurement Visual inspections and structural assessments. | Areas with traffic during construction Areas with equipment operation. Buildings near construction areas. | Periodic measurements during construction. Regular structural assessments during construction. | Noise levels exceeding acceptable limits. Vibration and noise exceeding allowable levels. Signs of structural or superficial damage. |

Table 6: Monitoring Plan for the Land Preparation, Construction Phases of the Project

| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|---|--|---|---|---|---|---|--|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 5: Dust and Exhaust Emissions from Soil Excavation, Vehicle Traffic and Equipment | Continuous measurement of dust concentration and particulate matter (PM) emissions using air quality monitoring equipment in construction areas with soil excavation. Periodic air quality measurements along traffic routes in traffic-prone areas within the site. Periodic emission measurements from the exhaust systems of vehicles and construction equipment in vehicle operation areas. | Dust concentration and particulate matter (PM) emissions. Dust concentration and particulate matter (PM) emissions. Emissions from vehicles and construction equipment. | Dust concentration measurements using air quality monitoring equipment. Air quality measurements along traffic routes. Emission measurements from the exhaust systems | Construction areas with soil excavation Traffic-prone areas within the site Vehicle operation areas | Continuous monitoring during excavation activities Periodic measurements during project activities Periodic emissions testing during construction and operation | Dust levels exceeding acceptable thresholds. Emissions exceeding permissible levels |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 6: Temporary Blockage of Transportation Roads between Settlements Traffic Vehicles Cause Destruction on Roads and Buildings | Analyzing road blockages, duration, and frequency through real-time assessments of transportation routes. Analyzing damages to roads and buildings by conducting periodic visual assessments in areas where construction vehicles operate. | Road blockages, duration, and frequency. Damage to roads and buildings | Record road closure incidents and duration. Visual inspections, documenting damages. | Vehicle operation areas. Transportation routes. Areas where construction vehicles operate. | Periodic emissions testing during construction and operation. Real-time monitoring of road conditions. Periodic visual assessments | Road closures exceeding acceptable frequency. Occurrence of damages to roads and buildings beyond permissible levels. |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 7: Community Health and Safety During Execution of Works | Regular inspections of fenced areas and signage to ensure they are maintained and effective. Monitoring of work hours to ensure that activities are conducted outside of high- traffic or operational hours. | Condition and visibility of fencing and signage. Compliance with established work hours. Security of approach and storage areas. | regular audits, air quality sampling | Approach roads, storage areas, and work sites within the project boundary. | Daily during construction activities. Weekly (dust monitoring.) Ad hoc inspections based on complaints or identified risks. | Breach in fencing or unauthorized access. Deviation from work hours. Dust levels exceeding standards. |

| Phase Impact and Likelihood | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|---|--|---|---|---|--|--|---|
| (1-5) | | Inspection of approach areas and storage areas to verify they are secured and inaccessible to unauthorized personnel. Periodic checks for dust levels to ensure compliance with air quality standards. | in the surrounding environment | | | | |
| Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Risk 8: • Chemical Spills and Leaks • Improper Storage and Disposal of Materials • Inadequate Stormwater Management • Inadequate Hazardous Material Handling | Monitor and control chemical levels and respond to incidents | Chemical concentrations | Visual inspection and periodic manual testing. . | Areas where chemicals are stored, handled, or processed . | • Regular inspections | Immediate response to any signs of leakage or contamination . . |
| Construction Phase I = 4 L=1 | Risk 9: Earthquake Risk | Earthquake activities should be constantly monitored with sensitive earthquake sensors and monitoring systems placed in the project area. Continuous monitoring systems should be established for solar power panels, support structures, inverters and other structural elements. Structural strengthening works should be carried out within a certain period in order to minimize the damages that may occur | Liquefaction rates Soil classification earthquake design classes settlement suitability data | Ground survey Structural strengthening | Project Site and surrounding areas | Continuous monitoring with real-time updates. Continuous monitoring with real-time or periodic reviews. • Immediate reporting for any incidents and periodic documentation for routine checks | Alarming system according to the earthquake intensity Ground movement sensor Remote sensing technologies, such as energy distribution |

| Phase Impact and | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|---|--|---|---|---|--|--|---|
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| | | under the influence of earthquakes. | | | | | |
| Construction Phase I = 2 L=2 | Risk 10: Possibility of floods due to excessive rainfall | Follow up weather forecasting services to receive timely and accurate information about potential heavy rainfall. | Monitor the intensity of rainfall, from the closest meteorological station data measured in millimeters per hour. This parameter helps assess how quickly precipitation is accumulating and if it reaches levels that may lead to flooding. | Ground-based rain gauges, weather radar, and satellite precipitation estimates can be used. | Project Site and areas where the workforce is most active and where with heavy equipment use | Regular and ongoing monitoring during periods of intense rainfall events | Monitor changes in rainfall and water level with scales and indicators from the closest meteorological station data |
| Constructional Phase I = 4 L=1 | Risk 12 Effects on Workforce and OHS | To establish an incident reporting system and encourage its use by employees for reporting and documenting workplace incidents, Regular health assessments according to 6331 Law, its regulation and WB ESP to monitor employees' health conditions and facilitate prompt intervention or preventive measures for emerging health issues, Periodically identifying factors contributing to workplace stress and conducting workplace stress surveys to eliminate stressors, | · Workforce health and safety indicators, including accident rates, workplace stress levels, and health-related incidents/ near misses, injuries, and safety violations/near misses, fire and environmental incidents/near misses | Data collection through incident reports, health assessments, safety inspections, accident investigations and surveys | Project site and areas where the workforce is most active and where with heavy equipment use | Regular and ongoing monitoring during periods of intense construction and operation activities | • Define thresholds for incident rates and workforce stress levels that warrant corrective action |
| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|------------|------------------|--|------------|--------|--------------------|-----------|------------------|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| | | Regular inspections by | | | | | |
| | | relevant regulatory | | | | | |
| | | authorities to identify | | | | | |
| | | potential hazards in the | | | | | |
| | | construction area and | | | | | |
| | | alleviate the physical and | | | | | |
| | | mental fatigue of workers | | | | | |
| | | during intensive | | | | | |
| | | construction periods, | | | | | |
| | | · Conducting emergency drills | | | | | |
| | | to ensure swift action in | | | | | |
| | | case of emergencies, and | | | | | |
| | | ensuring that all employees | | | | | |
| | | are familiar with evacuation | | | | | |
| | | procedures and emergency | | | | | |
| | | protocols, | | | | | |
| | | · Maintaining effective and | | | | | |
| | | transparent communication | | | | | |
| | | among employees, | | | | | |
| | | employers, and relevant | | | | | |
| | | stakeholders, establishing continuous communication | | | | | |
| | | channels for reporting any | | | | | |
| | | safety concerns or issues, | | | | | |
| | | • Monitoring and regulating | | | | | |
| | | working and break hours to | | | | | |
| | | prevent excessive fatigue, | | | | | |
| | | ensuring that employees | | | | | |
| | | take regular breaks. | | | | | |
| | | lake regular preaks. | | l | | 1 | 1 |

| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|---------------------------------------|--|---|---|---|---|---|--|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | Risk 3: Leakage of Contaminants into the Soil and Waste and Chemical Storage | Analysis contaminants and waste in the soil of the project site regularly. | Presence of oil, lubricants, or fuels in soil. . | Visual inspection, soil sampling, and analysis if necessary. . | refueling stations and vehicle storage. Near waste and chemical storage areas | Regular checks during refueling and maintenance | Presence of contaminants |
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | Risk 5: Exhaust Emissions from Soil Excavation, Vehicle Traffic and Equipment | Regular maintenance checks on vehicle and equipment exhaust systems. Monitoring of air quality parameters using basic portable devices in critical areas. | Exhaust emissions levels PM (Particulate Matter) concentration | Periodic visual inspections Maintenance records and periodic exhaust testing | High-traffic areas within the site . | After significant maintenance Monthly or quarterly | Visible dust accumulation or emissions beyond acceptable levels Emissions exceeding permissible levels |
| Operational Phase I = 1 L =1 | Risk 8: • Chemical Spills and Leaks • Improper Storage and Disposal of Materials • Inadequate Stormwater Management Inadequate Hazardous Material Handling | Regular visual inspections of chemical storage areas Ensure proper labeling and secure storage of all chemicals. Monitor stormwater systems for any signs of contamination Train staff on basic hazardous material handling and emergency response procedures. | • Visible leaks or spills | Visual inspection Periodic checks Soil analysis in case of any contamination incident | Chemical storage and handling areas Designated storage areas | Weekly daily inspection After heavy rain events | Immediate response to any signs of leaks or spills Immediate corrective action if contamination is detected |
| Operational Phase I=1 | Risk 10: Possibility of floods due to excessive rainfall | Regular visual checks of drainage pathways to | Surface Water flow Drainage efficiency | Weather radar, and satellite precipitation | Project Site and areas where the workforce is most active and | Regular and ongoing monitoring | detect changes in rainfall and water |

Table 7: Monitoring Plan for the Operational Phase

| Phase Impact and Likelihood | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|---|--|--|--|
| (1-5) L=1 | | ensure they are clear of debris. • Ensure basic grading and slope management to avoid water pooling in low-lying areas. | | estimates can be used. · Visual inspections · | where with heavy equipment use · Low-lying areas within the project site | during periods of intense rainfall events | level with scales and indicators • Blockages or debris in drainage pathways |
| Operational Phase I=3 L=3 | Risk 11: Reflection and Glare Effect | Implement visual monitoring protocols to observe and record glare and reflection events. Use specialized glare measurement tools to provide quantitative data. Conduct monitoring during different times of the day and under various weather conditions to capture variations. | • The intensity and frequency of glare and reflection from the solar panels and surrounding areas and the times of the day, seasons, or specific weather conditions when glare and reflection effects are most pronounced. | • The intensity and frequency of glare and reflection from the solar panels and surrounding areas and the times of the day, seasons, or specific weather conditions when glare and reflection effects are most pronounced. | • The intensity and frequency of glare and reflection from the solar panels and surrounding areas. | • The intensity and frequency of glare and reflection from the solar panels and surrounding areas. | • Define specific detection limits that indicate the threshold beyond which glare, and reflection effects become significant and may require corrective action. |
| Operational Phase I = 3 L=1 | Risk 12: Effects on Workforce and OHS | To establish an incident reporting system and encourage its use by employees for reporting and documenting workplace incidents, Regular health assessments according to 6331 Law, its regulation and WB ESP to monitor employees' health conditions and facilitate prompt intervention or preventive measures for emerging health issues, Periodically identifying factors contributing to | • Workforce health and safety indicators, including accident rates, workplace stress levels, and health-related incidents/ near misses, injuries, and safety violations/near misses, fire and environmental incidents/near misses | Data collection through incident reports, health assessments, safety inspections, accident investigations and surveys | Project site and areas where the workforce is most active and where with heavy equipment use | Regular and ongoing monitoring during periods of intense construction and operation activities | • Define thresholds for incident rates and workforce stress levels that warrant corrective action |

| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|-------------|---------------------|---|-----------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|------------------------------------|------------------|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| | | workplace stress and | | | | | |
| | | conducting workplace stress | | | | | |
| | | surveys to eliminate | | | | | |
| | | stressors, | | | | | |
| | | Regular inspections by | | | | | |
| | | relevant regulatory | | | | | |
| | | authorities to identify | | | | | |
| | | potential hazards in the | | | | | |
| | | construction area and | | | | | |
| | | alleviate the physical and | | | | | |
| | | mental fatigue of workers during intensive | | | | | |
| | | construction periods, | | | | | |
| | | · Conducting emergency drills | | | | | |
| | | to ensure swift action in | | | | | |
| | | case of emergencies, and | | | | | |
| | | ensuring that all employees | | | | | |
| | | are familiar with evacuation | | | | | |
| | | procedures and emergency | | | | | |
| | | protocols, | | | | | |
| | | Maintaining effective and | | | | | |
| | | transparent communication | | | | | |
| | | among employees, | | | | | |
| | | employers, and relevant | | | | | |
| | | stakeholders, establishing | | | | | |
| | | continuous communication | | | | | |
| | | channels for reporting any | | | | | |
| | | safety concerns or issues, | | | | | |
| | | Monitoring and regulating | | | | | |
| | | working and break hours to | | | | | |
| | | prevent excessive fatigue, | | | | | |
| | | ensuring that employees | | | | | |
| | | take regular breaks. | | | | | |
| Operational | Risk 13: Storage of | Analysis of storage | · Condition of stored | Visual inspection | · Temporary storage | Regular checks | Presence of |
| Phase | Damaged or End of | conditions and recycling | panels | | areas on site | | damaged panels |
| | Lifecycle Panels | processes regularly. | | | | | |

| Phase | Risk Description | Monitoring Measures | Parameters | Method | Sampling Locations | Frequency | Detection Limits |
|------------|-------------------------|---------------------|------------|--------|--------------------|-----------|------------------|
| Impact and | | | | | | | |
| Likelihood | | | | | | | |
| (1-5) | | | | | | | |
| l = 2 | | | | | | | beyond allowable |
| L=2 | | | | | | | limits |
| | | | | | | | |

Measures for Institutional Arrangements, Capacity Development, and Training

In the context of the Sub-Project aiming to increase renewable energy production in the Alaşehir district, institutional arrangements for managing environmental and social issues need to be established to ensure its implementation with minimized potential impacts. In the Environmental and Social Management Framework of the World Bank's Sustainable Cities Project-II Additional Financing (World Bank, 2019), ILBANK Project Management Unit (PMU), and the project owner municipalities are identified as key actors. Roles and capacities of actors are defined, and necessary adjustments are made for the effective implementation of sub-projects. For the SPP project to be constructed in the Alaşehir district, the main actors are the World Bank, ILBANK, Alaşehir Municipality, Contractor, Supervision Consultant, and E&S Consultant.

Alaşehir Municipality

Renewable energy projects in Alaşehir Municipality are managed by the Technical Works Directorate with a staff of three, including an environmental engineer, a civil engineer, and a land surveyor. There is currently no unit used as a complaint mechanism in Alaşehir Municipality. According to the ESMP, the Technical Works Directorate, Research Project Directorate, Plan-Project Directorate, Headman Affairs, Human Resources and Training Directorate, and Culture and Social Affairs Directorate teams within the municipality should be involved in a Project Management Unit.

Table 8: Roles and Responsibilities for the Implementation of ESMP

| Actor/Stakeholders | Responsibilities |
|-----------------------------|---|
| Alaşehir Municipality | ESMP Management, |
| | Implementation of mitigation measures, |
| | Monitoring of environmental and social impacts, |
| | Establishment of Grievance Mechanism, |
| | Reporting on ESMP compliance and progress to ILBANK and WB, |
| | Coordination with stakeholders for ESMP implementation; |
| ILBANK | Monitoring and supervising the process of ESMP implementation. |
| | Reporting the progress of ESMP implementation to WB on regular periods |
| | Ensuring ESMP requirements are integrated into project activities. |
| Contractor/Subcontractor(s) | Implementation of ESMP measures during construction. |
| | Reporting environemtal and social issues to Alaşehir Municipality. |
| | Ensuring compliance with ESMP requirements in all activities. |
| | Informing Alaşehir Municipality on construction activities (such as road |
| | closures and service interruptions). |
| | Managing environmental impacts like waste, noise, and pollution. |
| | Internal Reporting to Alaşehir Municipality on ESMP Implementation. |
| Supervision Consultant | Providing guidance on ESMP compliance. |
| | Provide necessary information to Alaşehir Municipality |
| | Assisting Alaşehir Municipality in managing and mitigating impacts. |
| | Monitoring the effectiveness of ESMP measures. |
| WB | Audit the Alaşehir Municipality's compliance with the provisions set out in |
| | the ESMP managed by the Municipality during the construction and |
| | operation phase via the Project Progress Reports |
| | Visit project sites to conduct its own monitoring at certain intervals or |
| | when necessary. |

Implementation of ESMP Disclosure

Ensuring the full integration and implementation of this ESMP into all project preparation and planning activities constitutes one of the key responsibilities of Alaşehir Municipality. It will provide a framework for all physical works and participation processes within the scope of the project. It will be an integral part of the matrices prepared for the tender processes related to physical works. The technical requirements, conservation, preservation, and monitoring measures outlined in the ESMP will be strictly adhered to in the tender documents, and it will be explicitly stated that the processes will be subject to review according to this plan.

The ESMP, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the World Bank Safeguard Policies, will be publicly disclosed and will be the responsibility of Alaşehir Municipality. Alaşehir Municipality will publish the final approved ESMP on its website. Additionally, a unit, easily accessible by affected groups such as Muhtar offices and local NGOs as outlined in the Stakeholder Analysis section of this plan report, will be established.

Like all management plans, the ESMP has a dynamic structure. It will be periodically reviewed during the implementation and operation phases of the project, deficiencies, malfunctions, and issues will be reported, and based on these reports, it will be updated and approved when deemed necessary. For each approved updated version of this ESMP, Alaşehir Municipality is responsible for sharing it with the public and providing explanations through communication channels. Thus, the implementation of the ESMP and the actions taken during the implementation process will be transparently shared with the public. The ESMP and Stakeholder Engagement Mechanism must be disclosed to all stakeholders and the public as part of environmental and social impact assessment studies.

Documents necessary for the implementation of the ESMP should also be prepared accordingly, and each system required for the project, such as the Grievance Mechanism, should be explained.

NOTE: Details of ESMP disclosure will be inserted here, upon completion.

Institutional Capacity Building and Training

The Project Owner, Alaşehir Municipality, will conduct a training and awareness program covering the expectations and commitments of the ESMF. The Supervision Consultant, in collaboration with the Project Owner, needs to organize a workshop to identify priority topics for the training. The target audience for the training programs includes employees and contractors responsible for implementing the ESMP. The Project Owner must provide training to employees and subcontractors before the construction phase begins. The training is expected to last at least two days and should be held twice a year. Depending on the level of responsibility for implementing the ESMP, advanced training programs should also be considered.

The code of conduct, including compliance with behavioral rules addressing gender-based violence, sexual harassment, sexual exploitation, and abuse, will be explicitly stated in the personnel's contract terms. The consequences of non-compliance with behavioral rules will be clearly outlined in the contract. Measurement and evaluation should be conducted at the end of the training provided to personnel.

This aims to enhance the competence of the personnel. Based on the review results, adjustments to the training program can be made if necessary, including changes in trainers or repeating the training. The training program/modules will cover a range of topics, including but not limited to:

- Objectives of the ESMF concerning project activities,
- Workshops by ILBANK to familiarize municipalities and their potential consultants with WB safeguard policies,
- Requirements in management plans and monitoring activities to be conducted within this framework,

- Environmental and social data collection, reporting, and monitoring,
- Understanding sensitive environmental and social receptors in the project area and surroundings,
- Raising awareness about potential risks and impacts arising from project activities,
 - Trainings related to management of air emissions, waste management, etc.
 - Routine training on fire safety and first aid
- Complaints redress mechanism developed within the project scope, the officer responsible for the mechanism, and employee rights,
- Risks and measures related to community health and safety, personal protective equipment and information on works and occupational safety.
- Occupational health and safety, first aid, emergency preparedness, and emergency scenarios
- Rules for maintaining behavior and workplace harmony,
- Communication with the local community,
- Training on behavioral rules covering gender-based violence, sexual harassment, sexual exploitation, and abuse,
- Principles of traffic and road safety,
- Waste separation, storage, and training on environmental planning.
- Capacity building activities such as training, workshop, study tours
- ESF Borrower Training roll out program.

Environmental and Social Monitoring Report

The Environmental and Social Monitoring Report serves as a crucial tool for recording performance indicators, parameters, and measurement values at specified intervals to be used in the measurement of safeguards and monitoring measures. It is critical for anticipating potential issues that may arise throughout the project's life cycle and determining mitigation, reduction, and improvement strategies to effectively address these issues. The results will be assessed for compliance with established standards by comparing them with national legislative requirements and the World Bank EHS Guidelines. Visual observations, along with documented significant issues, will be presented in written form. The report should focus on both positive practices and negative findings, with photographic evidence supporting negative observations. For each negative observation, a corrective action should be provided as an annex to the report, along with the relevant assessment and required improvement activities. The findings of the Environmental and Social Monitoring Reports will ensure the dynamic and living nature of this ESMP. Therefore, the ESMP should be reviewed and revised by the Municipality's PIU unit based on these findings.

Long-term monitoring reports are used to objectively evaluate the environmental and social performance of the project and determine its sustainability. This is a vital tool for understanding the long-term impacts of the project, developing strategies for future similar projects, and keeping the ESMP updated over time. Monitoring reports identify issues that can be improved and localized by assessing the project's environmental and social governance. It is expected to be used to develop strategic management to strengthen relationships among stakeholders influenced by the project and minimize its impacts. Additionally, long-term monitoring reports are used to evaluate the project's societal acceptance and reputation. Continuous communication with stakeholders, obtaining feedback, and developing effective response strategies to this feedback are important in this regard. The experience gained will contribute to identifying potential problems in advance and developing emergency intervention strategies.

Documenting and monitoring the environmental and social performance of the project for the World Bank and ILBANK enhances trust in the project and increases the municipality's future financial reliability. Furthermore, monitoring reports contribute to the development of good practice standards in the renewable energy sector, the widespread implementation of similar projects at the district and even provincial levels, and the localization of relevant standards, thereby contributing to regional development and sustainable development goals.

In addition to all these, it will provide an important baseline for physical spatial planning studies that determine the future of cities. It is expected to generate important data in terms of identifying criteria that can be used in determining suitable areas for renewable energy and integrating them into planning processes. Long-term evaluations obtained through monitoring reports will be crucial for ensuring the sustainability of planning decisions throughout the life cycle of projects, assessing environmental and social changes, and providing opportunities to enhance planning processes.

6. Stakeholder Engagement

This Stakeholder Analysis is based on the relevant Turkish legislation and international regulations by considering the project is exempt from EIA and classified as a Category B Project according to the WB OP 4.01. In conformity, relevant WB OPs (i.e., WB OP 4.01 and WB's 2010 Policy on Access to Information) and EU Directives. In this regard, the relevant national and international policies considered are given below.

Stakeholder Identification and Analysis

The purpose of a stakeholder identification is to determine and prioritize the project stakeholders for consultation that may be affected (either directly or indirectly in positive or negative way) by the project or that have an interest in the project but are not necessarily directly impacted by it.

The following categories of stakeholders have been identified as being affected by or potentially interested in the Alaşehir Municipality Solar Power Project.

- Project affected parties,
- National governmental and non-governmental organizations (NGOs),
- Local governmental organizations and NGOs,
- Residents (potentially PAPs including landowners/users/ renters/ informal users of the lands),
- Local businesses
- Vulnerable groups
- Refugees

In the stakeholder identification process, the dynamics between the stakeholders, the risks, and opportunities of being involved in the project are considered. The basis of stakeholder identification is the level of interest and interaction with the project. Accordingly, stakeholders can be grouped under the following categories.

- Direct Stakeholders
- Indirect Stakeholders
- Other Interested Parties

Within the scope Alaşehir Municipality Solar Power Plant Project of this project, a comprehensive list of the internal and external stakeholders is given in Table 9.

| Stakeholder Groups | Level of Interest | Level of Influence |
|---|----------------------|--------------------|
| Direct Stakehold | lers | |
| Directly Affected Communities | | |
| Residents in the project area of influence | Moderate | Low |
| Vulnerable individuals/groups in the project area of influence | Low | Low |
| SuTP living in project areas of Manisa | Low | Low |
| Formal or informal users of lands allocated to the project | Low | Low |
| Public Administrations at National Level | | |
| The Ministry of Environment, Urbanization and Climate Change. | Low | Low |
| Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources | High | High |
| Turkish Energy Market Regulatory Board | Low | Low |
| Ministry of Industry and Technology | Low | Low |
| General Directorate of Energy Affairs | High | High |
| General Directorate of ILBANK | High | High |
| Directorate General of Migration Management | Low | Low |
| Public Administrations/Authorities/Agencies at Provincial Level | | |
| Alaşehir Municipality | High | High |
| Alaşehir Governate | Medium | Medium |

Table 9: Comprehensive List of the Stakeholder Identified for the Project

| Stakeholder Groups | Level of Interest | Level of Influence | | |
|--|----------------------|--------------------|--|--|
| Direct Stakeholders | Interest | | | |
| Provincial Directorate of Environment, Urbanization and Climate Change | Moderate | High | | |
| Mukhtar of İsmetiye Neighborhood | Moderate | High | | |
| GDZ Electricity Distribution Company | High | High | | |
| Contractors/Sub-contractors and Supervision Consultant Companies | High | High | | |
| Indirect Stakeholders | | | | |
| Indirectly Affected Communities | | | | |
| Residents outside of the project area of influence | Low | Low | | |
| Vulnerable individuals/groups outside of the project area of influence | Low | Low | | |
| Public Administrations at National Level | | | | |
| Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry | Low | Low | | |
| Public Administrations/Authorities/Agencies at Provincial Level | | | | |
| Governorship Alaşehir | Low | Moderate | | |
| Provincial Directorate of Disaster and Emergency | Low | Low | | |
| Provincial Directorate of Health | Low | Low | | |
| T.C. Zafer Development Agency | Low | Low | | |
| Turkish Employment Agency (IS-KUR) – Manisa Branch | Low | Moderate | | |
| Other Interested Parties | | | | |
| Chamber of Environmental Engineers | High | High | | |
| International Solar Energy Society (GUNDER) | Moderate | Moderate | | |
| International Refugee Rights Association | Low | Low | | |
| Business enterprises located in the Project area | Moderate | Moderate | | |
| Manisa Celal Bayar University | Low | Low | | |

The types and causes of exposures and how the above-mentioned stakeholder groups are affected (positive/negative) are given in Table 10.

| Social Component | Type of Potential Impact (Positive/Negative) | Potential Impact Definition |
|------------------------|---|--|
| Emergency Response | Positive | After the increase in the electricity prices in Türkiye, municipalities are having difficulties paying them. After the implementation of this project, it is expected to be offset the energy demand and decrease in carbon footprint. |
| Local Employment | Positive | Employment opportunities for local engineers and manpower. |
| Transportation/Traffic | Negative | Safety issues due to increase in traffic, damages on roads, generation of greenhouse gas emissions / noise. |
| OHS and Community H&S | Negative | Water pollution, air emissions/noise and visual pollution |
| Tourism | Negative | Aesthetic issues. |

As part of the stakeholder identification process, it is also important to identify individuals and groups that may be differentially or disproportionately affected by the Project because of their disadvantaged or vulnerable status. The potential vulnerable/disadvantaged groups can be listed as follows:

- Households with physically and / or mentally disabled family members,
- People with chronic diseases,
- Elderly people over 65 years of age who live alone and in need of care,
- Female-headed households,
- Households where the head of the household is a child,
- Households with low or no income, and
- Refugee households.

Considering the potential vulnerable/disadvantaged groups, the summary of project stakeholder needs is given in Table 11.

| Community | Stakeholder group | Key characteristics | Language needs | Preferred notification means (e-mail, phone, radio, letter) | Specific needs (accessibility, large print, childcare, daytime meetings) |
|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|---|--|--|---|
| | Parents with young children | The number of households affected and which of children - To be Determined (TBD) | Official language | Written information, radio | Childcare for meetings—late afternoon preferred timing |
| İsmetiye Neighborhood | Refugees | The number of extended families TBD, poverty level | Language alternative | Visit with translator and civil society representative | Graphics, education on process |
| | Persons with disability | The number of disabled person TBD | Official language and/or sign language | Written information, radio and/or face-to- face with competent person on sign language if possible | Accessibility i.e., providing transportation |
| | Other groups | The number of person TBD | Official language | Written information, radio Visit at their own places | Graphics, education on process |

 Table 11: Potential Vulnerable/Disadvantaged Groups and their needs

Stakeholder Engagement Plan

Stakeholder Engagement is a control mechanism that ensures the implementation of key principles during the project. The engagement activities will not be scheduled in a manner due to the small capacity of solar power plant project. To maximize stakeholder engagement, it prevents disruption of local stakeholders' daily work and regulates the timing and number of engagement activities. Accordingly, recording the findings and feedback together in accordance with all engagement activities, sharing them with the responsible parties, and following the process are essential. Also, engagement activities need to be culturally appropriate, provide equal access to relevant stakeholders, and enable their feedback. No stakeholder engagement activities will be scheduled for this project.

Grievance Mechanism

Alaşehir Municipality will establish a Grievance Mechanism (GM) to receive, resolve, and follow the concerns and complaints of the Project affected communities. All grievances will be effectively received, recorded, and responded to within a predetermined timeline and based on their contents. The grievance mechanism has been prepared in accordance with the environmental and social standards of the World Bank (World Bank, 2018). At the earliest convenience, the stakeholders will have access to Alaşehir Municipality PIU and Contractor dedicated CLOs for responses to responses to grievance. Stakeholders will be informed on the Satisfactory responses to the grievances and corrective activities. The GM for the stakeholders will be operated according to the following procedure.

- Following tools will be used so that all stakeholders can be informed regarding the Project's GM process:
- Web page
- Email address

- Public meetings
- Telephone
- Frequently Asked Questions (Brochure, web page, bulletin, etc.)
- 2. Grievances can be submitted by the channels outlined below:
- Telephone (Call Center and units) (444 8 653)
- Personal visit to Alaşehir Municipality and Contractor head office/branches
- Grievance boxes (installed at the Alaşehir Municipality Units / Contractor)
- Relevant public administrations (district governorship, municipality, headmen)
- Email (info@alasehir.bel.tr)
- Meetings
- Staff and local communication desk of Alaşehir Municipality / Contractor
- By written petition to Alaşehir Municipality / Contractor
- During site visits and miscellaneous
- 3. All the submitted grievances are collected at the GM Section of PIU Department.
- 4. The submitted grievances are recorded in databases by CLOs of PIU and Contractor.
- 5. PIU and Contractor CLOs or any contact person who received the grievance confirm the grievance reception via phone and/or email within 2 days.
- 6. The response to the relevant grievance will be drafted by CLOs of PIU / Contractor and approved by Project Managements.
- 7. After responding to the relevant grievance, necessary revisions will be made on the Grievance Form with respect to the result of GM process which will be communicated with relevant Complainant within 10 working days. The required actions for valid grievances will be taken within 15 working days. If applicant accepts the resolution within 30 days, the submitted grievance is marked as closed. If the applicant does not sign-off Complaint Close-Out Form due to insufficient satisfaction, a meeting will be organized by the PIU management on relevant complaint and if necessary, with the participation of Contractor. The compliant can participate this meeting to submit his/her Project-related concern face to face to the management. The aim of this meeting is to find alternative solutions of which both parties agree with.
- 8. All the grievances will be monitored by recording them via the monitoring and evaluation system which will be established within the scope of GM.
- 9. Regarding grievances received by Contractor; the grievances which are within the scope of Contractor responsibility will be handled by itself and reporting to the PIU during monitoring activities. The grievances within the scope of Alaşehir Municipality responsibility will be immediately communicated with PIU by the Contractor and handled by the PIU accordingly. The contractor CLO is responsible for recording and tracking grievances.
- 10. If the complaint cannot be resolved with the existing process, applicants can always apply to relevant legal institutions. Such institutions can be summarized as follow:
- Civil Courts of First Instance
- Administrative Courts
- Commercial Courts of First Instance
- Labor Courts, and Ombudsman (https://ebasvuru.ombudsman.gov.tr/)

During construction and operational activities, the GM described above shall continue to be driven by stakeholders' views, making this procedure accessible to all affected stakeholders. Requests that require urgent remedy and/or support shall be responded to and given support within the same day. All outstanding grievances/requests shall be recorded within two business days, reviewed, and assessed within ten business days, and concluded not later than 15 business days. Corrective actions shall be taken to resolve the grievance. GM Flow Chart is given in Table 12.

| Stage of GM | Required Action |
|--------------------------------------|--|
| Grievance submission | Receiving the grievance by any above-mentioned communication channel. |
| | (Following to receive more sensitive grievances i.e., SEA/SH, child abuse or abuse, |
| | necessary action will be taken within 48 hours. For such cases at the workplaces, |
| | the complaint will be directed by the GM focal point (based in ILBANK headquarter) |
| | to relevant legal authorities/service providers such as Ministry of Family and Social |
| | Services and Prosecutors Office.) |
| Grievance registration | Grievance Form and Grievance Register Table are used during registration process. |
| | After grievance registration, feedback will be sent to the Complainant for the |
| | purpose of confirmation within two (2) days. |
| | Anonymous registration will be conducted if a Complainant requests that complaint |
| | of whom is handled anonymously. |
| Grievance assessment | Grievances are assessed within 10 working days with the clarification of the fact that |
| | relevant grievance is compliance with admissibility criteria. The Complainant will be |
| | informed appropriately in case of invalid grievances. |
| Responses to the grievances | According to the grievance type, consultation with stakeholders in question can be |
| | conducted on site. |
| | After grievance assessment, grievance will be responded appropriately via |
| | previously mentioned communication channels. |
| | Application to ILBANK or Court of First Instance is also available for Complainants if |
| | a resolution cannot be figured out for whose grievances. |
| Grievance closure | As long as alternative agreement is not conducted, grievance of Complainant is |
| | closed within fifteen (15) Business Days as of submission date and the Grievance |
| | Close Out Form is filled accordingly. |
| | In the case of grievances cannot be closed within fifteen (15) Business Days, it is |
| | ensured that well documented mitigatory circumstances related to which are |
| | reported. |
| | Regarding the anonymous grievances, outcome of GM process and associated taken |
| | actions should be declared on Alaşehir Municipality website for the purpose of |
| | informing relevant Complainants. |
| In the case of unresolved grievances | ILBANK monitors GM process according to following outline: |
| | -Confirmation of grievance submission |
| | -Assessment of grievance by the Alaşehir Municipality and information to ILBANK |
| | accordingly |
| | -Communication of grievance response to Complainant by the Alaşehir Municipality |
| | which is monitored by ILBANK (The timeframe for response at this level is thirty (30) |
| | days.) |
| | -Application to Court of First Instance by Complainants in case of unresolved |
| | grievances |
| Reporting | The grievances will be analyzed quarterly by Alaşehir Municipality PIU considering |
| | the frequencies, types, and resolution methods of which. By doing this, for instance, |
| | complaints submitted by majority of Contractor/Subcontractor(s) and/or those |
| | originated from certain works can be determined in a better way. |
| | The outcomes are reported to the PIU management by CLOs |

Table 12: Grievance Mechanism Flowchart

| Stage of GM | Required Action |
|-----------------|--|
| Right to Appeal | If the complaint cannot be resolved with the existing process, applicants can always |
| | apply to relevant legal institutions. Such institutions can be summarized as follow: |
| | Civil Courts of First Instance |
| | Administrative Courts |
| | Commercial Courts of First Instance |
| | Labor Courts, and |
| | Ombudsman (https://ebasvuru.ombudsman.gov.tr/) |

Monitoring and Reporting

Alaşehir Municipality PIU and the Contractor CLO will record all incoming corporate grievance/comment databases.

Alaşehir Municipality PIU will assess the number and nature of grievances/comments (if any) quarterly and their effectiveness to address grievances/comments based on the number and percentage of closed grievances. The monitoring framework is described in Table 13.

| Table 13: | Grievance | Mechanism | Monitoring | Framework |
|-----------|-----------|-----------|------------|-------------|
| TUDIC TO: | Unevance | Wiechamsm | womening | TIAITIEWUIK |

| Parameter | Key Performance Indicator | Phase | Frequency | Responsible Party |
|-------------|--|--------------|--|--|
| | Number of grievances/comments received during per consultation | Construction | Quarterly | To be assigned by Alaşehir Municipality PIU and Contractor |
| Project GM | Types of the grievances/comments (community HS, employment, local procurement etc.) Timeframes for response to each grievance The number of open or closed grievances Number of invalid or in progress grievances | Operation | Semi-annually in the first two years; Annually afterwards | To be assigned by Alaşehir Municipality PIU and Contractor |
| | Number of grievances/comments received by own workers Number of | Construction | Monthly | To be assigned by Alaşehir Municipality PIU and Contractor |
| Workers' GM | grievances/comments received by indirect workers • Types of the grievances/comments regarding worker management and working conditions (e.g. Worker rights, OHS, etc.) • Timeframes for response to each grievance • The number of open or closed grievances • Number of invalid or in progress grievances | Operation | Semi-annually in the first two years; Annually afterwards | To be assigned by Alaşehir Municipality PIU and Contractor |
| GM | Effectiveness of the GM | Construction | Quarterly | ILBANK |

Public Consultation Meeting

The draft version of this ESMP approved by ILBANK and the World Bank was shared with the district residents at a public participation meeting held at the Alaşehir Municipality Meeting Hall on December 16, 2024. The Ardea Project and Consultancy team and the Acting Director of the Machinery Supply, Maintenance, and Repair Department of Alaşehir Municipality working at Alaşehir Municipality presented the project's purpose, expected social, environmental and ecological impacts, measures to prevent or reduce the impacts, monitoring and management measures, the path to be followed for complaints or suggestions, and the method of handling the complaint to the participants.

The Public Participation Meeting was held with the participation of the Alaşehir Municipality team, as well as the district residents. At the end of the presentation, the participants asked questions about the possible negative impacts that may occur during the construction of the project, the cost of the project, and the contributions it will provide to the district. Requests and suggestions were also received from them. It was conveyed to the participants that the construction works will start after the contractor is determined by the project owner and the construction is planned to last approximately 5 months. The minutes of the meeting attended by 21 people are given in Annex 9.

7. Annexes

Annex 1: SPP Project Area Title Deed

| 15 to Out | lii İlçesi Mahalles | MANISA ALAŞEHÎR | | Türkiye | Cumhui | riyeti | | | |
|-----------|---------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------|---------------|------------|-------------------|----|---------------------|-----------------|
| | Köyü Sokağı | ISMETIVE | | TAPU | SEN | FDÍ | | Foloğraf | |
| ŀ | Mevkii | Demircistardu | _ | | 10.001.000 | | | Diana a | |
| - | | Satış Bedeli | | Patta No. | Ada No | Parsel No. | ha | Yüzölçümü m² | dm ² |
| - | _ | 8.00 | Iba-B | -63-11 | 107 | | | 108 105 70 | |
| | Niteliği | Farta | | | | | | 444.444.141.14 | |
| | Siniri | Planendadu Zemin Notem No. 821 | | | | | | | |
| GAYR | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sahibi | A1 A31 500 0614 1515 | NI | | | | | | |
| | Sahibi | Al ASISHID DELEDIST | 51 | | | | | | |
| | Geldi | | _ | Sahife No. | Sita No | Tarihi | 1 | Gittişi | |
| at P | Geldi | ei Yevmiye | Cit | No. | No. | Tarihi 97,2014 | | Gittişi Citti Au | 6. |
| at p | Geldi vo | isi Yevmye No | Cit | Sahife No. | No. | | | 1 | |
| at p | Geldi vo | SS Yevrmyo No ease | Cat No. | Sicilia Ug | No. | | | CHEN | No. |
| at P | Geldi vo | 2.855 | Cat No. | No. | No. | 67,2614 | | Cit N Sahia | No. |

Annex 2: Alaşehir District SPP Area 1/1000 Scale Zoning Plan





C CACCOLINGUARIA DARA PLAN PLAN BERLEM LEMENTAL MARIA DARA SANDA TA LALI MENDALA PUNJAHAN MUNJAHAN MUNJAHAN ANA ANA MUNJAHAN MUNJAHANA MUNJAHAN WHEN IT IS THEN IN A REAL TO A THE AND A THE A CARE CREARS, ALL THE CONTROLLED AND GET HEAD MILE UPDATE. IN THE ADDRESS AND ADDRESS AND ADDRESS ADDR INST VOM THE LEGISLATION LIKEN, UNIT ACAKIN INSTRUMENT MILITARY UVIT ACAKIN INSTRUMENT MILITARY UVIT ACAKING

44 HENDES ODMYNS YMDIAED TOPLACAR (TAURARA AF SETYLLAND ANEXAFIAR STANDARD FARMARA EMISSING YMPLACAR ARACTAR SRONYDA ORDUN (RABLACTR AFROAS SHIND) Li Letterministeri internationen et al. Aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller and aller a

Ant MANAGEMENT OF THE ANALYSIS VE BOAR TRIES

B. INDEL ADDRESS VE VALAS ADDRESS JARDE OPENING SUPERVISED RESPONSE VALASSAMENTE DE DRESSE ADDRESSE VALASSAMENT DE DRESSE DE DRESSE VALASSAMENTE DE DRESSE ADDRESSE DRESSE DRESSE DE DRESSE

Annex 3: Official Decision of Manisa Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization for EIA Exempted



Annex 4: Ground Survey Report

| 1.Genel Durum | TARIMSAL ETÜT RAPORU |
|--|---|
| 1.1.Arazinin Yeri ve Alam | |
| lii | A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A |
| Bresi | MANISA |
| Mahalle | : ALAŞEHÎR : GÜLPINAR, İSMETI'YE |
| Takip Numurası | |
| Entr Tarihi | : 2022-45-000072 : 23.01.2023 |
| | Etit alara, İsmetiye Mahallesine yaklaşık 3,5km, Akşehir'e 23 km |
| Uzaklik | Manisa'ya ise 110 kmuznikiletadu. |
| Bakı | : Doğı-Ban |
| Rakum | : 300 metre |
| Etikki Yapılan Alan (m2) | : 108.426,16 |
| | flinitz, Alaşehir İlçesi, İsmetye mahallesinde bulunan ve Güneş Enerjisinden |
| | hansz Elektrik Enerjisi Oretirri Gile Tesisi/GES/kurulmak istenen enit alam |
| | farrutiye Mahalesi, Dernivelyarda mevkimde, taparan 101 ada, 1 noʻla porselinde kayala, "Tarla" vasafi, 10,846539 helenr böytikilikoodir.Edit alam |
| | halihazarda boş taran yupârasyan tepelik ve yamışç arazi |
| | konumandadır. 1/25000 ölçekli haritada gösterilen ve ölçü krokisinde köşe |
| | koordinatkan verilen (101/207, 208, 367, 368, 369, 370, 371, 372, 374, 375, 376, 377, 378, 379, 380, 381, 382, 383, 384, 385, 386, 387, 388, 389, |
| Arazinin Konumu | 390, 391, 392, 393, 394, 395, 396, 397, 398, 399, 400, 401, 402, 403, |
| | 404, 405, 406, 407, 408, 409, 426, 427, 428, 429, 430, 431, 432, 437 |
| | 441 442, 445, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 ve 22 noktalan) 1 parselin kuzyvinde |
| | Salihli Mevlulli Kadastro saun boş tarmıyapılmayan anızlar ve dikili tanını amzisi/yeni fidan dikilmiş zeytin balçosi) göneyinde, batanda boş tarım |
| | yapimayan arazier, doğusunda zeytin dikili tarta bulunmaktadır. 1 resesin |
| | ekli harita plan örneğinde de görüldüğü üzere karnıya ait kadastro) yolu |
| Ada / Parsel | bukawamaktade. |
| 1.2.Etikilin Amacı | : Ada/Parsel listesi ektedir. |
| Ettit, Ilmiz, Alaschir Ilcesi, Alaschir I | Beleziye Başkanlığı(İmar ve Şehircilik Müdirliggi)ndışlım 21.12.2022 tarih ve E-90573066-115.99-27701 sayıh yazanda, İlmiz, |
| Alaşchir İlçesi, İsmetiye Mahalesi, D | territe rendu markinda menter i fel a service antipute 21.12.2022 tarin ve E-90573066-115.99-27701 sayth yuzsinda, Timiz, |
| | |
| Alaşehir Belediye'na ait olup, sözko | renew teaming watch, and the state of ana, i no to persense knym, "Jaris" vasih, 10,846539 hektar yüzölelmili parselin mükiyeti |
| Nazm Imer Plan ve 1/1000 ölceki | omeu tajurnen 5,596150 hektari toi aan, 1 no to parsentoe koyan, "Jaria" vaeth, 10,846539 hektar yüzölçimili parselin mülkiyeti i I lovademi tajurnen 5,596150 hektarik kazni izerinde "Lisansar Güneş Enerji Santrali" tesiskiri kuruhmemi ilişkin 1/5000 ölçekli il |
| Nazm Imer Plan ve 1/1000 ölceki | neuropaunie anteriance, uppaar toi ana, i no is prevented koyen, "Jarki" waeth, 10,846539 hektar ydzightelli parolin mikkjeti i Uygdama Imar Plan yapitmas takbinde balanaldağa belirtileri. Sagemaan plansa alanlaşfar alıkı, yaplacka olan "Lisarosaz ana imar plan yapitmasındasakınca halmap, balanmadığaa ilşicin Kurum görlişömbin sonalması üzerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde etti |
| Nazın İmar Plan ve 1/1000 ölçeki Güneş Enerji Santrali'ne ad söz konu yapılmıştır. | omeu tajurnen 5,596150 hektari toi aan, 1 no to parsentoe koyan, "Jaria" vaeth, 10,846539 hektar yüzölçimili parselin mülkiyeti i I lovademi tajurnen 5,596150 hektarik kazni izerinde "Lisansar Güneş Enerji Santrali" tesiskiri kuruhmemi ilişkin 1/5000 ölçekli il |
| Nazım İmer Plan ve 1/1000 ölçeki Güneş Enerji SantnaP'ne ai söz kom yapılmıştır. 2. Arazi Özeflikleri | omso taparnovi 15, volubil rol ada, i ni u presonov koyen, 'lank' wach, 10,846539 hokar ydolfardi pravile molkych omso taparnovi 55, volubil rol ada, i ni u presonov koyen, 'lank'' wach, 10,846539 hokar ydolfardi pravile molky I Uygdam Imur Pien yapárnas takbinde baknakága beiriterek, taparnam planaz aknátyer alátg, yapátezá nám 'Lisansse ana inar plan yapárnasnássátneza haknap, baknemedigna iljóin Kuram görögömbán sonalmas taeráne 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettű |
| Nazm imer Plan ve 1/1000 člecki Gineş Ezerji Santrali'ne ai söz kora yapâmştr. 2. Arazi Özellikleri Manisa ve cevresinde tameli nalenovoli | omos travnika, 25,596450 helsenik karn terinde "Lansset Gives Rayth, 13th" wech, 10,846539 helstar ydoblettil gynarelm milikyet I Uygdama Januar Sy 596450 helsenik karn terinde "Lansset Gives Entriji Samari "I suskiri Kontramona Jakin 155000 ölyekki I Uygdama Janu Pan yupitmus takbindo baknakaga belirikensi, tagarmaza planaz alandayet aling, supikeak olan "Lansse anu inar plan yupitmusndasakunca bakmap, bakarandığına ilşisin Kurum görlişilmitdin sondmus tkerine 23,01,2023 tarihinde ettür Yusik muhafunda kanada alanda bakmap, bakarandığına ilşisin Kurum görlişilmitdin sondmus tkerine 23,01,2023 tarihinde ettür |
| Nazm imm Pian ve 1/1000 diecki Otneş Enerji Santnil'ne ad söz kon yapılmıştır. 2.Arasti Özellikleri Marisa ve çevresinde temeli paleozryik örtüken olama içi birin olarak distivri | emest tearman 5,5 voltal feld auf, in in presente knym, jani' vach, 10,846539 hektar ydzi(drift) parselin milisjet omest tearman 5,55450 hektarik kam tearind " Kansor Cherge Enriji Sannal' vesikiri kurdmenn iljein 15000 ölçeki i Uygalam Janu Plan yapılmışa takbirde bulanaldığu belirilerek, taşarman planız akadıştar alılış yaplacık olan "Estonoga anı imar plan yapılmışandaşakınca bulanap, bulanmıdığına iljein Kurum görlişdirildin sonalmışı karine 23.01.2023 tarihinde etik ç yaşlı metaformik kayaçlar oluştarır. Menderes mıştir olanuk adlanılmını temekleki kayaçlar, bir çekirdek ve bunan (teerinde bir riterite Cekirder mendedesa teara bulanaşı bulanı katlanılmın temekleki kayaçlar, bir çekirdek ve bunan (teerinde bir |
| Nazm Imer Plan ve 1/1000 diçekî Otreş Ewrij SarimiPne al sûz kon yapîmştr. 2.Arast Özelliklerî Manka ve çevresinde temelî paleozoyîk dritiken obşaraş ki birin okarak diştirinî ver alk Matanfiran derweşî ewletde | omesi tayırman 5,7 soğladı 100 adı, 1 ni is presence koyen, 1an'ı vach, 10,846539 hektar yözölçindi paraclı mülkçisi omesi tayırman 5,7 söl-50 hektarik kara tarindi "Lasarse Giveş Enriji Samaril veskiri karatırmeni işkiri 1/5000 ölçikli il Uygdamı Imur Pian yapılmışı takbinde bahmalığı belirderik, taşırmazı planaz alandayer aldığı yapılacak olan "Lisurese ana imar plan yapılmışındı sakırıca bahmap, bahmındığın ilşisin Kurum görlişdirindi asonliması ilerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettü çiyaşlı metafermik kayaçılar oluştarır. Menderes mıştif olanuk adlanılmını temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekindek ve banan therinde bir tirtiştik. Çekindak gaayılanlı oluşmuştır. Banira görli gauyslar ve mavi görli gavşinın üzerinde şistlerden oluşmuş kalın bir örü |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 čájekt Göneg Enerji Santmä ² he ad sök kon yapitmyir. 2. Arnat Önellikkent Manisa ve çevresinde temzli paleozzykk órtikken oksymuş iki biém oknak döjetim yarnat ökente teorjerin karasal okseller uyumsar oknak recejerin karasal okseller | omos taparnov 15, valjala 100 ala, i ni u pasomo koya, jani vach, 10,846539 hekar ydoljani parale melikov onost taparnov 15, valjala 100 ala, i ni u pasomo koya, jani vach, 10,846539 hekar ydoljani parale melikov i Uygdami Inur Pian yapimsa takbinde bahradağa beirilerek, taparnam planaz alandayer aldığı yaplacak olan "Lisansaz ana inar plan yapimsandasakınca bahrap, bahrandağa beirilerek, taparnam planaz alandayer aldığı yaplacak olan "Lisansaz ana inar plan yapimsandasakınca bahrap, bahrandağa ilşisin Kurum görüşöhtistin sondirası üzerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettik i yaşla metaferinik kayaçlar oluşturu. Menderes mısifi olanak adlınıtlırılın temeldeki kayaçlar, bi çekinlek ve baran üzerinde bir imiştik. Cekinde gasyatınlar olaşmaştır. Bahra göstli gayaşlar ve mavi göstli gayatının üzerinde şisterden olaşmaş kalın bir önü ive Kuh volkanık kayalarınlar olaşmaştı. Bahra göstli gayaşlar ve mavi göstli gayaşlarını üzerinde şisterden olaşmaş kalın bir önü ive Kuh volkanık kayalarınlar bazılar yer alı: |
| Nazm Imrr Pien ve 1/1000 čljedi Otnej Enorji SantmiPine al stile kon jepidnosti: 2. Arazi Özetlikleri Marka ve çoresinde tarneli paleozopik örtiklen olaşmaş ki bizim olarak düştirdi yer alır. Metaarifmu derecesi çekindele uyuması olarak teojemin karasaşı olokeler Etti alanı, temek ve şaranı e | Statisticken and Statistick in an experience keyen, Tatis vach, 10,846539 hektar yötöljöttil parasin milikyeti intera taparman 55,55650 hektarikk karat tarinde "Lanases Gioses Entiji Samari "usakiri kunnarenni näjän 15000 öljokä il Uygiami Imur Pian yapämisin täöbinde haimäkäyä belmäene, taparman planas alanäyter aling, yapiheati näin "Lanassa ana inter plan yapämisindassikinea hukuna, bukunmelijina läjöin Kurum göräyönttöin sondimas täöräne 23,01,2023 tarihinde ettö (yapä metaformäk kayaçlar olustura: Menderes misifi olaruk adlamhnian temelideki kayaçlar, bit çekardek ve bunan teerinde bir intatik. Cekindek gaupalaritan olustura: Menderes misifi olaruk adlamhnian temelideki kayaçlar, bit çekardek ve bunan teerinde bir intatik. Cekindek gaupalaritan olustura: Menderes misifi olaruk adlamhnian temelideki kayaçlar, bit çekardek ve bunan teerinde bir in dişa doğu asalmakadır. Meternerik kayaçları taerine masonak yaşlı karçıtaşları gelir. Mesozoyik kireçinşianın iterinde ive Vaka volkanık kayaşlarındar bazadır yerakr. |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 čljeki Göneş Exerji SantmiPine ai ada kon şapatmışır. 2. Arazi Önellikleri Markia ve çovresinde tarmili palesnovjik oftiklen olışmış ki birim olanak dişimil yer alır. Metaoriform derevce i çekirdise yurması olanik metjerim karasışı ölçekler Etit alam, tepetik ve yamışı a Toprak Intryevi kumlık-kik-kireçli şaşıdı. 5.20 ösarındık E Etit alırı Döl'yer. | ones tayrmon 5, vojadni toj ada, i ni u presence koyu, jani 'vach, 10,846539 hekar ydoljenih genesin mikijem i Uygdamu Jraur Pian yapimus takbinde baknakaju beiriterist, tayernoza planaz aknäyter aldığı yapihcak nim 'Lisurster i Uygdamu Jraur Pian yapimus takbinde baknakaju beiriterist, tayernoza planaz aknäyter aldığı yapihcak nim 'Lisurster anu inar plan yapimusandasakınca bakmap, bakarmadığın ilşisin Kurum görleğimtistin sonulmuse ikerine 23.01.2023 turbinde ettü eyşek metaformik kayaçılar okşurur. Menzieres mısifi olanuk adlanıhnian temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekinick ve buran therinde bir hriştili. Cekirdek gaayılandan okarmaştır. Bariar göslü gavyslar ve mavi göslü gavyslamı üzerinde şisilerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü niv Kuku volanak kayalarıkan kayaçıların tasrine masonok yaşık kineçtaşları gelir. Mesonoyêk kireçtaşlarına üzerinde niv Kuku volanak kayalarıkan bazadıra yer alır. |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 čljedi Otneg Enorji Santmi ² ine al sile kon japihnjit: 2. Arazi Özellikleri Marka ve çevresinde tameli paleoznyk Orililen olgram ški bitim okanik disjirili yer altr. Metaorfirmi derocesi gekindes uyumuse okanik negirini karasal gokeng a Toprak bitiyesi kumbeklik-kergi sapad 15-20 časmulade. Etit alarn DS [1m] | Start Bernard S., 2004 (19) et al. (2014) and a service style, "and " week, 10,246539 heitar ydel(heita) parale melkych i Uygalama farwella, and the start and the service style, "and " week, 10,246539 heitar ydel(heita) parale melkych i Uygalama farwella, styletik kan uterinde " Kanson Globes Eurij Samani " testaki i konstresen ikkin 15000 ölçekk ana inar plan yapılmısındasakınca hakmap, bakarınadığın ilşini Kuram görüşümletin sonalmısı üzerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettü (yaşlı metaformak kayaçlar oluşturu: Menderes mısifi olaruk adlanılmını temekleki kayaçlar, bir çekardek ve baran teerinde bir iniştir. Cekirdek gayaşları oluşturu: Menderes mısifi olaruk adlanılmını temekleki kayaçlar, bir çekardek ve baran teerinde bir iniştir. Cekirdek gayaşlarılan olaşmıştır. Banire gözü gayaşlar ve mavi gözül gayaştının üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir önü en dışa dığır azınındıradır. Menderenzik kayaçların tarave masonak yaşlı kıreştnaşları gelir. Mesonayle kireçinşinma üzerinde in dışa dığır azınındıradır. Mentermit kayaçların tarave masonak yaşlı kıreştnaşları gelir. Mesonayle kireçinşinma üzerinde en dışa dığır azınındıradır. Mentermit kayaçların tarave masonak yaşlı kıreştnaşları gelir. Mesonayle kireçinşinma üzerinde en dir. Toyrak derendiği 50 en atılmışı daşlı gayaşlı azı etmekterir. Taşlak da yer yer değünakle bişkire enkirm 30 saların sefnes dışınak kayaşınak daşlı anı kaya genel olanık yüzeyderir. Başlak da yer yer değünakle bişkire enkirm 30 saların sefnes dışışışı daşlarık kayaşlı enkir daşları karın yaşalı karınaklarık Yorok deyşin olaşlı karına yaşla karını yaşla karışı ayaşlı dışışlarık biştir. |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 čájeki Göneg Enzeji Sastmä ^{Pien} en stöke kon spadnoga: 2. Arnat Örellikkent Manisa ve çevresinde temzli paleozoysk Ortikien olgemuş iki birin olsradı: ölginin ver alı: Metaerismi derocesi çekindes uyursuz olarak tençienin karasal pokeller Etta alırı, tepçisk ve yarınış a Dopak bütyesi kumlo-kili-kireşk syadı 15-20 cosarruladır. Etti alırı DSİ'mi bilikir, hoğday, arşa, hag ve ayşrin bilikir, hoğday, arşa, hag ve ayşrin bilikir, hoğday, arşa, hag ve ayşrin | Stycki metaformát, szakal nel szakar a mis presente keyet, jank vach, 10,246539 hektar ydelychti pranch melkych ottos taparmen 5,5%450 hektar kara terinde 'Lansare Claves' Enris Samani' teskkri karaterinemi hykin 15000 ölyökk i Uygánna Inau Pan yapánsa takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapátnasadasakinea bahrap, bahrandégna iljáin Kuram görléjöntádin sonálmas tamine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettik (yapátsza Cekindek keyetenek kayagátar oksztara: Menderes mesít olamk adiantánia terneklédi kayagátar bahranda bahrada bah |
| Natom Imm Pien ve 1/1000 čájekt Götteg Enzeji Santmä [®] he ani söz kom yapihnyir. 2. Arnoi Önellikleri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozoyik Ortiklen olgarnış iki birin olarak dişirini ver altı. Matarismi derocesi çekindes uyursuz olarak recijerini karasal pokeller Enz alurı, terpiski ve yarınış a Topeak butyesi kumla-kili-kireşi saşıdı 15-20 cosarruladır. Enzi alırı DSİ'mi hilikler, hoğdıy, arşa, hag ve aşyrin bilikler, hoğdıy, arşa, hag ve aşyrin | Stycki metaformát, szakal nel szakar a mis presente keyet, jank vach, 10,246539 hektar ydelychti pranch melkych ottos taparmen 5,5%450 hektar kara terinde 'Lansare Claves' Enris Samani' teskkri karaterinemi hykin 15000 ölyökk i Uygánna Inau Pan yapánsa takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapánsas takbinde bahradága belmierté, taparnam planez aknátyer alátg, yapátszá nám 'Lisansag ana inar plan yapátnasadasakinea bahrap, bahrandégna iljáin Kuram görléjöntádin sonálmas tamine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettik (yapátsza Cekindek keyetenek kayagátar oksztara: Menderes mesít olamk adiantánia terneklédi kayagátar bahranda bahrada bah |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/100 čljeki Göneş Enerji SantmiPie alı söz kon şapahnşır. 2. Arazi Özetlikleri Markia ve çevresinde tarmili palesznyik örliklen olaşmış ki birim okmak düşimil yer alır Metarafirmu derecesei çekirdise Etit alam, tepelik ve yarmış o Topuk biriyesi kumba'tih-kireşli yaşıdı 15-20 okarındıkle. Etit alam DSI'hmi bilikler, başday, arpa, baş ve ayşıtır o daşadır. Buckarın sikir de kokonnık ol "Kana Marjimi Tarım Anzikiş(KTA)" sun | ones tayırman 5,5%150 hetenik karat terini di presence keyen, 'tarit' vach, 10,846539 hekar yetelçindi genetin mülçişi onusu tayırman 5,5%150 hetenik karat terini di "Lansor Gives Enrifi Samari'i veskiri tayınırmen işkiri. 15500 ölçeki il Uygalamı Inur Pian yapılmısı takbinde balanalağı belrinersi, taşarmazı planaz alandayer aldığı yapılacak olan "Lisursoz anu inur plan yapılmısındasakınca balanap, balanmadığın ilşisin Kurum görleğimtisin sonulmusı ikerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettü ci yaşlı metafermik kayaçılar olaştarız. Menderes mısifi olanuk adlanılının temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekindek ve baran therinde bir intiştik. Cekindek gauşılandan olaşmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanı üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkır. Cekindek gauşılandan olaşmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanı üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkı Ku bu olaşmaştık işaşalarışda kuşaştarın tazırıcı masonok yaşlı kineçinşları gelir. Mesonoyêk kireçinşlarına itarinde intir çıkık kuşalarışda hazıdır. Yetarınıştır Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanın üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkık daşışlarışda kalmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşları ve mavi göstü gauşalar yet çeşi kaşalarını olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir yeta kuşalarışda hazılar yer alır. anza topoğıştik ponişiyonanda çıkışı bir yaşışı arz etmekterin Anarian eşini %10-18 ile %18-25 amasında değişintektedir. alıştır sahası dışada kalmakında Elü alını tarinde ganel olanık tarm yapışlarınıktadır. Yörede yaygın olarak tarını yapışları olaş, burada tarmışta laşlaşterin çaşışleşı çışış şerçleşi çişdeşi bir yapıştar. |
| Naom Imre Pien ve 1/100 čljeki Göneş Enerji SantmiPie alı söz kon yapıhmızır. 2. Arazi Özetlikleri Markia ve çevresinde tarmili palesznyik örliklen olaşmış ki birim okanik düşimil yer alır Metarafiram derecesi çekirdise Etit alam, tepelik ve yarmış o Topuk biriyesi kumb-tih-kireşi yaşıdı 15-20 okarındıkle. Etit aların DSi'hmi bilikler, başday, arpa, baş ve ayşıtır o daşadır. Buckarın sikir de koconnik ol "Kanı Marjimi Tarım Anzikiş Kı'haj' sun Marka İlimi kirim işşi şayları | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Naom Imre Pien ve 1/100 čljeki Göneş Enerji SantmiPie alı söz kon yapıhmızır. 2. Arazi Özetlikleri Markia ve çevresinde tarmili palesznyik örliklen olaşmış ki birim okanik düşimil yer alır Metarafiram derecesi çekirdise Etit alam, tepelik ve yarmış o Topuk biriyesi kumb-tih-kireşi yaşıdı 15-20 okarındıkle. Etit aların DSi'hmi bilikler, başday, arpa, baş ve ayşıtır o daşadır. Buckarın sikir de koconnik ol "Kanı Marjimi Tarım Anzikiş Kı'haj' sun Marka İlimi kirim işşi şayları | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Naom Imm Pien ve 1/100 čejeki Göneş Enerji SantniPie ai söz kon yapıhnızır. 2. Arazi Önetlikleri Manka ve çovresinde tarmili paleozoyik önliden olaşmış ki birim olanak düşimil yer alır Metaorfirma derecesei çekendese Etit atan, tepetik ve yarmış o Topuk biryesi kumlər tih-kireşi yaşıdı 15.20 okarındıkler. Etit alıre DSi'imi bilikler, hışday, arpa, haş ve ayşıtı o duşudur. Burkam sikit ne kokconnik ol Kanu Marjimi Turun Anazik (KTA)' sun Manisa İlimi aktirin Eşi çayları yarda 83.3mı. Ve en az yağış Ağazon o | ones tayırman 5,5%150 hetenik karat terini di presence keyen, 'tarit' vach, 10,846539 hekar yetelçindi genetin mülçişi onusu tayırman 5,5%150 hetenik karat terini di "Lansor Gives Enrifi Samari'i veskiri tayınırmen işkiri. 15500 ölçeki il Uygalamı Inur Pian yapılmısı takbinde balanalağı belrinersi, taşarmazı planaz alandayer aldığı yapılacak olan "Lisursoz anu inur plan yapılmısındasakınca balanap, balanmadığın ilşisin Kurum görleğimtisin sonulmusı ikerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde ettü ci yaşlı metafermik kayaçılar olaştarız. Menderes mısifi olanuk adlanılının temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekindek ve baran therinde bir intiştik. Cekindek gauşılandan olaşmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanı üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkır. Cekindek gauşılandan olaşmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanı üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkı Ku bu olaşmaştık işaşalarışda kuşaştarın tazırıcı masonok yaşlı kineçinşları gelir. Mesonoyêk kireçinşlarına itarinde intir çıkık kuşalarışda hazıdır. Yetarınıştır Bariar göstü gauşsin ve mavi göstü gauştanın üzerinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir çıkık daşışlarışda kalmaştır. Bariar göstü gauşları ve mavi göstü gauşalar yet çeşi kaşalarını olaşmaş kalın bir örtü nir yeta kuşalarışda hazılar yer alır. anza topoğıştik ponişiyonanda çıkışı bir yaşışı arz etmekterin Anarian eşini %10-18 ile %18-25 amasında değişintektedir. alıştır sahası dışada kalmakında Elü alını tarinde ganel olanık tarm yapışlarınıktadır. Yörede yaygın olarak tarını yapışları olaş, burada tarmışta laşlaşterin çaşışleşı çışış şerçleşi çişdeşi bir yapıştar. |
| Naom Imm Pien ve 1/100 čájeki Göreş Enerji SantniPie na stěk kon yapátným. 2. Arnoi Önellikleri Manisa ve covresinde tarmě paleoznyké Ortikien odgrana ški bětim okrati obraki yumaze okrak rezjerini karasal obcelis Etit atom, tepelik ve yazmy a Topnik bitnyeni knih stěk-kredů spodi Etit atom, tepelik ve yazmy a Topnik bitnyeni knih stěk-kredů spodi Pieta klasticke Etit alen DSI'mi, bitikke, hajday, arpa, hag ve zsytic Naseka linim kétni Ege kzylarn yradi 83.3mm. Ve en az yágis Agazos e Akapetiri Ihernikin yálik cetalarna VSV'ár. | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 člojski Otneg Enerji Santmi ² ne ni stak kon spathnizi. 2. Arazi Önellikkeri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozryski Ortikien olgermi ski birin olarni digirini yer alte Atteströmme dervoesi geleideksi vyumsær olarak treejerini karasai geleike Etti atam, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Varak Manise Etti alter DSI'nin bitike, huğday, arpa, hug ve zeytic Ospande Bitmi skiht di desornik od "Karu Marjimi Tarım Arazisi(KTA)" sırı Manisa Ilinin kitmi Ege kaydarı yında 83,3mm. Ve en av yağıs Ağazos e Alaşehir İlçersikin yalık ortaların Məsikin İlçersikin yalık ortaların | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/100 čájeků Görnej Enerji SantniPine ná sůže kon yapohrají: 2. Arnož Örellikleri Manisa ve covresinde terměl paleoznyků Ortiklen odgrana ški bětino tomá důpisní yver alk Materinim deroceni peloideka uyumsze okrak terejenin karasal jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Toprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Toprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Joprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis 1520 osarnatkali. Etta kare DSI 'mr. bitáke, hudaju zrao, hug ve zsytu Osapade Buthan skih di učenomi o Karasa Marjinal Tarom Anzási(KTA)' ser Masika linin skihrat Ege kzylara yvala 83.3mm. Ve en az ysigs Agazos c Alayetári Iujenskih ydike otnásmo | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/100 čájeků Görnej Enerji SantniPine ná sůže kon yapohrají: 2. Arnož Örellikleri Manisa ve covresinde terměl paleoznyků Ortiklen odgrana ški bětino tomá důpisní yver alk Materinim deroceni peloideka uyumsze okrak terejenin karasal jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Toprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Toprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis Etta atom, tepešík ve yazme o Joprak bitnyeni karaša jokelis 1520 osarnatkali. Etta kare DSI 'mr. bitáke, hudaju zrao, hug ve zsytu Osapade Buthan skih di učenomi o Karasa Marjinal Tarom Anzási(KTA)' ser Masika linin skihrat Ege kzylara yvala 83.3mm. Ve en az ysigs Agazos c Alayetári Iujenskih ydike otnásmo | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 člojski Otneg Enerji Santmi ² ne ni stak kon spathnizi. 2. Arazi Önellikkeri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozryski Ortikien olgermi ski birin olarni digirini yer alte Atteströmme dervoesi geleideksi vyumsær olarak treejerini karasai geleike Etti atam, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Varak Manise Etti alter DSI'nin bitike, huğday, arpa, hug ve zeytic Ospande Bitmi skiht di desornik od "Karu Marjimi Tarım Arazisi(KTA)" sırı Manisa Ilinin kitmi Ege kaydarı yında 83,3mm. Ve en av yağıs Ağazos e Alaşehir İlçersikin yalık ortaların Məsikin İlçersikin yalık ortaların | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 člojski Otneg Enerji Santmi ² ne ni stak kon spathnizi. 2. Arazi Önellikkeri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozryski Ortikien olgermi ski birin olarni digirini yer alte Atteströmme dervoesi geleideksi vyumsær olarak treejerini karasai geleike Etti atam, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Varak Manise Etti alter DSI'nin bitike, huğday, arpa, hug ve zeytic Ospande Bitmi skiht di desornik od "Karu Marjimi Tarım Arazisi(KTA)" sırı Manisa Ilinin kitmi Ege kaydarı yında 83,3mm. Ve en av yağıs Ağazos e Alaşehir İlçersikin yalık ortaların Məsikin İlçersikin yalık ortaların | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahrada belirilerek yaşak metaformak kayaçılar olaştarız. Menzieres masifi olanuk adlınıhınla temekleki kayaçılar, bir çekimlek ve bunan teerinde bir imiştik. Cekindek ganayalan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. et ku bu velanık kayalanızılan banadır yer alır. adır. Toprak derniği 50 em almıkı olaşı, anı kaya genel olanık yatoyolotir. Taşlak da yer yer değintekle birlikte ortakırın % olaşı banda kahrakıtadır. Etti alını teerinde genel olanık tarm yapınıranıktadır. 100 adı, 1 pesel etti yapıkın atızı kayaşı ayaşı kirayaşlışı, kirade arayaşı, anı kayanın yüzayde olanışı yabata kahrakıtadı bahrakıtadı taşlaşı baş başışı kayaşı ayaş araş eleşinek yözeyen şişatarı başlaşıkışı dana dahasa dayada kahrakıtadır. Başla karaşı kaşlaşı başlaşı başlaşı yaşlaşı aşlaşı alaşlaşı danaşı dahakata alındığında mayacakır. 101 adı. 1 pesel etti yapıkın arazi kleşi organyaşı, pansel bityaklığı ve sukanabirlik danarı dakata alındığında tayına daha sertir. Yadarı azak ve karak, kaşları ük yaşlaşlaş gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatar.En çek yağış Analıkta yaya |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 člojski Otneg Enerji Santmi ² ne ni stak kon spathnizi. 2. Arazi Önellikkeri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozryski Ortikien olgermi ski birin olarni digirini yer alte Atteströmme dervoesi geleideksi vyumsær olarak treejerini karasai geleike Etti atam, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Varak Manise Etti alter DSI'nin bitike, huğday, arpa, hug ve zeytic Ospande Bitmi skiht di desornik od "Karu Marjimi Tarım Arazisi(KTA)" sırı Manisa Ilinin kitmi Ege kaydarı yında 83,3mm. Ve en av yağıs Ağazos e Alaşehir İlçersikin yalık ortaların Məsikin İlçersikin yalık ortaların | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |
| Nazmi Imre Pien ve 1/1000 člojski Otneg Enerji Santmi ² ne ni stak kon spathnizi. 2. Arazi Önellikkeri Manisa ve çevresinde termili paleozryski Ortikien olgermi ski birin olarni digirini yer alte Atteströmme dervoesi geleideksi vyumsær olarak treejerini karasai geleiles Etti atam, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Varak Batana, tepelik ve yarmç a Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi yarak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi ve alte Attestratik Batana Batana Toprak bitnyesi kumbi-Klin-Kireşki spadi Yarak Marijimi Tarım Arazisi(KTA)'' sırı Manisa İlinin klimi Ege kayları yarda 63,3mm. Ve en az yağı Ağazos e Alaşehir İlçerskin yilik ortaların Məstik | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |
| Naom Imm Pien ve 1/100 čájeki Göreş Enerji SantniPie na stěk kon yapátným. 2. Arnoi Önellikleri Manisa ve covresinde tarmě paleoznyké Ortikien odgrana ški bětim okrati obraki yumaze okrak rezjerini karasal obcelis Etit atom, tepelik ve yazmy a Topnik bitnyeni knih stěk-kredů spodi Etit atom, tepelik ve yazmy a Topnik bitnyeni knih stěk-kredů spodi Pieta klasticke Etit alen DSI'mi, bitikke, hajday, arpa, hag ve zsytic Naseka linim kétni Ege kzylarn yradi 83.3mm. Ve en az yágis Agazos e Akapetiri Ihernikin yálik cetalarna VSV'ár. | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |
| Nazen Imar Pien ve 1/1000 diçekî Güneş Enerji Santnall'ne alı söz kon yapılmıştı. 2. Arazi Özellikleri Manka ve çevresinde tarmeli palenziyik oftikien olgaruş iki birin olarak düştürü yunnuz olarak neojenin karasal olderlir Etit alun, tepešk ve yatenç a Topak bitiyesi karakı kili kireşi yapıdı 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları Olderlir 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları DİSİ'nin bikiker, bağdaş, arşa, bağ ve zaytin olaşadır. Burkana kalı da dacomik ol "Kara Marjiral Tarım Anzaiş(KTA)" sın Manisa İlmin kilim Ege koyları ıyında 83,3mır. Ve en az yağı Ağastor o Alaşahir İlçerkin ilçerkini yıllık cetakının %54'dır. | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |
| Nazen Imar Pien ve 1/1000 diçekî Güneş Enerji Santnall'ne alı söz kon yapılmıştı. 2. Arazi Özellikleri Manka ve çevresinde tarmeli palenziyik oftikien olgaruş iki birin olarak düştürü yunnuz olarak neojenin karasal olderlir Etit alun, tepešk ve yatenç a Topak bitiyesi karakı kili kireşi yapıdı 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları Olderlir 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları DİSİ'nin bikiker, bağdaş, arşa, bağ ve zaytin olaşadır. Burkana kalı da dacomik ol "Kara Marjiral Tarım Anzaiş(KTA)" sın Manisa İlmin kilim Ege koyları ıyında 83,3mır. Ve en az yağı Ağastor o Alaşahir İlçerkin ilçerkini yıllık cetakının %54'dır. | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |
| Nazen Imar Pien ve 1/1000 diçeki Güneş Enerji Santmil'ne air söz kom yapılmıştır. 2. Arasti Özellikleri Manisa ve çorresinde tarmeli paleozayık örtiklen olaşmış iki birim olarak döşimli yer aik. Metaorfarmı derecesi qekirdide Eniz aları, tepelik ve yarmış a Topasi bitmesi kumlık-kili-kireşli yapıdı 5-20 okarmıtadır. Eniz aları DSİ'min bitkiker, haşdayı, arpa, hag ve ayışını o daşadır. Burkamı sıklı da skozomik do "Kara Marjimi Tarmı Aracisi(KTA)" san Manisa İlmin ikim ge koşlura | Oracle Landon 15, Solido Leitanik, karn üterinde Koylen, Tahli Vande, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil punalen mölkejet Tyyalama Imar Pära yapainus takötöde baknakköji belmäensä, sagamaan planse akadöjer akäjä, yöpäesä olin "Lisunsee aus inar pära yapämasandasakinea haknap, bakarmedijana lijkin Kunam göräjöhnödin sondimus ükerine 23.01.2023 tarihinde että (yapä metädermäk käyaçiar oksturu: Menderes musif olaruk adlanzhinian teneiddeli käyaçiar, bit çekintisk ve banan teneinde bit mityäta: Cekintisk gaupämatan okarmetar. Hanire gödä gaupäin ve mavi gödä gaupäina Davinde pisterden olagmuş kalın bir önd en dea dögu asanındunde. Metanrotik käyaçiarın tüsere masionok yaşlı kineytnajan geli. Mesonoyle kineqinajanan üterinde diri örö Kila volkanık kayalarıtan okarmetar. Hanire gödä gaupäin ve mavi gödü gaupäina Davinde pisterden olagmuş kalın bir önd en dea dögu asanındunde. Metanrotik kayaçıların tüsere masionok yaşlı kineytnajan geli. Mesonoyle kineqinajanın üterinde diri örö Kila volkanık kayalarıtan bazadır yer alır. |
| Nazen Imar Pien ve 1/1000 diçekî Güneş Enerji Santnall'ne alı söz kon yapılmıştı. 2. Arazi Özellikleri Manka ve çevresinde tarmeli palenziyik oftikien olgaruş iki birin olarak düştürü yunnuz olarak neojenin karasal olderlir Etit alun, tepešk ve yatenç a Topak bitiyesi karakı kili kireşi yapıdı 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları Olderlir 5-20 oranmızdak. Etit aları DİSİ'nin bikiker, bağdaş, arşa, bağ ve zaytin olaşadır. Burkana kalı da dacomik ol "Kara Marjiral Tarım Anzaiş(KTA)" sın Manisa İlmin kilim Ege koyları ıyında 83,3mır. Ve en az yağı Ağastor o Alaşahir İlçerkin ilçerkini yıllık cetakının %54'dır. | onzo tagarmon 5,5%150 lektelik kara tearin (* Lanser, Giver, Jank' wech, 10,846539 hektar yötöljettil paraelen mölkyötö Uygalama Inur Pian yapahrasa takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığ, yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza planaz alandayer aldığı yapdacak olan "Lisansoz anu inar plan yapahrasandasakınca takbinde bahradağa belirilerek, tagarmaza bahrada bahrada bahrada bahradakının bahradayı alan belirilerek tayab metaformak kayaşılandı kontarmaştır. Bariar gözül gauyalar ve mavi gözül gauyaların takrinde şistlerden olaşmaş kalın be ördi en dışa dağıtı asarhadadır. Metarmarlık tayaşların takrine maxonok yaşlı kireçinşları gelir. Mesozoyêk kireçinşlarını takrinde inte Klub volasatik kaşalanızıla hazdıkır yaşılar alanı tahrasa daşıda kalmakıdır. Bağı alın takrinde genel olanak tarm yapılarınıkladır. 100 ala. 1 pesel etti yapışıka tayaşlaşı tayaşlaşı kireçinşişi berişe işideli erayaşı, anu kayaşını yüzeyde olanak tarm yapılarınıklağı ve sukanabirde kalmakıdır. Başık daşıda kalmakıdır. Başı alan barinde genel olanak tarm yapışlaşı alaşı alaşı alandışındı deşinen dekata alındığında mayacakır. 101 ada. 1 pesel etti yapıkısı arazi klişta tayaşlaşı gayen.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana sertir, Yadam azak ve kıraşık kışlaşı dık ve yağışlış gene.En soğak aylar Ocak ve Şuhatm.En çok yağış Amalıkta tayında 4.1mm olana kerşi edilmişir. |





Bit alan halihazeta boş tarım yapılmıyan tepelik ve yamaç anazi konunnanladır. Devlet ve çiliçi sularması hulanmıyan parselin "Kuru Marjinal Tarım Anazis(KTA) sınıfında oldığa belirkamiştir. Anazinin çovresinde de benzer tarım anazieri bukarmıktadır. Anazin yolu ile tasşimaktadır. Anazinin doğlal duramu ve mevçut kullanım şekl kazı, doğla ve benzeri filkele tarihi edilerek mevçuk kullanım şeklrin boxatiradığı görtleriştir. Emi alanında halikanında tarım yapılmanıktadır. Yörede yayan olanak tarım yapıkan bağının ontanım veririnini yaklaşı doğlardı (doğlardıktadır. Kuru tarım, buğlayda bölge ortalarım verini 400.kgida, angada 300 kgida, Bolgade çoğırakıka Edirmit olmak tarere Usla ve Triye zeytin çeşifari yetiştinimektedir. Verini olduğu yakla yetişda bişişe özlaşın doğlaş doğlaş danın vermektedir. Ettit alanam tarımad meliklerinin çok ayışf olması nedeniyle bölge ortaların verinin diteyi alanda verim alınabicengi kazanatindeyir.

Söz konasu 1/25000 ülçekli haritada göserken ve ölçü kroksinde köşe koordinarlan verilen 101 ada, 1 parsekle "Güneş Emerji Sæntmi Tesis(Güneş Panetleri ile Elektrik Üretim Tesis)'teri armeşh 1/5000 ölçekli Nazon İmar Plans ve 1/1000 ölçekli Uygalama İmar Plans yapılmas ile äğil olaralı; 4342 saylı Men Kananu ile mena saylan yerke; 3083 Saylı "Statma Alanlarında Anzi dizenlermesine Dair Tarım Reforma Kanana" 3573 saylı "Zeytinlerin İslah ve Yabanlerinin Aşlatrainsa ile ek 4086 saylı Zeytinetik Kananu" kapsamındaki olan yerlerden değildir.

4.Some ve Öneriler

4.1. Amainin Yöre İçin Önemi



Eitt alamada ekonomik anlanda tarensal firetim yapılmadığırdan Manika li ve üçelerinin artan enerji takplerini kesirikiz, kulleti ve gibendir şekilde kaşalıyacak ve yörenin ekonomisine olamla katta sağlayacak Güneş Enerji Santmä Tesis(Güneş Panelleri de Elektrik Uretim Tesis)'teri, korulması de enerji yörtinden önemi ön plana çıkmaktadır.

4.2. Tanım Dışı Kullanımında Çevre Arazilere ve Tanımsal Üretime Etkişi

)"Gineş Enerji Santral'nin yapıkcuğ arazi üzerine tesis edilecek yatırınların inşant aşamısanda veya faalyeti arasında, çevresine zanar verilmentesi için gerekli aşağıla belinlen tedbirleti içeren Toprak Koruna Projesinin hazılatmış, bu projenta Vallikçe onaylunmışı ve hazırlanın bu projeye tıyalmaşı gerekmektedir.

4.3.a. Parselin içerisinden dere geçmekte olup, geçen dere için her ki sahlinde taşkın debisiri geçirebilecek ve hidrolik açıdan yeteri şeribari alan ile şeribari alan gizergala boyunca parsel tarafında 6, metre gerişliğinde yol şeriki ayrimuldir. Tesislerin yapılacağı anazlarin etrafina taşgın mesafide konum bardı brakılmışı,

Ayrnea göröş sonakın persekin, dere taşkınlarından eskikorme riski bulanmaktadır. Bu nedenle taşkana kurşı gerekli önlemler çevre duvarı, su bas

şatırmış tarafından alırmakdır. Dere yarağında taşkırı kontrol, taşkırdan kontrina todbirkri alırmadan söz konsu alında Batiyete başkunmunaldır. Toroğrufferd başk olarak yütayacı sakırın dreniş sağkırmakir

4.3.b-Tesislerin yapılacağı arazilerin etrafina tel çit çekilmesi 2 \$ Sayfa 2/3 Bu

---4.3.0-Inpast agemeants, haityst makemesi kakininken etrafielaki tarm alankandaki tarm tirbietine verileeek olar zuerkan önlemesi amacyla, toz olagamana besplannesi ve olagamana engelermesi, makemesi işin gerekli tobietini alamas, --4.3.d-Çalşacak personet ve konaklırmı yapacak misifirke tarafından oluşacak olan evsel nitelikli nıv niklar için fisaseptik ürücsi plantırmışma yörelik, katı arkları için dördüşümi olasak çöplerin ayıştırdarak katın akkarın Kananları töşan şekikle bertandina yörelik, toprak konura projesinin hazafatirirmaş gerekmiktekir. Ayınca DSI 2.Boğe Maduklağı'nıta bila tarh ve E-54493999-622.02-3063942 sayılı görüş yazanda belirilen hazaları projesinin hazafatirirmaş belanın bila tarh ve E-54493999-622.02-3063942 sayılı görüş yazanda belirilen hazaları projesinin hazafatirir sakınca belanın maktarı. -2 4.3. Etildü Yapılan Aruzinin Çevresinde Tarım Dışı Amaçla Kınllandabilecek Alternatif Alanianın Olup Olmadığı -Ente yapıkın alan toprak sındi olarak tararısal potarsiyelinin çok zayıf olması nederiyle alternatif alan özelliklerini taşımaktadır. --4.4. Erüdü Yapanların İlave Değerlendirmeleri 4.4. Europis Liperanten Lawer Degenetationeren.
Elskirk: Energisi Üveánn Gh; Tesisi(GES)kurdnuk isoemusophen 10,846539 helitar böyökölöteki anzinin (101 ada/1 parsel) "Kuru Marjinal Tarm Anzösi" senfinda olikuja tespi edingis Elst alas a berinde hallaranda elonomik infamda turmaal invinin yaphinumistadir Tarmasi Kuhann Bützninge: Gineş Energi Sastrali (GES) odikgi usepi edingis Elst alas a berinde hallaranda elonomik infamda turmaal invini yaphinumistadir Tarmasi Kuhann Bützninge: Gineş Energi Sastrali (GES) ozeliktiri e kurukabüteckini akınış göz örüne alaranık, bu energi yatımıkın için turmasıl kultanın bützningi santali eli jootannal energi sastraliseri ve kurukabüteckini akınış göz örüne alaranık, bu energi yatımıkın için turmasıl kultanın bützningi santa itasyonu ve bu hata bağı öralık eli akınış aşıkı energi şatınış kultanını bützningi şatı razomayacakır. Yine doğlazı ve petrol arama i energi kerindanı ve bu hata bağı öralık eli akınış aşıkı energi, şatınış kultanım bützningi şatı razomayacakır. Yine doğlazı ve petrol arama i energi kerindanı atınış kultanını bützningi aşışatıra alarış akınış ele elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekteri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri elekleri alarış alarış doğlara berdira araştarma ve aramalı kultanış bützikdiği aşıtı azasınaşacakır. Elü yaplıra alanış alarış alarış alarış bütürdik şerinda doğlar elekleri ele -÷ --÷ aning kulanen tseperribe, nu aten, urteau kulanti telatingi orga telatinen jepinken, urteau attena. Vazjet planada beirtiligi 101 adul parsei, toplam 10.846339 hektar yahitari olip, parsein. Isoorinatian beirtilen 5,596450 hektarik kasm taerinde Alaşehir Beldogi Begahaği umirkun, "Toplam Panel Alamot, 73000 hektar (20100 hektar), "Komm. Bank Alamo,551107hektar(3.511,07he/1),"Tikab Binas Alamo,250th,40cadet=36,50m2, "Dağlam Merkezi2,200th,40=16.00m2,"Hain Bina Alamo,000m2, "Fooseptik),2000m2, "Otoparkar", dahas Binas attena olamk atena 5,596450 hektarif55964,50m2) bityklikos alem kulturan planiumikonda. Topien 5,286494 hektarik alam "Taernad Nedigi Korusacik," alem olamk atena 5,96450 hektarif55964,50m2) bityklikos alem kulturanikoide. Anak parsein azuru das alem kun depetisi bakramikatari. "Lainato Gineş Enerji Santal (GES)" 55,596,45 m2 bişdeklikteli alem kuplışısırıkır. (101 adı, 1 parsein yakı bakımatdığırdan inter planı ve projekninde kadastrol yolı kızdır yapalenek alam naz 10m lik taşti yolu 3,495,24 m2 alan komşa 130 ada 1 parseken planlandığı belitilmiş olup, yapıkın protokol yazıkın ekinde gönderilmiştir. --m Toplam 10,846339 Jackar yütökümlü 101 ada, 1 parselin kondinatlin beliriken 5,596450 bektarit kum üterinin Alaşdır. Bakıdığı başkanığı tarakladan Güreş Baciji Santnil Teasi(Güreş Parelleri ke Elektrik Üretim Tessi) yoplarına ike üği bayınıranı, 09,122017 tarib ve 30265 sayılı Taran Araslirinin Konarman, Kullardımıs ve Flaslarmana dar yönetiretiğin 12. maddesimin (7) hondi geneşi(Kana kunun ve karataşları itarafından yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışın yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşılarını yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşıları intarı ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin şaşıları bakışı yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin bakımışı yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intarı ve çever dibarin şaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intarı ve çever dibarin şaşıları yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin şaşınış yaşıları yaşıları yaşınış yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları yaşınaşı yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları yaşıları intar ve çever dibari şaşıları yaşıları intarı yaşınaşı yaşılarını yaşınış yaşıları yaşıları intar ve çever dibarin şaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşıları yaşıları intarı ve çever dibari şaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşını yaşınış yaşınış yaşıları yaşıları yaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşınış yaşıları yaşınış yaşınış yaşınış yaşı yaşışı iş yaşışı Toşnak Koruma Kurakı yaşınış yaşıları intar ve çever dibar şaşışı yaşışı iş geneşi iş şaşışı Toşnak Koruma Kurakı yaşınış yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı taraşı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı yaşışı iş yaşışı iş geneşi şaşışı iş yaşışı taraş yaşışış yaşışı yaşış yaşışı yaşışışı yaşışış yaşışı yaş 2 5 --4.5. Tanımal Bütünlük Ve Proje Bütünlüğü Bügüeri -Olneş Eneji Santali (GES) müncautlarının değirlendirilmesi MADDE 16- '(8) Güneş enejisi sentralleri, rüşde enerjisi sentralleri, hürcelekerik enerji santallari o jotermul eneji santallari özellikeri ve karalabilecekleri alanlar göz önüze almırak, bu enerji yatırınları için termel kalanını bülünüğü şara aranmyazaktır. Yine doğuğuz ve peteol aranı ik eneji iletim hati ve bu hata hağlı olarak tesis edilmesi sourulu (mös, Sak merkezi, kök, pilon direk yeri, vara, basıç düşürne istasyona ve), müştemlat, az kaşaları ve atkısı aramı tesisleri için hüyaç doyulan alarkır için de alternatif alan araşarmısı ve tarınısal, kularını bütünüğü şara aranmyazaktır. Mükmü gereği bütünük değirlendirmesi yapâranıştır. ---Haurlayanlar



Annex 5: Letter of General Directorate of State Hydraulic Work





T.C TARIM VE ORMAN BAKANLIĞI Devlet Su İşleri Genel Müdürlüğü 2. Bölge Müdürlüğü



Savi : E-54495999-622 02-3063942

Konu : Manisa ili, Alașehir ilçesi, İsmetiye mahallesi, 101 ada, 1 no.lu taşınmaz "Güneş Enerji Santrali"

DAĞITIM YERLERİNE

Ilgi : 21.12.2022 tarihli ve 67741933-27701 sayılı yazınız.

İlgi yazınızda; Manisa ili, Alaşehir ilçesi, İsmetiye mahallesi, 101 ada, 1 no.lu taşınmaz üzerinde "Güneş Enerji Santrali" yapılmak istendiği belirtilerek konuya ilişkin İdaremiz görüşü istenmektedir. Yapılan inceleme neticesinde;

1. Söz konusu parselin bulunduğu sahada İdaremize ait mevcut ve mutasavver herhangi tarla içi geliştirme projesi ve sulama tesisi bulunmamaktadır. Ayrıca, Kurumumuzca inşa edilmiş gölet ya da barajların su toplama havzalarında yer almamaktadır.

2. Görüş sorulan parselin içerisinden yazımız ekindeki haritada işaretlenen dere geçmektedir.

Parselin içerisinden geçen dere için her iki sahilinde taşkın debisini geçirebilecek ve hidrolik açıdan yeterli şeritvari alan ile şeritvari alan güzergâhı boyunca parsel tarafında 6,00 metre genişliğinde yol şeridi ayrılmalıdır.

Ayrıca "Güneş Enerji Santrali"yapılacak alanın dere yatağına uzak, arazinin üst kotlarında konumlandırılmalıdır.

3. Bahse konu taşınmazın, derenin olası taşkınlardan etkilenme ihtimali bulunmaktadır. Bu nedenle taşkından korunma tedbirleri (çevre duvarı, subasman vb.) arazi sahibince alınmalı ve ilerleyen zaman içerisinde meydana gelebilecek herhangi bir taşkında İdaremizden zarar ziyan bedeli talebinde bulunulmayacağı hususu kabul edilmelidir. Dere yatağında taşkın kontrol tedbirleri alınmadan yapılaşmaya açılmamalıdır.

4. Bahse konu alanda derenin korunmaması, kapatılması, yol olarak kullanılması ve benzeri sebeplerle meydana gelebilecek taşkın olaylarında İdaremiz sorumlu olmayacaktır.

5. Faaliyet kapsamında bu alanda gerçekleştirilmesi planlanan her türlü tesis, nakliye yolu ve benzeri altyapı ile ilgili olarak Bölge Müdürlüğümüzden yazılı görüş alınmalıdır.

6. Faaliyet sonucu sıvı fazda ve katı fazda oluşacak atıkların geçirimsizliği sağlanmış ortamlarda depolanarak ilgili mevzuat çerçevesinde bertaraf edilmesi sağlanmalıdır. Yeraltı ve yerüstü su kaynaklarının fiziksel ve kimyasal yönden etkilenmemesi için gereken tüm tedbirler alınmalıdır.

7. Çevre sorunları göz önünde tutulmalıdır. Çevre Kanunu, Yeraltı Suları Kanunu, Su Kirliliği Kontrolü Yönetmeliği, Atık Yönetimi Yönetmeliği ve ilgili mevzuat hükümlerine uyulması sağlanmalıdır.

10

Bu belge, güvenli elektronik imza ile imzalanmıştır. Doğrulama Kodu: 35CC4D0E-072C-4EB9-A89Bi-F80565996028 Doğrulama Adresi: https://v Adres: DEVLET SU IŞLERI Z. BÖLGE MÜDÜRLÜĞÜ KAZIM DİRK MAHALLESI SANAYI CADDESI NO:39 35100 BORNOVA/IZMIR KEP Adresi : dsi.gnlmud@hs01.kep.tr

Bilgi için:Bahar Azra ARLI KAYA KAYA S/S Personeli (Büro)

w.turkiye.gov.tr/devlet-su-isleri-ebys

İdaremiz görüşü, ilgi yazınız ekinde gönderilen harita ve koordinat bilgilerine göre verilmiştir. Yazımız ekindeki haritada görüş belirttiğimiz 874 no.lu taşınmaza ait alanın değişmesi, kayması halinde İdaremiz görüşü geçerli değildir.

Söz konusu alan ile ilgili Bölge Müdürlüğümüz görüşlerini içeren bilgiler teknik tespit niteliğindedir. Yasal mevzuat uyarınca; istenilen amaçla kullanılması yönünde, karar alma yetkisine sahip, ilgili kamu kurum veya kuruluşun kararı öncesi değerlendirmeler için veri oluşturmayı amaçlamaktadır.

Bilgilerinizi rica, gereğini arz ederim.

Hasan Cenk ÇETİN Bölge Müdürü a. Bölge Müdür Yardımcısı

Ek: Harita (1 Adet)

Dağıtım:

Gereği:

Alaşehir Belediye Başkanlığı (İmar ve Şehircilik Müdürlüğü) Bilgi: DSİ 22. ŞUBE MÜDÜRLÜĞÜ

Bu belge, givenli elektronik imza ile imzalanmıştır. Doğrulama Kodu: 35CC4D0E-072C-4EB9-A89B-F80565996028 Doğrulama Adresi: https://www.turkiye.gov.tr/devlet-su-isleri-ebys Adres: DEVLET SU IŞLERI 2. BÖLGE MÜDÜRLÜĞÜ KAZIM DIRİK MAHALLESI SANAYI CADDESI NO:39 5100 BORNOVA/IZMIR KEP Adresi : dsi.gsilmud@hs01.kep.tr 2/12

Annex 6: Letter of GDZ Electricity Distribution Services





Sayı : PTD-YPM-BGY-

Konu : ALAŞEHİR BELEDİYE BAŞKANLIĞI (35815) (2640 kW) // Çağın Mektubu Bağlantı Noktası Değişikliği Hk.

ALAŞEHİR BELEDİYE BAŞKANLIĞI MAKİNE İKMAL BAKIM VE ONARIM MÜDÜRLÜĞÜ

İlgi : a) 28/11/2022 tarihli ve 70474 sayılı çağıı mektubunuz, b) 10/06/2025 tarihli ve 114124 sayılı talebiniz,

İlgi b) yazınız ile, Manisa ili Alaşehir ilçesi İsmetiye mahallesi 101 ada 1 parselde kurulması planlanan 2640 kW kurulu gücündeki Güneş Enerjisi Santrali için verilen ilgi a) bağlantı anlaşması çağrı mektubunun 1. Maddesinde belirtilen bağlantı noktasının, yeni tesis edilen ve santral sahanıza daha yakın olan Berna Tanım Özel TR'nin 21 No'lu direğinden irtibatlı olacak şekilde revize edilmesi talep edilmiştir.

Yapılan inceleme neticesinde ilgi b) dilekçe ekinde BERNA TARIM ÜRÜNLERİ SAN. VE TİC. A.Ş.'den / AKT ENERJİ'den muvafakat alındığı görülmüş olup, ilgi a) çağın mektubunun 1. Maddesi aşağıdaki gibi düzenlenmiştir;

" 1. Kurulması planlanan 2640 kW kurulu gücündeki GES; 154/34,5 kV Alaşehir Havza TM'den çıkan 34,5 kV gerilimli 3x477 MCM kesitli Tariş fiderinden enerjili Kemaliye DM (TR-1)'den çıkan İsmetiye hattının Berna Tarım Özel TR (45-73-M01317Ö) adlı trafoyu besleyen hattın 21 No'lu direğinden alınacak gevşek/sıkı bağ ile beslenecek uygun sayıda ve güçteki trafolar üzerinden sisteme bağlanacaktır. 21 No'lu direkten alınacak irtibattan hemen sonra ayırıcı (seksiyoner) direği tesis edilerek bağlantı sağlanacaktır.

Dağıtım Şebekesi: -

Bağlantı Hattı: 260 metre Havai/Yeraltı YG bağlantı hattı (Ayırıcı direğinden sonra tesis edilecek bağlantı hattı saha koşullarına göre yeraltı ya da havai tesis edilebilecektir)"

Yukanda belirtilen hususlar ilgi a) çağı mektubu süresi geçerli olması ve belirtilen diğer koşulların sağlanması kaydı ile ilgili bağlantı anlaşması çağı mektubu revize edilmiştir.

Bilgilerinize arz ederiz.

e-imzalıdır Meriç GER Dağıtım Grubu Planlama ve Teknoloji Direktörü

e-imzalıdır Ekrem YILDIRIM Bağlantı Talepleri Müdürü(V)

Ekler : Yeni Bağlantıyı Gösterir Kroki

Dağıtım <u>Gereği :</u> ALAŞEHİR BELEDİYE BAŞKANLIĞINA

<u>Bilgi :</u> Alaşehir İşletme Yöneticiliğine Manisa Bölge Müdürlüğüne Stratejik Planlama Yöneticiliğine

Evrala Doğrulamak İçin : https://dogrula.gdmelektrik.com.tr/en/Vision.Sorgula/BelgeDogrulama.aspx?eD=BSL3EC2B590 Evralk Pin Kodn : 83303 Gdz Elektrik Doğrun – Oniversite Cad., No.57, 35042, Bornova-Izmir – Türkiye T 0232 477 26 00 E <u>biologogizelektrik.com.tr</u> www.gdzelektrik.com.tr

Bu belge, 5070 savılı Elektronik İmza Kanununa göre Güvenli Elektronik İmza ile imzalanmıştır.



Bu belge, 5070 sayılı Elektronik İmza Kanununa göre Güvenli Elektronik İmza ile imzalanmıştır.

Annex 7: Connection Consent Letter from Akt Energy Inc.³

IZMIR 27. NOTERI RAFET HILWI FILIKCI Ismet Kaptan Mah. Sezer Değan Sokak No: 4/B Tel: 0.232 441 18 01 Konak/IZMIR Konak V.D. T.C. No: 245 962 449 38



GDZ ELEKTRİK DAĞITIM A.Ş. GENEL MÜDÜRLÜĞÜ'NE

MUVAFAKATNAME

Manisa ili, Alaşehir İlçesi, Gülpınar Mahallesinde bulunan Enerji Nakil Hatlarımızdan, Alaşehir Belediyesi'ne ait GES Enerji Santrali için, branjman alınmasına muvafakat eder, rıza gösteririz.

MUVAFAKAT EDEN

AKT ENERJİ A.Ş.

Akdeniz Mahallesi Gaziosmanpaşa Bulvarı Batı İş Merkezi K:1 D:11 KONAK-İZMİR

KONAK VD. 039 031 6177

AKT THER JI A.S. Merkez: Akdeniz Mh. Gazhaoganega, By No:10/1 K:1 D:11 Konak / IZMIR Mrkz. Mc: And And And Art To 0018 Sube: Süleymanin OSR. Mir. Nacharagan Cd. No:15/1 Akhisar / Manisa Sh. Mersis Nackaga 3016 1770 0019 Konak V.D.: 030 37 D:17 Tel: 0850 297 54 36. c-mail Mc@akkeerji.com.tr



³ Official consent letter given to Alaşehir Municipality by AKT Enerji A.Ş. and approved by İzmir 27th Notary Public.

Tarih: 21/05/2025 Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Yev No: (A) №06532 T.C. IZMIR 27. NOTERLIĞI Dışarıda hazırlanan ve onay için noterliğimize getirilen bu işlem altındaki imzanın 0390316177 vergi numaralı AKT ENERJİ ANONİM ŞİRKETİ adına YETKİLİSİ olarak hareket eden, gösterdiği T.C. İçişleri Bakanlığı tarafından verilmiş 20/09/2029 geçerlilik tarihli, A22M15334 seri numaralı, fotoğraflı Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Kimlik Kartına göre, baba adı YAŞAR, ana adı HATİCE, doğum tarihi 27/12/1978 olan ve halen yukarıdaki adreste bulunduğunu, okuryazar olduğunu bildiren 31267386040 T.C. kimlik numaralı SAFİYE FİLİZ TÜRKAL isimli kişiye ait olduğunu İşlerinin çokluğu nedeni ile gidilen adresinde huzurumda alındığını, onaylarım. Yirmibir Mayıs İkibinyirmibeş, Çarşamba günü 21/05/2025 IZMIR 27. NOTERI RAFET HILMI FILIKCI 1374.SOK. N:4/B G.OSMANPAŞA BULVARI ÇANKAYA 35210 KONAK / İZMİR Tel:+902324411801 Fax:+902324899882 DAYANAK: **İZMİR 27.** Noterliği'nden **24/07/2023** tarih ve **15299** yevmiye no ile tasdikli imza sirkülerinin incelenmesinden **AKT ENERJİ ANONİM ŞİRKETİ** adına **27/07/2023** tarihinden itibaren MÜNFERİDEN- ÜÇ YIL SÜRE İLE temsile SAFİYE FİLİZ TÜRKAL isimli kişinin yetkili olduğu görüldü. İZMİR 27. NOTERİ RAFET HİLMİ FİLİKCİ Yerine İmzaya Yetkili Başkatip NAFI KARANFIL GLUS SIVEN 1 A-2/1-1

FK54 A / S Yazı : 1 / 0 Kod: 7.4.1 NBS 2025052103500273773603456



Annex 8: Energy Transmission Line Consent Letter (101 Block 40 Parcel)

| | ALASEHIRAI ÖRNEKTIR 12834 |
|---------------------|---|
| (contrast | ALAŞEHİR BELEDİYESİ TARAFINDAN YAPILAN GÜNEŞ ENERJİSİ SANTRALİ İÇİN ALAŞEHİR İLÇESİ İSMETİYE MAHALLESİ 101 ADA 40 PARSEL ÜZERİNDEN GEÇİRİLECEK ENERJİ NAKİL HATTINA İLİŞKİN MUVAFAKATNAMEDİR |
| | I-TARAFLAR : 0 5 Eylül 2024 |
| | a) Muvafakat Alan: Alaşehir Belediye Başkanlığı (0480040726) Adresi: Yenice Mahallesi Beşeylül Cad. No:30 Alaşehir/MANISA Tel No : 444-8-653 Faks No : 0-236-6539390 |
| SOGUK DAMGA VARDIR. | b) Muvafakat Veren: Automatica Multiple Alexandra (Muvafakat Veren: Automatica Vatandaslık No: R-9791032875 (Urdün Haşimi Krallığı) Vekil (Salihli 4. Noterliği 22/07/2022 tarih 12041 Yev. Sy. Vek.) |
| OCUN | 2- TAŞINMAZ BİLGİLERİ |
| ر ر | Manisa İli Alaşehir İlçesi İsmetiye Mahallesi Pedertepe Mevkii 101 Ada 40 Parsel |
| | 3-KONUSU: |
| | 28/11/2022 tarihli ve 70474 sayılı Çağrı Mektubu ile Alaşehir Belediyesi tarafından kurulması planlanan Güneş Enerji Santraline ilişkin olarak Manisa İli, Alaşehir İlçesi İsmetiye Mahallesi 101 ada 40 parselde kayıtlı taşınmaz üzerinden Enerji Nakil hattının geçirilmesine ve hattı taşıyan direk alanının taşınmaz parsel sınırına yapılmasına muvafakat edilmesi. |
| | 4-YÜKÜMLÜLÜKLER: |
| | Mülkiyet Hakkı Sahibi, Manisa İli, Alaşehir İlçesi İsmetiye Mahallesi 101 ada 40 parselde kayıtlı taşınmazı üzerinden Enerji Nakil hattının geçirilmesine ve hattı taşıyan direk alanının taşınmaz parsel sınırına yapılmasına muvafakat ederek, tapuda irtifak hakkı kurulmasına rıza gösterecektir, Direk alanı için 4 m2 alanın bedeli Alaşehir Belediyesi tarafından ödenecektir. (Alaşehir Belediyesi tarafından taşınmaz rayiç bedeli parsel alanı arsa m2 değeri 6,13 TL olup, protokol ekinde belirtilmiştir.) |
| | 5-MALÍ HUSUSLAR: |
| | Muvafakatnamenin imzalanmasına müteakip, enerji nakil hatlarının geçirilmesi ile direk alanının yapılmasına verilen izin karşılığında Mülkiyet hakkı sahibine Alaşehir Belediye Başkanlığı tarafından 4 m2 alanın karşılığı olarak 24,52-TL bedel ödenecektir. |
| | 6-YÜRÜRLÜLÜK: |
| | Bu muvafakatname 05.09.2024 Tarihinde imzalanarak yürürlüğe girmiştir. |
| | EK: Rayiç Bedel Tablosu |
| | |
| | Adına Vekâleten Belediye Başkan Yard. |
| | Adına Vekâleten Belediye Başkan Yard. |
| | IMZA IMZA |

Annex 9: Minutes of Public Participation Meeting



This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank Bu Proje Avrupa Birliği, Türkiye Cumhuriyeti ve Dünya Bankası tarafından ortaklaşa finanse edilmek

SUSTAINABLE CITIES PROJECT-II **Additional Financing**

ALAŞEHİR SOLAR POWER PLANT PROJECT

MINUTES of PUBLIC CONSULTATION MEETING

Revision : REV.00 Meeting Date : 16 Dec 2024 Meeting Place: Alaşehir Municipality Meeting Hall



This Minutes of Public Consultation Meeting has been prepared by ARDEA Project & Consultancy on behalf of ILBANK A.Ş. within the scope of Sustainable Cities Project II -Additional Financing (SCP-II AF) supported by the World Bank (WB) and the European Union (EU). It cannot be reproduced and/or published by printing, photocopying, or any other means without the permission of ARDEA Project & Consultancy; nor may they be used for any purpose other than for which they were produced, without such permission.













1. PUBLIC CONSULTATION MEETING

Alasehir Solar Power Project which will be financed under SCP-II-AF is one of the sub-projects to support sustainable development.

The Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) has been prepared in accordance with Turkish environmental and social legislation, World Bank Safeguard Policies including Operational Policies (OPs), World Bank General EHS Guidelines and Industrial Sector Guidelines and ILBANK's ESMP. In addition to these studies, a Public Consultation Meeting was held on 16.12.2024 at 02:00 p.m. following the completion of the ESMP. Public Consultation Meeting announcements were published on the official website and in national and local newspapers. In addition, brochures regarding the meeting were hung in the neighborhood mukhtar's offices and on bulletin boards.

1.1. Summary

During the Public Consultation Meeting, information about the project was presented by municipal officials and the consultancy firm. The details are as follows:

The meeting was opened with a speech by an official from the Acting Director of the Machinery Supply, Maintenance, and Repair Department of Alaşehir Municipality, providing general information about the project. Following this, the Ardea Project Consulting Team explained the significance of the Alaşehir Solar Power Plant project, emphasizing that it is a World Bank-financed project under the Sustainable Cities Project II Additional Financing. It was stated that the project is an important step for the municipality in terms of renewable energy and combating climate change. The solar power plant project aims to cover a significant portion of the municipality's energy costs through clean energy. It was also mentioned that the project is planned to be completed within 5 months and will provide social contributions to the district.

In a presentation by the Ardea Project Consulting Team, the project was introduced, and information regarding its Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) was provided. The location of the land where the project will be implemented and other technical details were explained. The suitability of the Alaşehir district for the solar power plant and its solar exposure potential were highlighted. Within the scope of the ESMP, it was noted that the environmental and social risks of the project were assessed, a current situation analysis was conducted, and analyses were carried out regarding the area's geography, climate conditions, solar exposure, vegetation, natural and cultural values, and natural disasters such as floods and earthquakes. It was stated that the project could create future opportunities for local residents and that the use of renewable energy sources is essential in combating climate change. Social advantages were also emphasized, describing the project as a significant step for Alaşehir and an exemplary project for the future.

Lastly, it was highlighted that the grievance mechanism will be given importance during the construction and operational phases of the project.

3





This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank By Data Aware Biblic Turking Companies on Diana Bankara traditional and the World Bank

1.2. Question & Answer Session

In this sub-section, the opinions, requests, and questions of the participants and the relevant answers received during the Public Consultation Meeting have been presented. The details are as follows:

Question 1: Alaşehir Citizen

What will be the contributions of the project to Alasehir?

Answer 1: Representative from the Consulting Firm (Ardea Project & Consulting)

The project will significantly reduce Alaşehir Municipality's energy costs, and the savings will be used for other services in the district. At the same time, the use of renewable energy will decrease carbon emissions, supporting an environmentally friendly lifestyle. Economically, the region's energy dependency will decrease while meeting a significant portion of the district's energy needs. Additionally, the project will create social benefits and make Alaşehir a model in renewable energy projects.

Question 2: Alaşehir Citizen

Will the construction of the plant reduce electricity prices in the region?

Answer 2: Acting Director of the Machinery Supply, Maintenance, and Repair Department of Alaşehir Municipality

It will not directly reduce electricity prices. However, since a significant portion of Alaşehir Municipality's energy needs will be met by this plant, the municipality's costs will decrease. These savings will indirectly return to the local community in the form of infrastructure, social services, and other investments. In the long term, the widespread use of renewable energy has the potential to lower energy costs.

Question 3: Mukhtar of İsmetiye Neighborhood

Will there be any environmental damage during the construction of the plant?

Answer 3: Representative from the Consulting Firm (Ardea Project & Consulting)

No, the environmental impacts of the project have been carefully evaluated, and all necessary precautions have been planned. Potential impacts such as dust and noise during construction will be controlled, and operations will comply with relevant regulations. The work will be monitored to ensure no harm is done to the natural structure of the area, and an environmentally sensitive process will be followed.





Question 4: Alaşehir Citizen

Will any excess energy produced by the project be sold to the public?

Answer 4: Acting Director of the Machinery Supply, Maintenance, and Repair Department of Alaşehir Municipality

No, the energy produced will primarily be used to meet the municipality's needs. If there is any surplus energy, it will be transferred to the national energy system in accordance with legal regulations. This will contribute to the country's overall energy supply and provide financial support to the municipality.

1.3 Conclusion

The Public Consultation Meeting lasted approximately 45 minute with 21 people, with the participation of the public, municipality personnel and consultant company officials providing information about the project, and a question and answer session held afterwards. The necessary information was provided to the public about the SPP project, the public's questions were answered, and the next process was explained.





2. PARTICIPANT LIST

Figure 1: Participants Signature List

5

| Topkerik Remeter SSP. N EF Abspehr Bandspeel March 3 (2014) Entry 5 (2014) Statum 1 (2014) Tanish Abgehr Benedspeel Topkeri Saxon 16 (22004 - 14 00) Katioancolar: Isam Sory Isam Mestik Times Entry Exercise 16 (22004 - 14 00) S S. I. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel Topkeri Saxon 16 (22004 - 14 00) Katioancolar: Isam Sory Isam Mestik Times Entry Exercise Isam Mestik S S. I. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Saxon) Times Entry Exercise S S. I. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Saxon) Times Entry Exercise S S. I. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Saxon) Times Entry Exercise S S. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Saxon) Times Entry Exercise S S. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Saxon) Times Entry Exercise S S. Crelick Alagehr Benedspeel (Alagehr Benedspee | 121 | - н | ALKIN KATILIMIT | PLANTISI KATILIMCI | LISTESI |
|--|---------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|
| Turisti Turisti Kashamentar: I alm-dary lain Matshi S all Crables Contract Contract States Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract Contract States Contract | Toplanti Konusu | u: S\$P-II EF Alagehir B | elediyesi (Manisa) Guns | ş Enerji Santralı Projesi Halkan | Katilimi Toplantisi |
| s St Enelds Andrew John s Gener Control into Galan (man) Isingan Galan (man) Isingan Galan (man) Isingan Galan (man) Isingan Mai Galan (man) | Toplanti Yeri / Tarihi | Alaşehir Belediyesi T | oplanti Salonu | | 16 12 2024 - 14 00 |
| s St Erekki Jana Mah s Gaisan James Landrawi sah Gaisan James Jana Jana Jana Gaisan (Jana) Jishagan Tunb Gaisan (Jan) Jishagan Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jishagan Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Mah Gaisan (Jan) Jana Jana Gaisan (Jan) Jana | Katilencelar: | lsim-Soy isim | Meslek | Temsil Ettiği Kurum /Yorleşim Yeri | Telefon İmza |
| 2 (Jun (man) Gringen 4 Galyon (man) Libren (mab) 5 Galyon (Ma) Libren (mab) 6 Galyon (Ma) Libren (Ma) 7 Galyon (Ma) Libren (Ma) 9 Galyon (man) Libren (Ma) 10 Galyon (man) Libren (Ma) 10 Galyon (man) Libren (Ma) 11 Charles (Ma) 12 Galyon (Ma) 13 Din (Gal) Bagerial (Ma) 14 Nutwer Libren (Ma) | | - Charles | | Jenice mak. | 114119 17 |
| Grisa (202) Shing Mah. Grisa (102) Linking Mah. Grisa (102) Linking Mah. Grisa (202) Kantaga Mah. Grisa (202) Vania Ana. Grisa (202) Delantar mah. Grisa (202) Delantar mah. Grisa (202) Cathata mah. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Grisa (202) Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. Basa Ana. B | | 3 | Golson Car | m) (singepon | LUN TO TO |
| (a) Landice Judits of Judits (b) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice Man. (c) Landice | | 4 | Galism (mon |) Isterior mak | Contraction of the local |
| 7 Dila (135) Kantoyi Mih. 8 Grive (135) Kantoyi Mih. 9 Gilan (1977) Sidingan Mah. 10 Gilan (1977) Delimiter mah. 11 Gifti Kartulas mah. 12 Gifti Kartulas mah. 13 Ais (1971) Basalili Mih. | | 5 | | istaijon Mah. | Supervised and |
| Calsa (monor) Istorigen mah. Calsa (ce.) Delivatir mah. Carta (ce.) Delivatir mah. Carta (ce.) Cartala mah. Carta (ce.) Begerla mah. Art. (ce.) Begerla mah. Art. (ce.) Begerla mah. | | 7 | Galse (. 75) | - | This is |
| 10 Calcol (ce.) Debrier mode. 11 Calcol & yester and 12 Calcol & yester and 13 Calcol & Secold on an 14 External Calcol & Secold on an | | 8 | | | sectores 44 |
| 11 Circles mah 12 Giffi, Kartulas mah 13 Ari (qqi) Beserlil onh 14 Juniort Condig ali | | 9 - | | | And which the |
| 12 Giffi Kurtulus mah. 13 Ani (and Bacella) and 14 Junior Landa ah | | | Calson (iei) | | Contraction of the second |
| 13 Arr (iqui) Bozenlii mh. 14 hivent burnlis mh. | | | Gikki | | the second second second |
| 14 publish limiting wh. | | | | | discount of the |
| | | | | | and the second second |
| 15 Gausan (1941) Tenta man- | | | | | mantha and |
| | | 15 | (alpan (1391) | Inice man- | and the second |











This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank to Pania Aurora Birlikii. Takiyo Combunisati ya Olawa Bankey tradicular outsidere finanse orfimakter

| - | | in man | K Yousin Yoi ismexinge Muhra isme | - Designation | see. |
|-------|-----|----------|---|---------------|----------|
| 1 | | | ismi | chy- | #1331 S* |
| | | Carry La | i z i la i y z | | |
| 1.000 | ee. | Relat | is used ye | 0, | 15 18 |
| 23 | | | | | 10 10 M |
| 24 | | | | | |
| 25 | | | | | |
| 26 | | | | | |
| 27 | | | | | |
| 28 | | | | | |
| 29 | | | | | |
| 30 | | | | | |
| 31 | | | | | |
| 32 | | | | | |
| 33 | | | | | |
| 34 | | | | | |
| 35 | | | | | |





This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank Bu Proje Auropa Briggi, Turkiye Cumbuniyesi ve Dünya Bankas tarafındarı ortaklaşa finanse edilmeksedir

3. ANNEXES

7

Annex 1: Photos of Public Consultation Meetings

Figure 2: Photos of Meetings-1















SÜRDÜRÜLEBILIR ŞEHIRLER •#• ilbank T.C



10


Annex 2: Newspaper Advertisements

Figure 3: Cumhuriyet Newspaper Advertisement for Public Consultation Meetings of Alaşehir SPP



11







This protect is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Barley south to Motel Bank By Phyle Angea Brigh, Takiyo Camturiyai vo Dinya Barleys transford analoga forma extended Figure 4: Alaşehir 5 Eylül Newspaper for Advertisement for Public Consultation Meetings of Alaşehir SPP



12





Annex 3: Documents and Announcements regarding ESMP and Public Consultation Meeting Published in the Official Website of Alaşehir Municipality

Figure 5: Public Consultation Meeting Brochure and ESMP Documents Published on the Official Website of Alaşehir Municipality

| ALASEHİR BELEDİYESİ | 6 | CAĞRI MERKEZİ | ▲ ISTEK/ÖNERİ ↓ E-BELEDİYE ♂ ONLİNE TAHSİLAT | 0 0 0 0 | |
|--|---|--------------------------------------|--|----------------------|--|
| BAŞKAN * ALAŞEHİR * | HABERLER İHALELER DUYURULAR KU | RUMSAL * ALAŞEHİR'İ İZLİYORUM | VÍDEO FAYDALI ADRESI | er * KVKK * iletişim | |
| Anasayfa ; Alaşehir İsmetiye Güneş Enerji S | antrali Çevresel ve Sosyal Yönetim Planları (ÇSYF | (ESMP) | | | |
| DUYURULAR | Alaşehir İsmetiye Güneş Enerji Sant | rali Çevresel ve Sosya | l Yönetim Planları (ÇSYP | ESMP) | |
| Alaşəhlir İsmətiyə Günəş Enerji Səntrali Çevreyel ve Sosyal Yönətim Planlan (ÇSYP(ESMP) | Alaşehir İsmetiye Güneş Enerji Santrali Çevrer | sel ve Sosyal Yönetim Plant | arı (ÇSYP/ESMP) ilanıdır. | | |
| 2024-2025 AV SEZONU AÇILIŞI BASIN DUYURUSU | Çevresel ve Sosyal Yönetim Planı için lütfen tı | klayınız | | | |
| Alaşehir İşçesi, Kurtulaş Mahatilesi 3196 Sayılı İmar Kananud'nen 18'İnci Maddesine ööre İmar Uygulaması Geri Dörüşüm Hk. | Environmental and Social Management Plan | for click please | | | |
| Kemaliye Mah. 149 Ada 7 Parsele Ait Metruk Yapının WEB Sitesi İlanı Hk. | | | | | |
| Alaşehir İlçesi, Beşeylül Mahallesi 32 Ada 1 Parsel 1/1000 Ölçekli Uygulama İmar Plan Değişikliği Hk. | | | | | |
| Alaşehir İlçesi, Kurtuluş Mahallesi 1379 Ada 1 Parsel 1/1000 Ölçekli Uygulama İmar Plan Değişikliği Hk. | | | | | |
| Alaşehir İlçesi, Kavaklıdere Mahallesi 195 Ada I. Parsel 1/1000 Ölçekli Uygulama İmar Plan Değişikliği Hk. | | | | | |
| SoiPuksu Mah. 227 Ada 10 Parsele Ait | | | | | |
| | | | .:#:. | | |
| THE WORLD BANK IBRD - IDA WORLD BANKGROUP | SÜRDÜRÜLEBILIR ŞEHIRLER | E, ŞEHİRCİLİK VE İKLİĞİ BAKANLIĞI | ilbank | | |



This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank Bu Proje Auropa Britigi, Turkiye Camhuriyati ve Dünya Bankası tarafından ortaklaşa finanse edilmekted

Annex 4: Alaşehir Municipality Public Consultation Meeting Brochure



14

13











This project is co-funded by the European Union, the Republic of Turkey and the World Bank Bu Proje Avrupa Birligh, Türkiye Camhaniyee've Dünya Bankası tarafından ortaklaşa finanse edilmektedir



15

THE WORLD BANK









Annex 10:Consultation Form

| | | ALAŞEHİR MUNICIPALITY Alaşehir Municipality Solar Power Plant Project | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|-------------------------------|--|------------------------|---|-------------------|------------------|--|--|
| E D I . | | | Consultation Form | | | | | |
| Person Filling Out t | he Form: | | | | Date and | d Time: | | |
| Meeting Agenda: | | | | | Consulta | ation Record No: | | |
| 1.CONSULTATIO | N INFORMAT | ION | | | | | | |
| Interviewed Institu | tion: | | | | Contact Typ |)e | | |
| Name and Surname | e of the Intervie | ewee | : | | Telepł | one/Helpline | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Telephone: | | | | | Face-to-fac | e Interviews | | |
| Adress: | | | | | Website/E-mail | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| E-mail: | | | | | Other (Explain) | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Stakeholder Typ | e | | | | | | | |
| Public Institution | People Affect by the Proje | | Private Institution | | essional amber | NGO | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Interest Groups | Industry Association | S | Labor Unions | N | ledia | University | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 2.CONSULTATIO | N DETAILS | | | | | | | |
| Questions about th | e project: | | | | | | | |
| Project concerns/feedback: | | | | | | | | |

| Responses to the views expressed above: | |
|--|--------------------------|
| Recording | Complainant |
| Name-Surname / Signature | Name-Surname / Signature |

Annex 11:Grievance Form

| ALAŞEHİR MUNICIPALITY | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|------------------|---------|---|-------|------------------|--------------|--|--|
| | ו• | | Alaşehir Municipality Solar Power Plant Project | | | | | |
| EDIN | */ | e Form | | | | | | |
| Person Filling Out t | he Form: | | | | Date and | d Time: | | |
| Meeting Agenda: | | | | | Reference | ce No: | | |
| 1.INFORMATION | I ABOUT THE | | MPLAINANT | | | | | |
| Full Name: | | | | | How the G | rievance Was | | |
| If the complainant | requests that th | hic ori | evance he processe | hd | Received | | | |
| anonymously, it wil | | | | | | | | |
| will be fulfilled. | | | , | 44000 | | | | |
| Turkish ID Number: | | | | | Te | elephone | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Telephone: | | | | | Fa | ce to face | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Wabsita / E mail | | | |
| Address: | | | | | Website / E-mail | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| E-mail: | | | | | Oth | er (Explain) | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Stakeholder Typ | е | | | | |
| Public | People Affect | | Private | | mber of | NGO | | |
| Institutions | by the Proje | ect | Institution | Pro | fession | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |

| Interest Groups | Industry | Labor Union | Media | University | | |
|--------------------|--------------|---|-------|------------|--|--|
| | Associations | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 2.DETAIL INFORM | MATION ABOU | T GRIEVANCE | 1 | 1 | | |
| | r | | | | | |
| Grievance Explanat | ion: | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Proposed Solution | Method by | | | | | |
| • | viethod by | | | | | |
| the Complainant: | | | | | | |
| Name-Surname/Sig | gnature of N | Name-Surname/Signature of the Complainant | | | | |
| the Recording Pers | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

Annex 12: Grievance Closure Form

| THASE HI | ALAŞEHİR MUNICIPALITY |
|-------------------------|---|
| | Alaşehir Municipality Solar Power Plant Project |
| EDIT | GRIEVANCE CLOSURE FORM |
| Reference No: | |
| 1.DETERMINATION of COR | RECTIVE ACTION |
| 1 | |
| 2 | |
| 3 | |
| 4 | |
| 5 | |
| Responsible Departments | |
| 2.CLOSURE OF THE GRIEVA | NCE |
| This section will be | |
| completed and | |
| signed by the | |
| Complainant in case | |
| the complaint | |
| specified in the | |
| "Grievance | |
| Registration Form" | |
| is resolved. | |

| Date: | Name-Surname/ | Name-Surname/Signature of the |
|-------|--------------------------|-------------------------------|
| | Signature | Complainant |
| | Closure of the Grievance | |
| | | |
| // | | |

Annex 13:Roles and Responsibilities of Main Actors of SPP Subproject

| | Alaşehir Municipality | ILBANK | WB | Contractor | Supervision Consultant | E&S Consultant |
|------------------------|--|---|--|---|---|---|
| Financial Roles | Requestor | Financial intermediary | Main finance source | | | |
| Application Process | Submit Demand Based Applications | Review / analyze the applications in order to provide information to WB | Concur the final selection of eight participating municipalities. | | | |
| | | Prepare Alaşehir Municipality's subproject documents in accordance with WB requirements, | | | | |
| Preparation Process | Welcome and apply the relevant laws and regulations that are introduced by WB through ILBANK | Coordinate the selected municipalities to ensure all the relevant rules and regulations will be adopted throughout the project. Organize internal working structure for the investment options. Although the project site is in the low risk category, in case of need, Alaşehir Municipality officials and consultants are guided on WB requirements (documents and procedures) regarding impact factors such as cultural assets, land acquisition and involuntary settlement, natural | Assist ILBANK in Developing Performance and Monitoring Database system during the preparation phase. Provide technical guide for ILBANK. Implementation and inspection of the ESMP of the subproject and development of recommendations | Ensure compliance with all requirements of the ESMF and management plans. Ensure conformity with project standards and obtaining all relevant permits and licenses | Identify and managing environmental, social, and OHS- related risks | Preparing Environmental and Social Assessment Reports, i.e., ESMF and Resettlement Action Plans (and, if necessary, RAP/LRP), for approval by ILBANK and the World Bank. |
| Number of Staff | One Social and One Environmental Expert and One OHS Expert | habitats, forests and In addition to present team, a support team can be established. Structure of the team and | Assist ILBANK in establishing monitoring team. | | Employe competent Environmental, Social, and OHS Experts (at least one | |

| | | qualification of team members will be defined by ILBANK and WB. Individual freelance consultants can be employed. | | Social Expert, one Environmental Expert, and one OHS Expert) within the scope of the project | |
|---------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Project Roles | Preparation of ESMP and Grievance Mechanism | monitoring ESMP and Grievance process Provide written comments to consultants | Overall review of the project development stages | Draft time-bound action plans for the contractor in case of non-compliance | |
| | Tendering all the project works and consulting services | whole process to ensure the proper application of the WB's environmental and social safeguard policies are applied. | Review of incoming reports to see the Bank standards are in progress. Recommend additional measures to strengthen the management framework and improve implementation performance. | | |
| Disclosure Roles | Disclose ESMP on the official website of municipalitY after approval of ILBANK and WB | Confirm and Disclose the ESMP on ILBANK's official website Disclosure of official approval of environmental and social assessment documents and related procedures for the project in accordance with WB safeguarding requirements, to perform the overall quality assurance function to ensure that EA documents meet WB requirements | Confirm and Disclose the ESMP on WB's official website | | |

| Construction Phase Responsibilities | Prepare tender documents for the construction process. | Obtaining the opinions of affected groups and local environmental/social experts on the environmental and social aspects of the project implementation and organizing field visits with these groups when necessary | Visit project sites from time to time, when necessary, as part of the project | Implement all commitments determined by Alaşehir Municipality. | Guide Alaşehir Municipality officials and consultants in the implementation of World Bank requirements (documents and procedures) in the E&S framework after approval by Alaşehir Municipality | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Conduct tenders in accordance with public procurement legislation and WB legal requirements. | Coordinating and communicating with WB inspection officers regarding the environmental and social protection measures of the project implementation in organizing field visits. | | Supervise the construction and/or rehabilitation works and installation of equipment | Ensure the provision of sufficient capacity to carry out C&S audits effectively in accordance with ESMF requirements when the implementation of mitigating measures by the Contractor is deemed necessary | |
| | Share the ESMP with the Contractor, guide the Contractor in preparing sub-management plans, and approve these plans. Update the ESMP when necessary and share additional commitments with the Contractor. Coordinate actions and evaluations in case of changes due to engineering/design | | | | | |
| | changes, route/location changes, legislative | | | | | |

| | changes related to | | | | | |
|------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------|------------------------|--|
| | environmental and social | | | | | |
| | issues, authorization | | | | | |
| | provision changes, new | | | | | |
| | environmental/social data, | | | | | |
| | construction/operation | | | | | |
| | strategy changes. | | | | | |
| Monitoring | Evaluate performance | Monitoring the | Oversee the project in | Monitore construction | Report | |
| Roles | indicators, environmental | implementation of ESMP | accordance with WB | activities (including | environmental | |
| Roles | reviews, monitoring, | and other environmental | Safeguard Policies and | subcontractor activities) | audits, monitoring, | |
| | inspections, and results | and social mitigation | provide technical support | and taking and | and inspections | |
| | related to ESMP | measures, auditing | and guidance | implementing measures | related to E&S | |
| | applications. | Alaşehir Municipality's | and guidance | within the scope of the | practices to Alaşehir | |
| | applications. | ESMP implementations | | ESMF | Municipality. | |
| | | and documenting | | ESIVIF | wunicipality. | |
| | | performance, | | | | |
| | | , , | | | | |
| | | recommendations, and | | | | |
| | | other necessary steps | | | | |
| | | within the scope of overall | | | | |
| | | project supervision | | | | |
| | Prepare Environmental and | Inform WB through | | Submit Monthly | Monitore and | |
| | Social Monitoring Reports | Environmental and Social | | Environmental and | evaluate the | |
| | (ESMRs) every three | Monitoring Reports | | Social Monitoring | performance of | |
| | months, submit them to | (ESMRs) to be submitted | | Reports (ESMRs) to the | services provided by | |
| | ILBANK, and inform them. | by Alaşehir Municipality | | Project Owner | the contractor | |
| | | every three months. | | Municipality | | |
| | Monitor contractor | Submit Project Progress | | | Ensure regular | |
| | activities. | Reports to WB every 6 | | | (monthly) reporting | |
| | | months. | | | of the Contractor's | |
| | | | | | C&S performance to | |
| | | | | | the Municipality | |
| | | | | | and ILBANK | |
| Training | Provide necessary training | | | | Provide necessary | |
| Responsibilities | on Environmental and | | | | environmental and | |
| | Social Management issues | | | | social training to the | |
| | to Project Management | | | | contractor and | |
| | Unit (ILBANK) and relevant | | | | subcontractor | |
| | directorates. | | | | personnel | |
| Urgent Action | Ensure compliance with | | | Promptly notifying the | Ensure the tracking | |
| Roles | project standards and take | | | Project Owner of | and analysis of | |

| [| | | | | |
|---------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|--------------------|
| | urgent actions in case of | | unexpected situations, | environmental and | |
| | non-compliance. | | such as environmental, | social incidents | |
| | | | social, and occupational | | |
| | | | issues or accidents, | | |
| | | | incidents, or time loss, | | |
| | | | and maintaining an on- | | |
| | | | site incident log | | |
| | | | throughout the project | | |
| | | | lifespan. An incident | | |
| | | | report, including root | | |
| | | | cause analysis and | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | submitted to ILBANK | | |
| | | | and the World Bank | | |
| | | | within 30 days. | | |
| | Halt work in any situation | | | notify ILBANK and | |
| | threatening the | | | the Municipality, | |
| | environment, community, | | | exercising the | |
| | and occupational health | | | contract authority | |
| | and safety. | | | in case non- | |
| | | | | compliance persists | |
| | Analyze and monitor | | | | |
| | environmental and social | | | | |
| | accidents/incidents. | | | | |
| Stakeholder | Ensure stakeholder | Provide guidance on public | | Provide guidance on | Taking part in |
| participation | participation, implement | participation and | | public participation | organizing the |
| Roles | the grievance redress | announcement | | and announcement | introduction |
| Noies | mechanism, and ensure | requirements when | | requirements in | ESMP to the public |
| | continuous information | necessary | | accordance with | and NGOs within |
| | | necessary | | World Bank | |
| | transfer through open | | | | the scope of the |
| | communication. | | | requirements | project and |
| | | | | | stakeholder |
| | | | | | engagement |
| | | | | | events |

Annex 14: Environmental and Social Screening Checklist

This checklist is used by the executing agency to review the potential environmental and social safeguard impacts of subprojects and determine whether the subprojects will trigger relevant safeguard policies of the World Bank. It is a tool to screen, classify, and evaluate the project activities during project preparation.

Integrating Basic Principles to Strengthen Social and Environmental Sustainability

1. Determination of Basic Principles to Strengthen Project, Social and Environmental Sustainability

Description of how the project mainstreams a human rights-based approach

There is no settlement on the parcel border of the SPP project and within the project area. During the preparation phase, no human rights concerns related to the project have arisen. A credit application has been submitted for the project, and once the credit application is approved, the implementation process will commence. With the initiation of the project, stakeholder engagement processes and complaint procedures will be initiated. These processes will be subject to a monitoring mechanism. Opinions obtained during this process will be reviewed at specific intervals and resolved.

The responsible organization leading the implementation of the project, Alaşehir Municipality, is highly willing to fulfill its obligations. The SPP sub-project is a sustainable and clean energy resource and provides environmental sustainability in the project area and reduces dependence on fossil fuels. One of the fundamental reasons for the solar power plant project is the use of clean energy to meet the district's electric energy needs and Alaşehir Municipality is aiming to get energy sale income from excess energy. Therefore, there is no risk of local governments not fulfilling their responsibilities due to the reduction in energy costs and the potential contributions it will bring to various sectors.

In the conducted assessments, it has been observed that there will be no adverse impact on the human rights of the affected population or marginalized groups. Therefore, there will be no unjust or discriminatory effects on disadvantaged groups within the population residing in the vicinity. The utilization of renewable energy to meet the energy requirements will enable the efficient use of municipal resources, generating positive effects for the entire district population. This approach fosters equal distribution of local government resources and services among the entire population, promoting inclusivity. Additionally, there is no identified risk of conflict or violence among the communities and authorities affected by the project.

Description of how the project can improve gender equality and women's empowerment

Women's groups have not raised gender equality concerns regarding the project during the stakeholder engagement process, grievance processes, or public statements. The project is not anticipated to involve or lead to adverse impacts on gender equality and/or the situation of women and girls. The project is not expected to reproduce discrimination against women based on gender, particularly regarding participation in design and implementation or access to opportunities and benefits. There are no foreseen limitations on women's ability to use, develop, and protect natural resources, considering the different roles and positions of women and men in accessing environmental goods and services. There are no activities that could lead to natural resource degradation or depletion in communities that depend on these resources for their livelihoods and well-being. The project is not expected to exacerbate the risks of gender-based violence.

Description of how the project mainstreams sustainability and resilience

By harnessing solar energy, the project reduces dependence on non-renewable fossil fuels, contributing to a more sustainable energy mix and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Solar power projects typically have a lower environmental impact compared to traditional energy sources. They help mitigate air and water pollution, reduce carbon emissions, and minimize the ecological footprint associated with energy generation.

Solar power projects contribute to energy resilience by providing a stable and predictable source of energy. This can be especially important for urban areas, ensuring a more stable energy supply and helping to mitigate the impact of energy price volatility. Incorporating solar power into the urban energy mix contributes to the diversification of energy sources. This diversification enhances energy security, making the urban area less vulnerable to disruptions in the supply chain of any single energy source. This involves using technology to optimize energy production, storage, and distribution, creating more efficient and resilient energy systems. By reducing reliance on fossil fuels, solar power projects contribute to mitigating climate change impacts.

By utilizing renewable solar power in electric energy generation, the project aims to reduce the municipality's electricity expenses. This financial benefit enhances the economic sustainability of the local government.

Renewable energy investments empower communities by providing them with opportunities for potentially creating jobs, thereby enhancing the social dimension of sustainability. This contributes to economic sustainability by fostering employment opportunities and skill development within the community. It would facilitate income diversification by offering opportunities for local businesses, such as maintenance services, security, and other support functions. With the increasing number of renewable energy implementations, there is the potential to promote the use of clean energy in various sectors. The project has training activities for stakeholders and the responsible. This educational aspect contributes to the long-term sustainability of the region by raising awareness and promoting environmentally conscious behaviors.

Description of how the project strengthens accountability to stakeholders

The project strengthens accountability to stakeholders through transparent decision-making, active engagement, accessible information, responsive grievance mechanisms, regular reporting, clear communication, measurable performance indicators, and inclusive decision-making processes.

The project promotes transparency by involving stakeholders in the decision-making process. Through open communication and consultation, stakeholders are informed about project objectives, progress, and potential impacts. This transparency would enhance accountability by ensuring that decisions are made collectively and with the input of relevant stakeholders.

The project would facilitate regular stakeholder engagement activities such as meetings, workshops, etc., providing a platform for dialogue between the implementing entities and stakeholders. These activities allow stakeholders to express concerns, provide feedback, and actively participate in shaping project outcomes. Regular engagement fosters a sense of ownership and accountability among stakeholders. In doing so, the project ensures that relevant information is easily accessible to stakeholders. This includes providing updates, reports, and documentation related to the project's environmental, social, and economic aspects. Accessible information empowers stakeholders to make informed decisions and holds project implementers accountable for the project's overall impact.

A robust grievance mechanism is established to address concerns raised by stakeholders. This mechanism allows stakeholders to report issues, express grievances, and seek resolution. The responsiveness of the grievance mechanism demonstrates a commitment to accountability by addressing concerns in a timely and effective manner.

The project engages in regular reporting and audits, providing stakeholders with detailed insights into project activities and outcomes. Regular reporting ensures accountability by keeping stakeholders informed about the project's adherence to sustainability goals, financial management, and overall performance.

The project defines and conveys measurable performance indicators, allowing stakeholders to assess the project's success against predetermined benchmarks. This transparency in performance evaluation enhances accountability by providing stakeholders with objective criteria to gauge the project's impact.

Involving stakeholders in decision-making processes ensures inclusivity and accountability. By considering diverse perspectives, the project strengthens its commitment to meeting the needs and expectations of all stakeholders, fostering a sense of shared responsibility.

Identifying and Managing Social and Environmental Risks

| | 2. The Potential Social and Environmental Risks? | 3. The level of significance of the potential social and environmental risks? | | | 6. Description of the assessment and management measures for each risk rated Moderate, Substantial or High |
|----------------------|--|---|--|---|---|
| Risk Topic | Risk Description (broken down by event, cause, impact) | Impact and Likelihood (1-5) | Significance (Low, Moderate Substantial, High) | Comments (optional) | Description of assessment and management measures for risks rated as Moderate, Substantial or High |
| Land and Soil | Risk 1: Stripping of the Vegetative Topsoil Layer and Soil Compaction | Land Preparation Phase I = 4 L = 2 | Moderate | | During the land preparation phase of project, there may be a risk of soil quality deterioration, which can affect vegetation and the ecosystem, leading to decreased efficiency. There is no agricultural activity on the project land, and it is classified as dry marginal agricultural land. Limited agricultural activities are carried out in the immediate vicinity of the project site. Therefore, soil loss in this area carries a risk of deteriorating the quality of the land. |
| Cultural Heritage | Risk 2: The possibility of discovering artifacts or other cultural and historical items of value. | Land Preparation Phase I = 2 L=2 | Low | If excavation sites are encountered in the sub project area, a rapid response plan should be prepared and experts should be called to manage the excavations, and project plans should be revised if necessary and additional measures should | The subproject area is not located within the archaeological, historical and urban protected area. If any artifacts are discovered in the subproject area, the land preparation or construction activities will be stopped immediately, and the Museum Directorate must be notified. |

| | | | | be taken to protect the excavation areas. | |
|---------------|--|---|-----|---|---|
| Land and Soil | Risk 3: Leakage of Contaminants into the Soil and Waste and Chemical Storage | Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Low | | Leakage of pollutants into the soil of the subproject area or waste and chemical storage is possible during the construction phase. The distance of the area where solar panels will be installed within the project area to the nearest residential unit in ismetiye Neighborhood is approximately 3.5 km. The construction phase will last less than a year, and as long as the mitigation and monitoring measures specified in this ESP are implemented, this risk will be eliminated. |

| | | Operational Phase | Low | During the operation phase, there are no activities that |
|---------------|-----------------------|-------------------------|-----|--|
| | | =1 | | will cause pollutants to enter the area. |
| | | L =1 | | |
| Noise | Risk 4: | Constructional Phase | Low | During construction, the road near the area will be |
| Pollution | Noise Resulting from | Phase I = 2 | | actively used (Photograph 1). There are no residential |
| | Temporary Traffic | L = 2 | | units near the project area. Transportation to the project |
| | Load | | | area will be provided by field road. For the subproject |
| | Noise Caused by | | | area in Alaşehir, it is possible that impacts that will harm |
| | Construction | | | human health and the environment will be low during |
| | Vehicles and | | | the construction phase due to its distance from |
| | Equipment | | | settlements. However, the construction period is quite |
| | Blasting, Stone, and | | | short due to the characteristics of SPP. Measures have |
| | Rock Removal | | | been developed for the short construction process. By |
| | Vibration Effects | | | implementing the measures, the impacts will be |
| | | | | minimized. |
| | | Operational Phase | Low | The construction work is expected to be completed in a |
| | | I = 0 | | very short time. The potential impact of this risk was |
| | | L =0 | | assessed as extremely low, given that it would not cause |
| | | | | long-term noise pollution. |
| Air Pollution | Risk 5: Dust and | Constructional | Low | During the construction phase, temporary exhaust and |
| | Exhaust Emissions | Phase | | dust emissions are likely to occur due to activities such |
| | from Soil Excavation, | l = 2 L = 2 | | as soil excavation, leveling works, vehicle traffic and |
| | Vehicle Traffic and | L – 2 | | equipment use. Since the power plant installation is |
| | Equipment | | | expected to be completed quickly, it is evaluated that the |
| | | | | impact level will be low. |
| | | Operational Phase | Low | After the completion of the construction phase of the |
| | | I = 1 | | power plant and its commissioning, no activities that will |
| | | L =1 | | cause air pollution are foreseen. |

| Traffic Congestion & Surrounding Residents | Risk 6: Temporary Blockage of Transportation Roads between Settlements Traffic Vehicles Cause Destruction on Roads and Buildings | Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 Operational Phase I = 0 L =0 | Low Low | Traffic load will increase during the construction phase.Due to the increasing traffic load, especially with the useof heavy tonnage vehicles, road surface improvementsbecome mandatory during the construction phase.Heavy tonnage vehicles will not be used during theoperation phase. |
|---|---|---|------------|---|
| Community Health and Safety | Risk 7: Community health and safety during the execution of works | Constructional Phase I= 2 L= 2 Operational Phase I = 0 | Low Low | SPP sub-project area is located far away from the residential area. So, the execution of construction works poses potential risks to community health and safety due to noise, dust, traffic disruptions, and accidental spills or emissions will be quite low.There is no risk to community health and safety during the operational phase. |
| Pollution in Groundwater | Risk 8: Chemical Spills and Leaks Improper Storage and Disposal of Materials | L =0 Constructional Phase I = 2 L = 2 | Low | To mitigate the risk of groundwater pollution during the construction of solar power plants, it is essential to implement best practices in environmental management. This includes proper storage and handling of materials, implementation of erosion control measures, appropriate stormwater management, and adherence to regulatory guidelines for environmental protection. Environmental impact assessments and monitoring during the construction phase are also crucial to identify and address potential sources of pollution promptly. |

| | | Operational Phase | Low | There is no risk about chemical spills and leaks, improper |
|----------|-------------------------|---------------------|----------|--|
| | | I = 1 | | storage and disposal of materials during the operation |
| | | L =1 | | phase. |
| Natural | Risk 9: Earthquake | Construction | Moderate | Manisa is located in the active fault line region and 1st- |
| Disaster | Risk. | Phase | | degree earthquake zone, and Alaşehir district is located |
| | | l = 4 L=2 | | 1st-degree earthquake zone. There are active fault lines |
| | | L-2 | | in the district (Figure 9). For this reason, the construction |
| | | | | must be carried out in accordance with the earthquake |
| | | | | risk, taking into account active faults, and the relevant |
| | | | | regulations must be complied with. The SPP Sub-project |
| | | | | area's is located 1 st degree zone, it is seismicity is |
| | | | | between 0.4-0.5 (Figure 10). However, there is no active |
| | | | | fault line within the SPP sub-project area. |
| | | Operational Phase | Low | Equipment must be well secured in a safe position. |
| | | I=1 | | |
| AL . 1 | | L=3 Construction | | |
| Natural | Risk 10: Possibility of | Phase | Low | Alaşehir district is not located flood risk area. When the |
| Disaster | floods due to | l = 2 | | SPP Sub-project area is examined, flood sensitivity of the |
| | excessive rainfall | L=2 | | project area is low degree. There is a dry stream in the |
| | | | | project area. In order to prevent the parcel from being |
| | | | | affected by stream flooding, a 6-meter-wide road should |
| | | | | be reserved on the parcel side with a hydrologically |
| | | | | sufficient strip-like area that can pass the flood flow from |
| | | | | both sides of the passing stream. Flood control measures |
| | | | | should be taken in stream bed. Care should be taken to |
| | | | | ensure that the stream is not covered, not used as a road |
| | | | | and that the panels are located at the upper elevation of |
| | | | | the land away from the stream bed. |

| | | Operational Phase | Low | | Since mitigation measures will be implemented against |
|------------|---------------------|-------------------------|----------|---------------------------------|---|
| | | l=1 | 2011 | | flood risk during the construction phase, the flood risk |
| | | L=1 | | | will be reduced during the operation period. |
| | | Constructional | | | |
| Reflection | Risk 11: Reflection | Constructional Phase | Low | Reflection and glare effect are | During the construction phase, the level of glare and |
| and Glare | and Glare Effect | = 1 | | an effect created by solar | reflection effects is quite low. During the operation |
| Effect | | L=1 | | power plants (SPP). This | phase, this impact level is higher compared to the |
| | | | | effect occurs as a result of | construction phase due to the complete installation and |
| | | | | reflection or glare from | operation of the panels. |
| | | Operational Phase | Moderate | sunlight on photovoltaic | After determining the area with reflection risk in the |
| | | I=3 | | panels or from a bright sky. | Solar Power Plant area, visual monitoring should be |
| | | L=3 | | The severity of reflection and | carried out in the first year of operation to observe the |
| | | | | glare effects may vary | reflection and glare effects. |
| | | | | depending on the time of year | |
| | | | | and the geographical location | |
| | | | | of the power plant. | |
| | | | | Additionally, impact | |
| | | | | significance may vary | |
| | | | | depending on potential | |
| | | | | receptor points (settlements | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | transportation routes, | |
| | | | | airports, etc.). Since | |
| | | | | photovoltaic panels absorb | |
| | | | | sunlight, the reflection and | |
| | | | | glare effects in PV type | |
| | | | | systems are generally lower | |
| | | | | than in systems using other | |
| | | | | solar energy technologies. | |

| Workforce and OHS | Risk 12: Effects on Workforce and OHS | Constructional Phase I = 4 L=1 | Low | The number of personnel needed during the construction phase will be higher. The factors that threaten occupational health are slightly more than the operational phase. Measures have been developed in accordance with the relevant regulations due to national and international legal frameworks. |
|---|--|---|-----|--|
| | | Operational Phase I = 3 L=1 | Low | Since only maintenance and repair activities will be carried out during the operation phase, the number of working personnel is low and occupational health and safety risks are lower. Measures have been developed in accordance with the relevant regulations due to national and international legal frameworks |
| Risk:13StorageofDamagedorEndofLifecyclePanels | Risk: 13 Storage of Damaged or End of Lifecycle Panels | Constructional Phase I=0 L=0 | Low | There is no risk during the construction phase. |
| | | Operational Phase I=2 L=2 | Low | Secured areas on-site specifically designated for the temporary storage of damaged or end-of-lifecycle panels will be established. Develop a recycling plan. Develop a recycling plan in collaboration with certified recycling facilities to ensure environmentally responsible disposal of panels. |

| 4. The overall project risk categoriz | ation? | | | | |
|---|-------------|---------|---------------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| | | | | | |
| Low Risk | | | gory C | | |
| Moderate Risk | | | gory Low B | | |
| Substantial Risk | | | gory High B | | |
| High Risk | | Cate | gory A | | |
| 5. The requirements of the SES bas | | | | prization | |
| Only required for Moderate, Substa | antial ai | nd Higl | n-Risk projects | | |
| Is assessment required? (check if | | | | Status? (completed, | |
| <u>"yes")</u> | | | | planned) | |
| if yes, indicate overall type and | | | Targeted assessment(s) | Since the project is Category | |
| status | | | ESIA (Environmental and | Low B, these assessments are | |
| | | | Social Impact | not required. | |
| | | | Assessment) | | |
| | | | SESA (Strategic | | |
| | | | Environmental and Social | | |
| | | | Assessment) | | |
| Are management plans required? (check if "yes) | | | | | |
| If yes, indicate overall type | | | Targeted management | Since the project is moderate | |
| | | | plans (e.g. Gender Action | risk, these management | |
| | | | Plan, Emergency | plans are not required. | |
| | | | Response Plan, Waste | However, in the cope of SCP | |
| | | | Management Plan, | II AF, Simplified ESMP has | |
| | | | others) | been prepared for this | |
| | | | ESMP (Environmental | project with low risk. | |
| | | | and Social Management | | |
| | \square | | Plan which may include | | |
| | | | range of targeted plans) | | |
| | | | ESMF (Environmental | | |
| | | | and Social Management | | |
| | | | Framework) | | |
| Based on identified risks, which | | | | | |
| Principles/Project-level | | Com | ments (not required) | | |
| Standards triggered? | | | | | |
| Overarching Principle: Leave No | | | | | |
| One Behind | | | | | |
| Human Rights | \square | | | | |
| Gender Equality and | \boxtimes | | | | |
| Women's Empowerment | | | | | |
| Accountability | \square | | | | |
| The Environmental and Social Star | ndards | | | | |
| of World Bank (ESS) | | | | | |
| 1. Biodiversity Conservation and | | | | | |
| Sustainable Management of | \square | | | | |
| Living Natural Resources | | | | | |

| 2. Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts | \boxtimes | |
|--|-------------|--|
| 3. Community Health, Safety and Security | \square | |
| 4. Cultural Heritage | \square | |
| 5. Land Acquisition, Restrictions on Land Use, and Involuntary Resettlement | | |
| 6. Indigenous Peoples/Sub- Saharan African Historically Underserved Traditional Local Communities | | |
| 7. Labor and Working Conditions | \square | |
| 8. Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention and Management | | |
| 9. Financial Intermediaries | \square | |
| 10. Stakeholder Engagement and Information Disclosure | \square | |

Environmental Screening Checklist

| Sub-project Information | |
|---|--|
| Sub-project title | Alaşehir Municipality SPP Sub-project |
| Sub-project beneficiaries | Alaşehir Municipality |
| Proposed date of start of work | |
| Brief description of sub-project | One of the main justifications of the SPP sub-project is to use clean energy to meet the electric energy need of district. |
| Site area, location | Manisa province, Alaşehir district, İsmetiye neighborhood, Lot 1 of Block 101 |
| Status of national EIA process of sub-project | The sub-project area is exempted from EIA regulation Process because the installed capacity of the plant is 3150 kWp. |

| Environmental and social impacts related to the proposed sub-project – the existing situation | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Yes No Details | | | | | | |

| Will the sub-project adversely affect legally | \square | The sub-project will not affect any |
|--|-----------|---|
| protected areas or internationally recognized areas of high biodiversity value ⁴ ? | | protected areas or internationally recognized areas of high biodiversity value, since there is no such areas around the-project area. |
| Will the sub-project be located in or near the environmentally sensitive or protected area (in accordance with national legislation)? | | The sub-project will not be located in or near the environmentally sensitive or protected area (in accordance with national legislation), since there is no such areas around the-project area. |
| Will the sub-project adversely affect critical habitats such as forest ecosystems, wetlands, marshlands, and aquatic ecosystems or natural habitats? | | There is no habitat with high sensitivity around the subproject area. |
| Will the sub-project adversely affect endangered plant and animal species? | | There are no endangered flora or fauna species in or near the area. |
| Will the sub-project affect archaeological sites, historic monuments and settlements? | | There is no negative impact on any historical assets located near the project. |
| Is there woods or forest around the sub- project area? | | There are no woods or forest around the sub-project area. |
| Will the sub-project adversely affect the woods and forest? | | Since there are no woods or forest area in the subproject area, it will not affect adversely any woods or forest. |
| Is there any combustible and flammable subsidence material around the sub-project area? | | No, there is not any combustible and flammable subsidence material around the sub-project area. |
| Is there underground facilities such as gas pipeline, electrical facilities? | | No, there is not underground facilities such as gas pipeline, electrical facilities |
| Are there any overhead lines such as high- voltage lines in or near the sub-project area? | | No, there is not any overhead lines such as high-voltage lines in or near the sub-project area |
| Will people permanently or temporarily lose access to facilities, services, or natural resources because of the sub-project activities? | | No, local people will not be affected by losing access to facilities, services, or natural resources because if the sub- project activities. |
| Is this sub-project intervention requiring private land acquisitions? | | The property is allocated for the municipality. |
| If the land parcel has to be acquired, is the actual plot size and ownership status known? | | - |
| If new land is required and the site is privately owned, can this land be purchased through Willing Buyer–Willing Seller agreement? | | - |
| Will the sub-project require the acquisition of public lands? | | - |

⁴ Internationally recognized areas of high biodiversity value include World Heritage Natural Sites, Biosphere Reserves, Ramsar Wetlands of International Importance, Key Biodiversity Areas, Important Bird Areas, and Alliance for Zero Extinction Sites, among others.

| If public lands will be acquired, are there any formal/informal users utilizing these lands for income generation purposes? | | - |
|---|--|--|
| Will there be loss of/damage to productive trees, fruit plants or crops that generate livelihood income for the households? | | There is no productive trees, fruit plants or crops in the land where the SPP subproject will be built |
| Is there any soil contamination observed at the sub-project area? | | Currently, no soil contamination observed, but monitoring measure will be applied to control over. |

| Impacts of sub-project (in case of rooftop solar sub-project only): | | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Will the sub-project affect the daily operation | | | | | |
| of the building and people? | | | | | |
| Is the building protected under the law for the | | | | | |
| protection of cultural heritage? | | | | | |
| Is the building of special significance to any | | | | | |
| vulnerable group (i.e. disabled people, | | | | | |
| minorities, youth, etc.)? | | | | | |

| Environmental and social/impacts related to sub-project construction/installation | | | | |
|---|-------------|-----------|--------------------------------------|--|
| | | | Details | |
| | Yes | No | | |
| Will the sub-project involve the use of | | | The sub-project does not involve the | |
| forest trees or other natural resources as | | | use of forest trees or other natural | |
| building materials? | | | resources as building materials. | |
| Will the sub-project emit greenhouse | | \square | The sub-project will not emit | |
| gases (CO ₂ , NO _x , O ₃) or ozone-depleting | | | greenhouse gases | |
| substances (CFC, methyl bromide, etc.)? | | | | |
| Will the sub-project use, produce, or | | | | |
| discharge hazardous and toxic materials | | | | |
| (e.g., hospital waste, industrial waste, or | | | | |
| other?) | | | | |
| Will the sub-project produce or cause | | \square | Related measures are planned in | |
| occupational hazards? | | | this ESMP, and they will be taken | |
| | | | into consideration | |
| Will the sub-project cause dust and noise | \boxtimes | | The sub-project would cause dust | |
| pollution? | | | and noise only in construction | |
| | | | phase. Measures related to this | |
| | | | issue has been developed in this | |
| | | | ESMP. In the operational phase | |
| | | | there will be no dust and noise. | |
| Will the sub-project cause water pollution? | | \square | - | |
| | | | - | |
| Will the sub-project cause soil pollution? | | | | |
| Will the sub-project result in temporary | | \square | - | |
| disruption to the livelihoods of any | | | | |
| persons/households? | | | | |
| Will the sub-project cause community | | \square | - | |
| safety-related hazards? | | | | |
| Will the sub-project include significant | | \square | Related measures are planned in | |
| OHS concerns? | | | this ESMP, and they will be taken | |
| | | | into consideration | |
| Will the sub-project cause additional traffic | \square | | The sub-project would cause traffic | |
| load? | لاست | | load in construction phase. In | |
| | | | operational phase there will be no | |

| | | | traffic load originated from the sub- project. |
|---|--|-----------|---|
| Will the sub-project cause any adverse impact on the closest sensitive receptors (if there is any)? | | \square | - |
| Is there a population that can be negatively affected by the sub-project? | | | No population in the lot where subproject will be built |
| Other environmental or social impacts (describe the nature and severity of its impact) | Preparatory phase: Construction phase Operation phase: | <u>.</u> | |

According to OP4.01, OP 4.10 and OP 4.12 of World Bank, the following social safeguard documents shall be prepared for the subproject:

- 1. According to the Environmental screening checklist above the subproject is in Category low B in terms of risk. and recommendations of World Banks that is Category low B project does not need environmental management plan and does not need to take environmental protection measures to mitigate the impact, however, in any situation, a simplified ESMP has been prepared. In this regard, it reveals that the World Bank has not triggered the relevant safeguards policies, except for this simplified ESMP.
- **2.** According to the social screening checklist above, there is no reason to trigger World Bank Social Safeguard Documents such as Resettlement Action Plan, Reemployment Plan, Job Transfer Training.

References

T.C. Cumhurbaşkanlığı Mevzuat Bilgi Sistemi. (2022, 07 29). *ÇEVRESEL ETKİ DEĞERLENDİRMESİ YÖNETMELİĞİ*. Retrieved from Mevzuat Bilgi Sistemi: https://www.mevzuat.gov.tr/mevzuat?MevzuatNo=39647&MevzuatTur=7&MevzuatTertip= 5

AFAD. (2021). Manisa İl Afet Risk Azaltma Planı.

Alaşehir Municipality. (2024). Alaşehir Ekonomi.

- Culture Inventory. (2019). *Kültür Envanteri*. (C. Cangül, & A. E. Şentürk, Producers) Retrieved January 6, 2024, from https://kulturenvanteri.com/
- İLBANK. (2019, April). SÜRDÜRÜLEBİLİR ŞEHİRLER PROJESİ II EK FİNANSMAN. Retrieved from Arazi Edinimi ve Yeniden Yerleşim Politika Çerçevesi (LARPF): https://www.ilbank.gov.tr/storage/uploads/uidb/ssp2af_arazi_edinimi_ve_yeniden_yerlesi m_politika_cercevesi_larpf_1684677387.pdf
- ILBANK. (2019, April). TURKEY SUSTAINABLE CITIES PROJECT II Additional Financing (P170612). Retrieved from Environmental and Social Management Framework: https://documents1.worldbank.org/curated/ru/921361554098772741/pdf/Environmentaland-Social-Management-Framework.pdf

Manisa Metropolitan Municipality. (2024). Manisa Coğrafyası.

TÜİK. (2024).

World Bank. (2018). *Environmental and Social Standards (ESS)*. Retrieved from https://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/environmental-and-social-framework/brief/environmental-and-social-standards